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Judicial District Court - Bonneville Cou 

ROA Report 

Case: CV-2010-0003879 Current Judge: Jon J. Shindurling 

V Leo Campbell, eta!. vs. James C Kvamme, etal. 

User: LMESSICK 

V Leo Campbell, Kathleen Campbell vs. James C Kvamme, Debra Kvamme 

Date 

6/30/2010 

7/7/2010 

7/27/2010 

l/13/2010 

l/17/2010 

l/7/2010 

1/20/2010 

1/30/2010 

0/12/2010 

Code 

SMIS 

NCOC 

NOAP 

NOAP 

COMP 

ACKN 

NOAP 

NOAP 

ANSW 

HRSC 

NTOS 

NTOS 

NTOS 

NOTC 

HRVC 

HRSC 

HRSC 

NTOS 

User 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

KBAIRD 

DOOLITTL 

DOOLITTL 

DOOLITTL 

DOOLITTL 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

LYKE 

LYKE 

DOOLITTL 

DOOLITTL 

DOOLITTL 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

DOOLITTL 

Summons Issued 

New Case Filed-Other Claims 

Judge 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Plaintiff: Campbell, V Leo Notice Of Appearance Jon J. Shindurling 
Charles C. Just 

Plaintiff: Campbell, Kathleen Notice Of 
Appearance Charles C. Just 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Filing: A -All initial civil case filings of any type not Jon J. Shindurling 
listed in categories B-H, or the other A listings 
below Paid by: Campbell, V Leo (plaintiff) 
Receipt number: 0030813 Dated: 7/1/2010 
Amount: $88.00 (Check) For: Campbell, Kathleen 
(plaintiff) and Campbell, V Leo (plaintiff) 

Complaint Filed Jon J. Shindurling 

Acknowledgement Of Service 717110 Jon J. Shindurling 

Defendant: Kvamme, James C Notice Of Jon J. Shindurling 
Appearance Justin R. Seamons 

Filing: 11 - Initial Appearance by persons other Jon J. Shindurling 
than the plaintiff or petitioner Paid by: Seamons, 
Justin R. (attorney for Kvamme, James C) 
Receipt number: 0035529 Dated: 7/28/2010 
Amount: $58.00 (Check) For: Kvamme, Debra 
(defendant) and Kvamme, James C (defendant) 

Defendant: Kvamme, Debra Notice Of Jon J. Shindurling 
Appearance Justin R. Seamons 

Answer, Counterclaim, and Demand for Trial by Jon J. Shindurling 
Jury 

Hearing Scheduled (Status Conference 
10/12/2010 09: 00 AM) set PTC/trial dates 

Notice of Hearing - SIC set 10/12/1 O at 9 AM 

Reply to Counterclaim 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Notice Of Service - Plaintiffs' Discovery Requests Jon J. Shindurling 

Notice Of Service (Interrogatories# 1-18 and Jon J. Shindurling 
Requests for Production# 1-27) 

Notice Of Service (Answers to Requests for 
Admission) 

Notice of Compliance - Plaintiffs Response 
(Plaintiffs Response to Defendants' 
Interrogatories and Requests for Production) 

Hearing result for Status Conference held on 
10/12/2010 09:00 AM: Hearing Vacated set 
PTC/trial dates 

Hearing Scheduled (Pretrial Conference 
04/11 /2011 10:00 AM) 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Hearing Scheduled (Jury Trial 04/25/2011 01 :30 Jon J. Shindurling 
PM) 

Notice Of Service Jon J. Shindurling 
001 



Date: 7/24/2012 

Time: 04:03 PM 

Page 2of10 

Judicial District Court - Bonneville Cou 

ROA Report 

Case: CV-2010-0003879 Current Judge: Jon J. Shindurling 

V Leo Campbell, eta!. vs. James C Kvamme, etal. 

User: LMESSICK 

v Leo Campbell, Kathleen Campbell vs. James C Kvamme, Debra Kvamme 

Date Code User Judge 

10/12/2010 NTOS DOOLITTL Notice Of Service (Answers to Interrogatories Jon J. Shindurling 
1-20, Requests for Production 1-19) 

10/13/2010 GWALTERS Notice of Hearings - PTC set 4/11/11 at 1 O AM: Jon J. Shindurling 
JT set 4/25/11 at 1 :30 PM 

ORDR GWALTERS Order Refer Case to Mediation Jon J. Shindurling 

ORPT GWALTERS Order Setting Pretrial Conference/trial Jon J. Shindurling 

MINE GWALTERS Minute Entry re Stat conf held 10/11/1 O at 9: 10 Jon J. Shindurling 
AM 

11/15/2010 HRSC GWALTERS Hearing Scheduled (Motion 12/06/2010 11 :30 Jon J. Shindurling 
AM) Mtn for Protect Ord - Manwaring to ntc 

MOTN SOLIS Motion For Protective Order Jon J. Shindurling 

AFFD SOLIS Affidavit Of Counsel Jon J. Shindurling 

NOTH SOLIS Notice Of Hearing 12/06/2010@ 11:30AM RE: Jon J. Shindurling 
Motion For Protective Order 

11/19/2010 NOTC DOOLITTL Notice of Examination of V. Leo Campbell Jon J. Shindurling 

DOOLITTL Subpoena Ad Testificandum and Duces Tecum to Jon J. Shindurling 
V. Leo Campbell 

11/24/2010 NOTC DOOLITTL Notice of Compliance - Plaintiffs' Supplemental Jon J. Shindurling 
Response 

11/30/2010 NOTC DOOLITTL Notice of Intent to Cross-Examine V. Leo Jon J. Shindurling 
Campbell, Kathleen Campbell, and Eric W. 
Pertulla 

DOOLITTL Objection to Affidavit of Counsel Jon J. Shindurling 

2/1/2010 HRSC GWALTERS Hearing Scheduled (Motion 12/02/201 O 10:30 Jon J. Shindurling 
AM) Mtn for Protect Ord - Manwaring to ntc 

HRVC GWALTERS Hearing result for Motion held on 12/06/201 O Jon J. Shindurling 
11:30 AM: Hearing Vacated Mtn for Protect Ord 
- Manwaring to ntc 

MOTN SOLIS Motion To Shorten Time Jon J. Shindurling 

NOTH SOLIS Amended Notice OF Hearing - Motion for Jon J. Shindurling 
Protective Order- 12/02/2010 @10:30AM 

NOTH SOLIS Notice Of Hearing - Mtion To Shorten Time Jon J. Shindurling 
12/02/2010 @10:30AM 

2/2/2010 MINE GWALTERS Minute Entry Jon J. Shindurling 
Hearing type: Motion 
Hearing date: 12/2/2010 
Time: 10:37 am 
Courtroom: 
Court reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Minutes Clerk: Grace Walters 
Tape Number: 
Kipp Manwaring 
Justin Seamons 

NOAP GWALTERS Plaintiff: Campbell, V Leo Notice Of Appearance Jon J. Shindurling 
Kipp L. Manwaring 002 
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Date Code User 

12/2/2010 DCHH GWALTERS 

12/6/2010 ORDR GWALTERS 

12/15/2010 NOTC ANDERSEN 

12/30/2010 NOTC DOOLITTL 

1/7/2011 NOTC SOLIS 

1/10/2011 HRSC GWALTERS 

HRVC GWALTERS 

1/14/2011 NTOS DOOLITTL 

1/25/2011 NOTC DOOLITTL 

/27/2011 SOLIS 

NTOS SOLIS 

'./15/2011 NTOS DOOLITTL 

/16/2011 NOTC LYKE 

/18/2011 NTOS DOOLITTL 

/22/2011 NTOS DOOLITTL 

/7/2011 MOTN SOLIS 

/11/2011 MINE GWALTERS 

Hearing result for Motion held on 12/02/2010 
10:30 AM: District Court Hearing Held 
Court Reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Number of Transcript Pages for this hearing 
estimated: under 50 Mtn for Protect Ord -
Manwaring to ntc 

Order Granting Mtn to Shorten Time 

Judge 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Notice of Compliance - Plaintiffs' Second Jon J. Shindurling 
Supplemental Response 

Notice of Continued Examination of V. Leo Jon J. Shindurling 
Campbell 1-26-11 @ 9:00 a.m. 

Second Notice Of Continued Examination Of V. Jon J. Shindurling 
Leo Campbell 

Hearing Scheduled (Motion 01/24/2011 11 :30 Jon J. Shindurling 
AM) Mtn for mediator - Seamons to ntc 

Hearing result for Motion held on 01/24/2011 Jon J. Shindurling 
11 :30 AM: Hearing Vacated Mtn for mediator -
Seamons to ntc 

Notice Of Service (lnterrogartory (No. 19) and Jon J. Shindurling 
Request for Production (No. 28) 

Notice of Compliance - Plaintiffs' Response to Jon J. Shindurling 
Additional Interrogatory and Request for 
Production) 

Disclosure Of Expert Witnesses Jon J. Shindurling 

Notice Of Service Supplemental Answer To Jon J. Shindurling 
Interrogatory #4 & Supplemental Response To 
Request For Production #4 

Notice Of Service (Supplemental Response to Jon J. Shindurling 
Request for Production #4 Dated February 14, 
2011) 

Third Notice of Continued Examination of V. Leo Jon J. Shindurling 
Campbell 

Notice Of Service - Plaintiffs' Supplemental Jon J. Shindurling 
Discovery Requests 

Notice Of Service (Answer to Interrogatory# 21 Jon J. Shindurling 
and Response to Request for Production #20) 

Motion To Continue 

Minute Entry 
Hearing type: Pretrial Conference 
Hearing date: 4/11/2011 
Time: 9:59 am 
Courtroom: 
Court reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Minutes Clerk: Grace Walters 
Tape Number: 
Kipp Manwaring 
Justin Seamons 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

003 
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Date 

4/11/2011 

5/17/2011 

5/18/2011 

5/20/2011 

3/7/2011 

/17/2011 

Code 

DCHH 

HRVC 

HRSC 

HRSC 

MOTN 

MEMO 

AFFD 

AFFD 

AFFD 

AFFD 

AFFD 

HRSC 

NOTH 

MOTN 

NOTH 

AFFD 

AFFD 

AFFD 

AFFD 

NOTC 

HRSC 

MOTN 

MOTN 

NOTH 

User 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

GWALTERS 

LYKE 

SBARRERA 

SBARRERA 

SBARRERA 

SBARRERA 

SBARRERA 

SBARRERA 

SBARRERA 

SBARRERA 

SBARRERA 

GWALTERS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

SOLIS 

Judge 

Hearing result for Pretrial Conference held on Jon J. Shindurling 
04/11/2011 10:00 AM: District Court Hearing Hele 
Court Reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Number of Transcript Pages for this hearing 
estimated: under 50 

Hearing result for Jury Trial held on 04/25/2011 
01:30 PM: Hearing Vacated 

Hearing Scheduled (Pretrial Conference 
02/27/2012 10:00 AM) 

Hearing Scheduled (Jury Trial 03/05/2012 01 :30 
PM) 

Notice of Hearings - PTC reset 2/27/12 at 10 
AM: JT reset 3/5/12 at 1 :30 PM 

The Plaintiffs' Motion For Partial Summary 
Judgment 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Memorandum In Support Of The Plaintiffs' Motion Jon J. Shindurling 
For Partial Summary Judgment 

Affidavit Of Margy Spradling Jon J. Shindurling 

Affidavit Of Jo Le Campbell Jon J. Shindurling 

Affidavit Of Blake Mueller Jon J. Shindurling 

Affidavit Of Mark Hansen Jon J. Shindurling 

Affidavit Of Counsel Jon J. Shindurling 

Hearing Scheduled (Motion 07/05/2011 11 :00 Jon J. Shindurling 
AM) Mtn for S/J - Just Law to ntc 

Notice Of Hearing Re: Plaintiff's Motion for Jon J. Shindurling 
Summary Judgment (07/05/11@11 :ODAM) 

Motion For Summary Judgment Jon J. Shindurling 

Notice Of Hearing RE: Motion For Summary Jon J. Shindurling 
Judgment (07/05/2011 11:00AM) 

Affidavit Of James C. Kvamme Jon J. Shindurling 

Exhibits In Supoprt Of Affidavit Of James C. Jon J. Shindurling 
Kvamme 

Affidavit Of Kim H. Leavitt Jon J. Shindurling 

Exhibits In Support Of Affidavit Of Kim H. Leavitt Jon J. Shindurling 

Affidavit Of Mark Hansen Jon J. Shindurling 

Affidavit Of Blake Mueller Jon J. Shindurling 

Notice Of Submission Of Deposition Of V. Leo Jon J. Shindurling 
Campbell 

Hearing Scheduled (Motion 06/28/2011 11 :00 Jon J. Shindurling 
AM) Mtn to ext time - Manwaring to ntc 

Motion For Extension Of Time Jon J. Shindurling 

Motion To Shorten Time Jon J. Shindurling 

Notice Of Hearing 06/28/2011 @11 :ODAM Jon J. Shindurling 
RE: Motion For Extension Of Time 

QQ.'.1 
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Date 

6/17/2011 

6/21/2011 

3/22/2011 

)/28/2011 

'30/2011 

13/2011 

19/2011 

Code 

NOTH 

AFFD 

AFFD 

AFFD 

ORDR 

MINE 

DCHH 

HRSC 

HRVC 

NOTH 

ORDR 

NOTC 

NOTC 

User 

SOLIS 

ANDERSEN 

ANDERSEN 

ANDERSEN 

ANDERSEN 

ANDERSEN 

ANDERSEN 

ANDERSEN 

ANDERSEN 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

DOOLITTL 

GWALTERS 

LYKE 

ANDERSEN 

Judge 

Notice Of Hearing 06/28/2011 @ 11 :00 AM RE: Jon J. Shindurling 
Motion To shorten Time 

Objection to Record of Survey Jon J. Shindurling 

Affidavit of Arnold Gene Killian in Opposition to Jon J. Shindurling 
Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment 

Affidavit of Revar Harris in Opposition to Plaintiffs' Jon J. Shindurling 
Motion for Summary Judgment 

Affidavit of Mary Jane Harris in Opposition to 
Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Judgment 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Objection to Plaintiffs' Motion for Summary Jon J. Shindurling 
Judgment 

Objection to Affidavit of Jo Le Campbell and Jon J. Shindurling 
Motion to Strike 

Objection to Affidavit of Margy Spradling and Jon J. Shindurling 
Motion to Strike 

Objection to Deposition of V. Leo Campbell and Jon J. Shindurling 
Motion to Strike 

Order Granting Mtn to Shorten Time. Jon J. Shindurling 

Minute Entry Jon J. Shindurling 
Hearing type: Motion 
Hearing date: 6/28/2011 
Time: 10:57 am 
Courtroom: 
Court reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Minutes Clerk: Grace Walters 
Tape Number: 
Kipp Manwaring 
Justin Seamons 

Hearing result for Motion scheduled on Jon J. Shindurling 
06/28/2011 11 :00 AM: District Court Hearing Hel< 
Court Reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Number of Transcript Pages for this hearing 
estimated: under 50 Mtn to ext time - Manwaring 
to ntc 

Hearing Scheduled (Motion 09/12/2011 11 :00 Jon J. Shindurling 
AM) Mtn & crss-mtn for S/J 

Hearing result for Motion scheduled on Jon J. Shindurling 
07 /05/2011 11 :00 AM: Hearing Vacated Mtn for 
S/J - Just Law to ntc 

Notice of Hearing - Mtns for S/J RESET to Jon J. Shindurling 
9/12/11 at 11 AM 

Amended Notice Of Hearing 9-12-11 @ 11:00 Jon J. Shindurling 
a.m. 

Order Granting Mtn to Ext Time: Ps' mtn to ext Jon J. Shindurling 
time to respond to Os' mtn for S/J is GRANTED. 

Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum - Kim Leavitt Jon J. Shindurling 

Amended Notice of Deposition Duces Tecum - Jon J. Shindurling 
Kim Leavitt 
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Date Code User 

8/26/2011 RESP LYKE Response in Opposition to the Plaintiffs' Motion 
for Summary Judgment 

AFFD LYKE Affidavit of Counsel 

MOTN LYKE Motion to Strike 

NOTH LYKE Notice Of Hearing Re: Motion to Strike 
(9/12/11@11 :OOAM) 

9/6/2011 MEMO DOOLITTL Reply Memorandum (Motion for Summary 
Judgment) 

AFFD DOOLITTL Reply Affidavit of Kim H. Leavitt 

3/12/2011 MINE GWALTERS Minute Entry 
Hearing type: Motion 
Hearing date: 9/12/2011 
Time: 11 :01 am 
Courtroom: 
Court reporter: court recorder 
Minutes Clerk: Grace Walters 
Tape Number: 
Kipp Manwaring 
Justin Seamons 

DCHH GWALTERS Hearing result for Motion scheduled on 
09/12/2011 11 :00 AM: District Court Hearing Heh 
Court Reporter: court recorder 
Number of Transcript Pages for this hearing 
estimated: under 150 Mtn & crss-mtn for S/J 

MINE GWALTERS Minute Entry 
Hearing type: Motion 
Hearing date: 9/12/2011 
Time: 11 :42 am 
Courtroom: 
Court reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Minutes Clerk: Grace Walters 
Tape Number: 

/22/2011 DOOLITTL Objection to Argument of the honorable Jon J. 
Shindurling that the Original Survey in this Case 
Was Not Accurate 

AFFD DOOLITTL Affidavit of James C. Kvamme RE: Argument of 
the Honorable Jon J. Shindurling that the Fence 
in this Case is a "Convenience" Fence 

DOOLITTL Objection to Argument of the Honorable Jon J. 
Shindurling that the Fence in this Case is a 
"Convenience" Fence 

AFFD DOOLITTL Affidavit of Kim H. Leavitt RE: Argument of the 
Honorable Jon J. Shindurling that the Original 
Survey in this Case was not Accurate 

NOTC DOOLITTL Notice of Augmentation 

DOOLITTL Objection and Notice of Augmentation 

23/2011 MEMO DOOLITTL Augmented Memorandum of Additional Points 
and Authorities in Support of The Campbells' 
Motion for Summary Judgment 

User: LMESSICK 

Judge 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling OOG 
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Date 

9/23/2011 

9/29/2011 

10/28/2011 

11/1/2011 

11/3/2011 

11/4/2011 

11/15/2011 

Code 

AFFD 

AFFD 

ORDR 

JDMT 

HRVC 

HRVC 

CDIS 

STATUS 

MEMO 

AFFD 

HRSC 

STATUS 

MOTN 

AFFD 

NOTH 

NOTC 

User 

DOOLITTL 

LYKE 

LYKE 

LYKE 

GWALTERS 

LYKE 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

LYKE 

LYKE 

GWALTERS 

GWALTERS 

DOOLITTL 

DOOLITTL 

DOOLITTL 

DOOLITTL 

DOOLITTL 

Judge 

Augmented Affidavit of Counsel in Support of the Jon J. Shindurling 
Campbells' Moiton for Summary Judgment 

Objection to "Augmented Affidavit of Counsel" - Jon J. Shindurling 
That is, Augmented Affidavit of Kipp L. 
Manwaring 

Objection to Augmented Memorandum of Jon J. Shindurling 
Additional Points and Authorities 

Affidavit of Kim H. Leavitt In Opposition to Jon J. Shindurling 
Augmented Memorandum and Augmented 
Affidavit of Kipp L. Manwaring 

Opinion & Order on Ps' Mtn for Partial S/J and Os' Jon J. Shindurling 
Mtn for S/J: Ps' mtn for partial S/J is DENIED. Ds' 
mtn for S/J is GRANTED. Title to the property as 
described in this opinion shall be quited in Os' 
name. Counsel for Os shall prepare an order 
consistent with this opinion. 

Miscellaneous Payment: For Certifying The Same Jon J. Shindurling 
Additional Fee For Certificate And Seal Paid by: 
Justin Seamons Receipt number: 0050373 
Dated: 11/2/2011 Amount: $1.00 (Cash) 

Judgment & Decree of Quiet Title 

Hearing result for Jury Trial scheduled on 
03/05/2012 01:30 PM: Hearing Vacated 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Hearing result for Pretrial Conference scheduled Jon J. Shindurling 
on 02/27/2012 10:00 AM: Hearing Vacated 

Civil Disposition entered for: Kvamme, Debra, Jon J. Shindurling 
Defendant; Kvamme, James C, Defendant; 
Campbell, Kathleen, Plaintiff; Campbell, V Leo, 
Plaintiff. Filing date: 11/3/2011 

Case Status Changed: Closed Jon J. Shindurling 

Memorandum of Costs Jon J. Shindurling 

Affidavit in Support of Memorandum of Costs Jon J. Shindurling 

Hearing Scheduled (Motion 11/29/2011 02:00 Jon J. Shindurling 
PM) Mtn for reconsideration - Manwarring to ntc 

Case Status Changed: Closed pending clerk Jon J. Shindurling 
action 

Objection to the Defendants' Motion and 
Memorandum for costs 

Jon J. Shindurling 

Motion for Reconsideration Jon J. Shindurling 

Affidavit of Kevin L. Thompson Jon J. Shindurling 

Notice Of Hearing - Motion for Reconsideration Jon J. Shindurling 
11-29-11 @ 2:00 p.m. 

Notice of Reservation of Right to File a 
Supplemental Memorandum of Costs and 
Affidavit in Support 

Jon J. Shindurling 

007 
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11/15/2011 NOTH DOOLITTL Notice Of Hearing 11-29-11 @ 2:00 p.m. Jon J. Shindurling 
(Motion to COmpel Deposition of V. Leo 
Campbell) 

MOTN DOOLITTL Motion for Reconsideration Jon J. Shindurling 

NOTH DOOLITTL Notice Of Hearing 11-29-11 @2:00 p.m. Jon J. Shindurling 
(Motion for Reconsideration) 

MOTN DOOLITTL Motion to Compel (Deposistion of V. Leo Jon J. Shindurling 
Campbell) 

NOTH DOOLITTL Notice Of Hearing 11-29-11 @2:00 p.m. Jon J. Shindurling 
(Motion to Compel Deposition of Kathleen 
Campbell) 

MOTN DOOLITTL Motion to Compel (Deposition of Kathleen Jon J. Shindurling 
Campbell) 

NOTH DOOLITTL Notice Of Hearing 11-29-11 @2:00 p.m. Jon J. Shindurling 
(Motion to Extend Discovery Deadline to Depose 
Kevin L. Thompson) 

NOTC DOOLITTL Notice of Reservation of Right to Depose Kevin L. Jon J. Shindurling 
Thompson and to File a Motion for 
Reconsideration, and Motion to Extend Discovery 
Deadline to Depose Kevin L. Thompson) 

NOTH DOOLITTL Notice Of Hearing 11-29-11 @ 2:00 p.m. Jon J. Shindurling 
Motion to Repair or Replace Fence) 

MOTN DOOLITTL Motion to Repair or Replace Fence Jon J. Shindurling 

1/22/2011 SBARRERA Response In Opposition To The Kvammes' Jon J. Shindurling 
Motion To Repair Or Replace Fence 

AFFD SBARRERA Affidavit Of Counsel In Support Of Response In Jon J. Shindurling 
Opposition To Motions To Compel 

MEMO SBARRERA Memorandum In Opposition To Motion For Jon J. Shindurling 
Reconsideration, Objection To Affidavit Of Kevin 
L. Thompson And Motion To Strike, And Motion 
For Costs And Attorney's Fees 

1/25/2011 NTOS SOLIS Notice Of Service - Interrogatory #20 and Jon J. Shindurling 
Request For Production #29 

1/29/2011 MINE GWALTERS Minute Entry Jon J. Shindurling 
Hearing type: Motion 
Hearing date: 11/29/2011 
Time: 2:01 pm 
Courtroom: 
Court reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Minutes Clerk: Grace Walters 
Tape Number: 
Kipp Manwaring 
Justin Seamons 

DCHH GWALTERS Hearing result for Motion scheduled on Jon J. Shindurling 
11/29/2011 02:00 PM: District Court Hearing Hele 
Court Reporter: Nancy Marlow 

008 Number of Transcript Pages for this hearing 
estimated: under 50 Mtn for reconsideration -
Manwarring to ntc 
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11/30/2011 NOTC DOOLITTL Notice of Compliance - Plaintiffs' 3rd Jon J. Shindurling 
Supplemental Response to Defendants' 
Interrogatories 

12/6/2011 DOOLITTL Disclosure of Expert Witnesses Jon J. Shindurling 

12/21 /2011 ORDR GWALTERS Opinion & Order on Ps' Mtn for Reconsideration: Jon J. Shindurling 
Ps' mtn for reconsideration is DENIED. 

12/22/2011 MISC HEATON Supplemental Affidavit in Support of Jon J. Shindurling 
Memorandum od Costs (D) 

1/4/2012 HRSC GWALTERS Hearing Scheduled (Motion 01/23/2012 10:15 Jon J. Shindurling 
AM) 

SBARRERA Response In Opposition To The Defendants' Jon J. Shindurling 
Amended Motion For Costs And Fees 

NOTH LYKE Notice Of Hearing Re: Objection to Defendants' Jon J. Shindurling 
Motion and Memorandum for Costs 
(01/23/12@10: 15AM) 

/23/2012 MINE GWALTERS Minute Entry Jon J. Shindurling 
Hearing type: Motion 
Hearing date: 1/23/2012 
Time: 10:11 am 
Courtroom: 
Court reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Minutes Clerk: Grace Walters 
Tape Number: 
Justin Seamons 
Kipp Manwaring 

DCHH GWALTERS Hearing result for Motion scheduled on Jon J. Shindurling 
01/23/2012 10:15 AM: District Court Hearing Hele 
Court Reporter: Nancy Marlow 
Number of Transcript Pages for this hearing 
estimated: under 50 

/27/2012 ORDR GWALTERS Opinion & Order on Attorney's Fees and Costs: Jon J. Shindurling 
Defs are awarded costs in amt of $1,487.71. All 
other costs/fees are DENIED. Counsel for Def 
shall prepare a final form of judgment. (see doc 
for specifics). 

/30/2012 JDMT GWALTERS Judgment: Defs shall have judgment against the Jon J. Shindurling 
Ps for $1,487. 71 for costs as matter of right. 

STATUS GWALTERS Case Status Changed: Closed Jon J. Shindurling 

CDIS GWALTERS Civil Disposition entered for: Kvamme, Debra, Jon J. Shindurling 
Defendant; Kvamme, James C, Defendant; 
Campbell, Kathleen, Plaintiff; Campbell, V Leo, 
Plaintiff. Filing date: 1/30/2012 

SBARRERA Filing: L4 - Appeal, Civil appeal or cross-appeal to Jon J. Shindurling 
Supreme Court Paid by: Just Law, Inc. Receipt 
number: 0005161 Dated: 2/2/2012 Amount: 
$101.00 (Check) For: Campbell, Kathleen 

009 (plaintiff) and Campbell, V Leo (plaintiff) 

APSC SBARRERA Notice Of Appeal To The Supreme Court Jon J. Shindurling 
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2/2/2012 BNDC LMESSICK Bond Posted - Cash (Receipt 5217 Dated Jon J. Shindurling 
2/2/2012 for 100.00) 

STATUS LMESSICK Case Status Changed: Closed pending clerk Jon J. Shindurling 
action 

CERT AP LMESSICK Clerk's Certificate of Appeal Jon J. Shindurling 

2/10/2012 BNDC SOLIS Bond Posted - Cash (Receipt 6843 Dated 
2/10/2012 for 2023.29) 

Jon J. Shindurling 

NOTC SOLIS Notice Of Posting Cash Deposit Jon J. Shindurling 

MOTN SOLIS Plaintiffs - Motion For Stay Jon J. Shindurling 

HRSC GWALTERS Hearing Scheduled (Motion 03/06/2012 09:30 
AM) Mtn for stay - Manwarring to ntc 

Jon J. Shindurling 

2/15/2012 NOTC SOLIS Notice Of Cross-Appeal Jon J. Shindurling 

SOLIS Filing: L4 - Appeal, Civil appeal or cross-appeal to Jon J. Shindurling 
Supreme Court Paid by: Seamons, Justin R. 
(attorney for Kvamme, Debra) Receipt number: 
0008098 Dated: 2/16/2012 Amount: $101.00 
(Check) For: Kvamme, Debra (defendant) and 
Kvamme, James C (defendant) 

2/16/2012 HRVC GWALTERS Hearing result for Motion scheduled on Jon J. Shindurling 
03/06/2012 09:30 AM: Hearing Vacated Mtn for 
stay - Manwarring to ntc 

STIP LYKE Stipulation to Stay Execution of Judgment Jon J. Shindurling 

2/28/2012 ORDR GWALTERS Order Granting Stay of Execution pending Jon J. Shindurling 
outcome of Ps' appeal. 

3/1/2012 LMESSICK (SC) Order Conditionally Dismissing Appeal Jon J. Shindurling 

LMESSICK (SC) Clerk's Certificate Filed Jon J. Shindurling 

3/2/2012 NOTC CEARLY Amended Notice Of Appeal Jon J. Shindurling 

3/5/2012 LMESSICK (SC) Notice of Cross Appeal Filed Jon J. Shindurling 

3/29/2012 LMESSICK (SC) Order to Reinstate Appellate Proceedings Jon J. Shindurling 

6/26/2012 LODG LMESSICK Lodged: Appellate Transcript Jon J. Shindurling 

7/12/2012 BNDC LMESSICK Bond Posted - Cash (Receipt 33775 Dated Jon J. Shindurling 
7/12/2012 for 274.35) 

7/13/2012 LMESSICK Amended Notice of Balance Due Jon J. Shindurling 

7/17/2012 LMESSICK 2nd Amended Notice of Balance Due on Clerk's Jon J. Shindurling 
Record 

7/19/2012 BNDC LMESSICK Bond Posted - Cash (Receipt 35181 Dated Jon J. Shindurling 
7/19/2012 for 11.00) 

7/24/2012 BNDC LMESSICK Bond Posted - Cash (Receipt 35823 Dated Jon J. Shindurling 
7/24/2012 for 690.75) 

010 



CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

ID 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. cv-llJ~3P1f 

COMPLAINT 

Filing Category: A 
Filing Fee: $88.00 

The Plaintiffs, for a cause of action against the Defendants, complain and allege as 

follows: 

1. The Plaintiffs, V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen Campbell, ("Campbells") are 

husband and wife and residents of Bonneville County, Idaho, and are the owners of record of that 

certain real property identified in Exhibit A attached and incorporated here by reference 

("Subject Property"). 

2. The Defendants, James Craig Kvamme and Debra Kvamme, ("K vammes") are 

husband wife and residents of Bonneville County, Idaho, and are the owners of record of that 

certain real property identified in Exhibit B attached and incorporated here by reference. 

Complaint - Page 1 
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3. The Defendants, Jolm Does I through X, are persons or entities whose true 

identities are presently unknown who may claim an interest in the Subject Property. 

4. By Warranty Deed recorded May 28, 1981 as Instrument No. 607254 and Deed of 

Gift recorded October 4, 1989 as Instrument No. 774870 in the Recorder's Office for Bonneville 

County, Idaho, the Campbells obtained title to the Subject Property. 

COUNT 1 - QUIET TITLE 

5. On its no1ihern boundary the Subject Property abuts the Kvammes' real property 

identified in Exhibit B and the purpose of this action is to quiet title to the Subject Property in the 

name of the Camp bells against any and all persons with adverse claims, interests, encumbrances, 

easements, liens, or rights. 

6. Any other person or entity claiming or asserting an interest in the Subject 

Property has an interest or claim subordinate to the title, rights, possession, and control of the 

Camp bells. 

7. The Defendants' collective claims, interests, rights, or encumbrances, if any, 

constitute a cloud on the Campbells title to Subject Prope1iy. 

8. The Campbells' title is paramount to the Defendants' claimed, potential, or 

asserted interests. 

9. The Campbells are entitled to judgment quieting in their name title to the Subject 

Property described in Exhibit A free of any interests of the Defendants. 

COUNT 2 - EJECTMENT 

10. All prior allegations are restated. 

11. The K vammes have asserted rights of possession and use to the Subject Property 

in derogation of the Camp bells' title and right to possession. 

12. The Kvan1mes have no title, interest, or right to possession of the subject real 

property. 

13. The Campbells have not agreed to any tenancy with the Kvammes and consider 

the Kvammes' continued possession and use a trespass. 

14. The Campbells are entitled to a writ of ejectment removing the Kvammes, and 

any and all persons claiming possession or occupancy under them, together with all personal 

property from the Campbells' real property. 
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COUNT 3 - TH.ESP ASS 

15. All prior allegations are restated. 

16. The Kvamrnes or their agents have entered upon the Carnpbells' real prope1iy 

through the operation and maintenance of a well and pump situated on the Subject Property and 

by irrigation lines placed upon the Subject Property. 

17. The Campbells did not give permission or authority to the Kvammes or their 

agents or any others with them to enter upon the Campbells' real property. 

18. The actions of the Kvammes constitute trespass. 

19. As a result of the trespass, the Campbells have been damaged in an amount to be 

determined at trial. 

ATTORNEY FEES 

The Campbells have retained the services of Just Law Office to prosecute this action and 

in accordance with LC.§§ 12-120, 12-121 and applicable provisions of the Idaho Rules of Civil 

Procedure, the Camp bells are entitled to an award of all court costs and reasonable attorney fees 

they have incurred and will incur. 

WHEREFORE, the Campbells request relief as follows: 

1. Judgment quieting title to the Subject Property described in Exhibit A in the name 

of the Campbells and declaring the Defendants have no title to or interests in the Subject 

Property. 

2. Judgment granting a Writ of Ejectment and directing the Sheriff of Bonneville 

County to use such force as reasonably necessary to physically remove the Defendants, and any 

person claiming possession or occupancy under them, together with all personal property from 

the Campbells' real prope1iy. 

3. Judgment granting a Writ of Restitution and directing the Sheriff of Bonneville 

County to place the Camp bells in full possession and occupancy of their real property. 

4. An Order decreeing that any personal prope1iy left on the subject property by the 

Defendants, or any persons claiming an occupancy or use right derivatively through the 

Defendants, is deemed to be abandoned and valueless, and authorizing the Campbells to take 

possession of such property or discard or destroy it as the Camp bells shall see fit. 
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5. An award of all court costs and reasonable attorney fees. 

6. For such further and other relief as the court deems just and equitable. 

Dated this ~ay of June, 2010. 

~~~ Kipp L. Manw~ 
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THOMPSON ENGINEERING INC. 
CONSUL TING ENGINEERS 

215 Farnsworth Way, P.O. Box 55 
Rigby, Idaho 83442 

745-8771 

JOB NAME------------ Leo Campbell 
JOB NO. ---------------- 2009-101 
DATE ------------------- October 5, 2009 
PARCEL NO. --------- 1 

LAND DESCRIPTION 

A Parcel of Land Situated in Bonneville County, State of Idaho, Township 3 North, Range 38 
East of the Boise Meridian, Section 17, More Particularly Described as Follows: Beginning at 
the Northeast Comer of Section 17, Township 3 North, Range 38 East, B.M. 
Thence S00°10'27"W along the East line of Section 17 for a Distance of 1325.26 feet to the 
Northeast Corner of the South Half (S Yi) of the Northeast Quarter (NE Y4), said point also being 
the True Point of Beginning. 
Thence S00°l 0'27"W (Record= South) along the East line of Section 17 for a Distance of 
438.65 feet; 
Thence N89°50'35"W for a Distance of 2644.37 feet to the West line of the South Half (S Yi) 
of the Northeast Quarter (NE Y4); 
Thence N00°26'12"E (Record= NOO 0l 5'30"E) for a Distance of 428.00 feet to the 
Northwest Corner of said South Half (S Yi); 
Thence N89°55'34"E (Record= N89 °45'00"E) along the North line of said South half (S Yi) for 
a Distance of 2642.43 (Record= 2642.37') feet to the True Point ofBegi1ming, Containing 
26.30 Acres More or Less. 
Subject to: Easements and Right-of-Ways for highways, roads, ditches, canals, power poles, and 
transmission lines as they exist. 

015 
Kevin L. Thompson, PLS 
Thompson Engineering, Inc. 

EXHIBIT 
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THOMPSON ENGINEERING INC. 
CONSUL TING ENGINEERS 

215 Farnsworth Way, P.O. Box 55 
Rigby, Idaho 83442 

745-8771 

JOB NAME------------ Leo Campbell 
JOB NO. ---------------- 2009-101 
DATE------------------- October 5, 2009 
PARCEL NO. --------- 2 

LAND DESCRIPTION 

A Parcel of Land Situated in Bonneville County, State ofldaho, Township 3 North, Range 38 
East of the Boise Meridian, Section 17, More Particularly Described as Follows: Beginning at 
the Northeast Comer of Section 17, Township 3 Nmih, Range 38 East, B.M. 
Thence S00°10'27"W along the East line of Section 17 for a Distance of 1763.91 feet to the 
True Point of Beginning. 
Thence S00°10'27"W (Record = South) along the East line of Section 17 for a Distance of 
423.00 feet; 
Thence N89°51'13"W for a Distance of 2646.30 feet to the West line of the South Half (S 'ii) 
of the Northeast Quarter (NE Y4); 
Thence N00°26'12"E (Record= NOO 0l 5'30"E) along said West line for a Distance of 423.50 
feet; 
Thence S89°50'35"E for a Distance of 2644.37 feet to the True Point of Begi1ming, 
Containing 25.70 Acres More or Less. 
Subject to: Easements and Right-of-Ways for highways, roads, ditches, canals, power poles, and 
transmission lines as they exist. 

Kevin L. Thompson, PLS 
Thompson Engineering, Inc. 
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THOMPSON ENGINEERING INC. 
CONSUL TING ENGINEERS 

215 Farnsworth Way, P.O. Box 55 
Rigby, Idaho 83442 

745-8771 

JOB NAME------------ Leo Campbell 
JOB NO. ---------------- 2009-101 
DATE------------------- October 5, 2009 
PARCEL NO. --------- 3 

LAND DESCRIPTION 

A Parcel of Land Situated in Bonneville County, State ofldaho, Township 3 North, Range 38 
East of the Boise Meridian, Section 17, More Particularly Described as Follows: Beginning at 
the Northeast Corner of Section 17, Township 3 North, Range 38 East, B.M. 
Thence S00°10'27"W along the East line of Section 17 for a Distance of 2186.91 feet to the 
True Point of Beginning. 
Thence S00°10'27"W (Record= South) along the East line of Section 17 for a Distance of 
203.00 feet; 
Thence N89°40'48"W (Record = N89 °51'l5 "TV) for a Distance of 455.42 feet; 
Thence S00°26'27"E (Record= soo 036'54"E) for a Distance of 236.97 feet; 
Thence S89°50'58"E (Record= N89 °58'35"E) for a Distance of 452.88 feet to the East line 
of Section 17; 
Thence S00°10'27"W (Record= South) along the East line of Section 17 for a Distance of 
25.00 feet to the East Quaiier Corner of Section 17; 
Thence N89°50'49"W (Record =S89 °58'35"TV) for a Distance of 2648.43 (Record= 2648.28') 
feet to the Southwest Comer of the South Half (S Yz) of the Northeast Quarter (NE%) of Section 
17; 
Thence N00°26'12"E (Record= NOO 0l 5'30"E) along the West line of said South Half (S 1/z) for 
a Distance of 463.31 feet; 
Thence S89°51'13"E for a Distance of 2646.30 feet to the True Point of Beginning, 
Containing 25.70 Acres More or Less. 
Subject to: Easements and Right-of-Ways for highways, roads, ditches, canals, power poles, and 
transmission lines as they exist. 

Kevin L. Thompson, PLS 
Thompson Engineering, Inc. 

C:\Documents and Settings\Linda\Local Settings\ Temporary Internet Files\OLKAF\Campbe112009-101.3.doc 
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The North Half of the Northeast Quarter; Section 17, Township 
3 North, Range 38 East, of the Boise Meridian. LESS AND 
EXCEPTING THE FOLLOWING TWO TRACTS: 

Beginning at the Northeast comer of Section 17, Township 3 
North, Range 38 East of the Boise Meridian; running thence 
West along the Section line 164.92 feet; thence S. 00°58'40" W. 
260.56 feet; thence S. 88°45'53" E. 167.20 feet to the East line 
of said Section 17; thence N. 00°28'42" E. along said East line 
264.13 feet to the point of beginning. 

Also less: Beginning at a point that is West along the Section 
line 164.92 feet from the Northeast comer of Section 17, 
Township 3 North, Range 38 East of the Boise Meridian; 
running thence West along the Section line 195.64 feet; thence 
S. 09°40'58" E. 261.06 feet; thence S. 88°45'53" E. 147.32 feet; 
thence N. 00°5814011 E. 260.56 feet to the point of beginning. 

013 
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Justin R. Seamons 
414 Shoup Avenue 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
Telephone Number: (208) 542-0600 
Facsimile Number: (208) 529-4166 
Idaho State Bar Number: 3903 

Attorney for Defendant 

1!i qq 2-,. v Ju._ l: 29 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN ) 
CAMPBELL, ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, ) 

) 
vs. ) 

) 
JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA ) 
KVAMME, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

Case No. CV 10-3879 

ANSWER, COUNTERCLAIM, AND 
DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 

James C. Kvamme and Debra Kvamme hereby answer the Plaintiffs' complaint, 

dated June 30, 2010. 

I. 

DEFENSES 

1. The Defendants deny each and every allegation in the complaint that they 

do not specifically and expressly admit herein, including, without limitation, any and all 

foundational allegations, non sequiturs, reverse, negative, or implicit allegations, or 

other assumptions. 

2. The complaint "fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted." 

ANSWER-1 
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3. The Defendants hereby reserve the right to hereafter amend their answer 

in order to include any and all other defenses to the complaint. 

11. 

ANSWER 

1. With respect to the allegations in Paragraph 1 of the complaint, the 

Defendants admit that the Plaintiffs are "husband and wife and residents of Bonneville 

County, Idaho." The Defendants are "without knowledge or information sufficient to 

form a belief as to the truth" of the remaining allegations. See l.R.C.P. S(b). 

2. The Defendants admit the allegations in Paragraph 2 of the complaint. 

3. The Defendants are "without knowledge or information sufficient to form a 

belief as to the truth" of the allegations in Paragraph 3 of the complaint. See l.R.C.P. 

S(b). 

4. The Defendants are "without knowledge or information sufficient to form a 

belief as to the truth" of the allegations in Paragraph 4 of the complaint. See l.R.C.P. 

S(b). 

5. With respect to the allegations in Paragraph 5 of the complaint, the 

Defendants admit that a parcel of real property, [o]n its northern boundary, ... abuts the 

Kvamme's real property identified in Exhibit B and [that] the purpose of this action is to 

quiet title to the [real property] in the name of the Campbel ls against any and all persons 

with adverse claims, interests, encumbrances, easements, liens, or rights." The 

Defendants are "without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the 

truth" of the allegation that the foregoing real property is the "Subject Property." See 

l.R.C.P. S(b). The Defendants deny that the Plaintiffs have the right to "quiet title" in the 
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foregoing real property and/or the "Subject Property" that lies north of the fence 

between their respective parcels of real property-that is, the foregoing real property 

and/or "Subject Property" and the real property on EXHIBIT B. 

6. With respect to the allegations in Paragraph 6 of the complaint, the 

Defendants deny that their "interest or claim" in the foregoing real property and/or 

"Subject Property" that lies north of the fence between their respective parcels of real 

property is "subordinate to the title, rights, possession, and control of the Campbells." 

The Defendants are "without knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to 

the truth" of the remaining allegations. See l.R.C.P. S(b). 

7. The Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 7 of the complaint. 

8. The Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 8 of the complaint. 

9. The Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 9 of the complaint. 

10. The Defendants hereby incorporate their answers to Paragraphs 1 

through 9, above. 

11. With respect to the allegations in Paragraph 11 of the complaint, the 

Defendants admit that they have the "right of possession and use" of the foregoing real 

property and/or "Subject Property" that lies north of the fence between their respective 

parcels of real property. The Defendants deny the remaining allegations in Paragraph 

11 of the complaint, including, without limitation, that the Plaintiffs have "title and right to 

possession" thereof. 

12. The Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 12 of the complaint. 

13. With respect to the allegations in Paragraph 13 of the complaint, the 

Defendants admit that the Plaintiffs "have not agreed to any tenancy with the 
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Kvammes"; however, the Defendants do not need a "tenancy." Again, the Defendants 

have the "right of possession and use" of the real property that lies north of the fence 

between their respective parcels of real property. The Defendants are "without 

knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the truth" of the remaining 

allegations. 

14. The Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 14 of the complaint. 

15. The Defendants hereby incorporate their answers to Paragraphs 1 

through 14, above. 

16. The Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 16 of the complaint. In 

this regard, please note that the location of the "well and pump" and "irrigation lines" is 

north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property. 

17. With respect to the allegations in Paragraph 17 of the complaint, the 

Defendants admit that the Plaintiffs "did not give permission or authority to the 

Kvammes or their agents or any others with them to enter upon the Campbell's real 

property"; however, the Defendants did not need the Plaintiffs' "permission or authority." 

Again, the location of the "well and pump" and "irrigation lines" is north of the fence 

between their respective parcels of real property. 

18. The Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 18 of the complaint. 

19. The Defendants deny the allegations in Paragraph 19 of the complaint. 

20. With respect to the allegations in the paragraph, entitled 

"ATTORNEY FEES," the Defendants admit that the Plaintiffs have "retained the 

services of Just Law Office to prosecute this action." The Defendants deny the 

remaining allegations in the foregoing paragraph. 

ANSWER-4 



REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

The Defendants respectfully request the following relief against the complaint: 

1. Dismissal of the complaint with prejudice. 

2. Costs and attorney's fees in accordance with l.R.C.P. 54, Idaho Code 

Section 12-120, Idaho Code Section 12-121, Idaho Code Section 12-123, and 

l.R.C.P. 11. 

3. Any other relief, legal or equitable, to which the Defendants have any right 

or entitlement. 

111. 

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES 

1. The complaint is subject to the doctrine of "estoppel," including, without 

limitation, quasi-estoppel. See l.R.C.P. 8(c). 

2. The complaint is subject to the doctrine of "laches." See l.R.C.P. 8(c). 

3. The complaint is subject to the doctrine of "release." See l.R.C.P. 8(c). 

4. The complaint is subject to the doctrine of "waiver." See l.R.C.P. 8(c). 

5. The complaint is subject to the "statute of limitations," including, without 

limitation, Idaho Code Section 5-203 to 5-213, Idaho Code Section 5-217, Idaho Code 

Section 5-218, and Idaho Code Section 5-224. See l.R.C.P. 8(c). 

6. The complaint is subject to the doctrine of unclean hands. See l.R.C.P. 

8(c) ("any other matter constituting an avoidance or affirmative defense"). 

7. The complaint does not comply with the provisions of Idaho Code Section 

6-415. In this regard, the Defendants hereby reserve the right to remove any and all 

improvements in accordance with Idaho Code Section 45-414. 
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8. The Defendant hereby reserves the right to hereafter amend his answer in 

order to include any and all other affirmative defenses to the complaint. 

IV. 

COMPULSORY COUNTERCLAIMS 

The Defendants hereby allege the following compulsory counterclaims against 

the Plaintiffs: 

1. James C. Kvamme and Debra Kvamme are residents of Bonneville 

County, Idaho. 

2. V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen Campbell are residents of Bonneville 

County, Idaho. 

3. The Defendants are the owners of record of the real property on 

EXHIBIT B, duly attached to the COMPLAINT herein, dated June 30, 2010. 

4. The Plaintiffs claim an "estate or interest" in the real property that lies 

north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property. 

5. The Plaintiffs' claim is "adverse" to the Defendants' estate or interest 

therein. 

6. Thus, the court has the power to determine the parties' claims to the real 

property that lies north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property. 

See Idaho Code Section 6-401. 

7. In addition, the court has the power to "declare the rights, status, and 

other legal relations" of the parties to the real property that lies north of the fence 

between their respective parcels of real property. See Idaho Code Section 10-1201 and 

Idaho Code Section 10-1202. 

ANSWER-6 
024 



8. The Defendants have the right to "set forth two or more statements of a 

claim ... alternatively or hypothetically." See l.R.C.P. 8(e)(2) and Idaho Code Section 

5-335. 

9. The Defendants respectfully "set forth" or allege the following claims 

against the Plaintiffs: 

a. The Defendants are entitled to a decree, quieting title to 

them to the real property that lies north of the fence between their 

respective parcels of real property. See Idaho Code Section 6-401 et seq. 

b. The Defendants made improvements to the real property 

that lies north of the fence between their respective parcels of real 

property-to wit, the Defendants installed an irrigation system, including, 

without limitation, a mainline, pump, and pivot, constructed an access for 

ingress and egress to operate and maintain the irrigation system, and put 

panels in the fence for the irrigation system. Thus, the "value of such 

improvements must be allowed as a set-off' against any damages for the 

Plaintiffs herein; in the alternative, the Defendants have the right to 

"remove" the improvements. See Idaho Code Section 6-404 and Idaho 

Code Section 6-414. 

c. The Plaintiffs are liable to the Defendants for the value of the 

foregoing improvements, based on the doctrine of breach of contract, 

including, without limitation, express contract and contract implied in fact, 

the doctrine of quasi contract, including, without limitation, constructive 

contract and contract in law, the doctrine of unjust enrichment, the 
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doctrine of quantum meruit, and/or the doctrine of estoppel, including, 

without limitation, quasi-estoppel; in the alternative, the Plaintiffs are liable 

to the Defendants for the cost of removing the foregoing improvements, 

based on the doctrine of breach of contract, including, without limitation, 

express contract and contract implied in fact, the doctrine of quasi 

contract, including, without limitation, constructive contract and contract in 

law, the doctrine of unjust enrichment, the doctrine of quantum meruit, 

and/or the doctrine of estoppel, including, without limitation, quasi-

estoppel. 

d. The Defendants have the right to examine and survey the 

real property that lies north of the fence between their respective parcels 

of real property in accordance with Idaho Code Section 6-405. 

e. The Defendants are entitled to a declaratory judgment, 

determining that they own the real property that lies north of the fence 

between their respective parcels of real property. See Idaho Code 

Section 10-1201 et seq. 

f. The Defendants are the owners of the real property that lies 

north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property, based 

on the doctrine of boundary by agreement or acquiescence. 

g. The Defendants are the owners of the real property that lies 

north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property, based 

on the doctrine of quasi-estoppel. 
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h. The Defendants are the owners of the real property that lies 

north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property, based 

on the doctrine of adverse possession. 

10,. The Defendants have retained the services of Justin R. Seamons, 

attorney at law, to represent them in this case. 

11. The Defendants have the right to recover the costs and attorney's fees 

that they incur in this case from the Plaintiffs in accordance with l.R.C.P. 54, Idaho 

Code Section 12-120, Idaho Code Section 12-121, Idaho Code Section 12-123, 

l.R.C.P. 11, Idaho Code Section 6-402, and/or Idaho Code Section 10-1210. 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

The Defendants respectfully request the following relief against the Plaintiffs: 

1. A decree, quieting title to them to the real property that lies north of the 

fence between their respective parcels of real property. 

2. The "value" of the improvements in this case-to wit, the value of the 

irrigation system, including, without limitation, the mainline, pump, and pivot, the access 

for ingress and egress to operate and maintain the irrigation system, and the panels in 

the fence for the irrigation system-as a "set-off' against damages for the Plaintiff herein; 

in the alternative, the right to "remove" the improvements. 

3. The value of the foregoing improvements; in the alternative, the cost of 

removing the foregoing improvements. 

4. The right to examine and survey the real property that lies north of the 

fence between their respective parcels of real property. 
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5. A declaratory judgment, determining that they own the real property that 

lies north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property. 

6. A determination or decree that the Defendants own the real property that 

lies north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property, based on the 

doctrine of boundary by agreement or acquiescence. 

7. A determination or decree that the Defendants own the real property that 

lies north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property, based on the 

doctrine of quasi-estoppel. 

8. A determination or decree that the Defendants own the real property that 

lies north of the fence between their respective parcels of real property, based on the 

doctrine of adverse possession. 

9. Costs and attorney's fees; in this regard, the Defendants are 

"seeking attorney fees and the dollar amount thereof in case judgment is entered by 

default" is $5,000.00. See l.R.C.P. 54(e)(4). 

10. Any other relief, legal or equitable, to which the Defendants have any right 

or entitlement. 

V. 

PERMISSIVE COUNTERCLAIMS 

The Defendants hereby reserve the right to hereafter amend their answer in 

order to include any and all permissive counterclaims against the Plaintiffs in 

accordance with l.R.C.P. 13(b). 
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VI. 

THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS 

The Defendants hereby reserve the right to hereafter amend their answer in 

order to include any and all third-party claims in accordance with l.R.C.P. 14(a) 

VII. 

DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 

The Defendants hereby demand a trial by jury of any and all "issues triable of 

right by a jury." The Defendants do not stipulate or otherwise agree to a "jury consisting 

of any other number of persons less than 12." See l.R.C.P. 38(b). 

Dated July 27, 2010. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I served a copy of the foregoing ANSWER, COUNTERCLAIM, AND DEMAND 

FOR TRIAL BY JURY on the following person on July 27, 2010: 

Kipp L. Manwaring 
COURT MAIL 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
381 Shoup Avenue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Camp bells 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. CV-20410-3879 

REPLY TO COUNTERCLAIM 

The Carnpbells reply to the Kvammes' counterclaim as follows: 

1. All allegations not specifically admitted are deemed denied. 

2. Paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, and 7 are admitted. 

3. Paragraphs 5, 9.a., 9.c., 9.d., 9.e., 9.f., 9.g., 9.h., and 11 are denied. 

4. That portion of paragraph 9.b. alleging the Kvammes have installed a pump on 

the Campbells' real property is admitted and in accordance with LC. §§ 6-403 and 405, the 

Camp bells agree the K vammes may remove all improvements but must provide sufficient surety 

to protect the Campbells from any damage caused by removal together with restoration of the 

Camp bells' property to its condition prior to installation of the improvements, including 
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restoration of a lateral ditch and headgate. All costs for such removal and restoration are the 

obligation of the Kvammes. All other allegations in paragraph 9.b. are denied. 

5. Paragraphs 8 and 10 require no responsive pleading. 

6. In accordance with LC.§§ 12-120 and 121, the Campbells are entitled to an 

award of their court costs and reasonable attorney fees. 

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES 

1. Waiver. 

2. Estoppel and quasi-estoppel. 

3. The K vammes have failed to allege 20 years of adverse use in accordance with 

state statutes. 

4. The Kvammes knowingly installed improvements on the Campbells' land and are 

not entitled to any damages or set-off for those improvements. 

5. A survey has been completed of the property. 

6. The Kvammes have not paid any taxes on any portion of the Campbells' real 

property. 

7. The Camp bells have never agreed to treat the fence between their property and 

the K vammes' property as the boundary. 

8. The Campbells have never entered into any contract, express or implied, with the 

Kvammes. 

9. Lack of consideration to sustain any contract, express or implied, or quasi-

contract. 

10. Lack of part performance to sustain any contract, express or implied, or quasi-

contract. 

11. The Campbells have never received nor retained any benefit or value of any 

improvements made upon their property by the K vammes. 

12. The Campbells have no obligation to pay the Kvammes for removing any 

improvements from the Campbells' property. 

Reply to Counterclaim - Page 2 
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Wherefore the Camp bells request relief as follows: 

1. Dismissal of the K vammes' counterclaim and the K vammes take nothing. 

2. An award of the Camp bells court costs and reasonable attorney fees. 

3. For such further and other relief as the court deems just and equitable. 

Dated this J'2- day of August, 2010. 

~~ KiPP>Mfil1waring ~ 

Reply to Counterclaim - Page 3 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the /&th.day of August, 2010, a true and correct copy of 
the foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Reply to Counterclaim - Page 4 
10504-CA 

[ ] Hand Delivered 
ltJ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other ________ _ 

Leslie Northrup 
Paralegal 
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Justin R. Seamons 
414 Shoup Avenue 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
Telephone Number: (208) 542-0600 
Facsimile Number: (208) 529-4166 
Idaho State Bar Number: 3903 

Attorney for Defendants 

COUNTY 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN ) 
CAMPBELL, ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, ) 

) Case No. CV 10-3879 
vs. ) 

) NOTICE OF SERVICE 
JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA ) 
KVAMME, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

~~~~~~~~~-) 

The Defendants served the following documents on the Plaintiffs on 

September 6, 2010: 

1. INTERROGATORIES (Nos. 1 through 18) 

2. REQUESTS FOR PRODUCTION (Nos. 1 through 27) 

Dated September 6, 2010. 

NOTICE OF SERVICE - 1 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I served a copy of the foregoing NOTICE OF SERVICE on the following person 

on September 6, 2010: 

Kipp L. Manwaring 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, ID 83405-0271 

NOTICE OF SERVICE - 2 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. - ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
381 Shoup Avenue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. CV-20410-3879 

NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE -
Plaintiffs' Response 

TY 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on this 30th day of September, 2010, I certify that I 

served a true and correct copy of Plaintiffs' Response to Defendants' Interrogatories and 

Requests for Production, pursuant to Rules 33, 34 and 36 of the Idaho Rules of Civil 

Procedure, upon the following individuals by the method indicated below: 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Notice of Compliance - Page 1 
10504-CA 

[X] Hand Delivered 
( ] U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other _______ _ 

Paralegal 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V LEO CAMPBELL, et al, 

Plaintiffs, 
vs. 

JAMES C KVAMME, et al, 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. CV-2010-3879 

ORDER REFERRING CASE 
TO MEDIATION 

The Court, being duly advised, concludes that this case is appropriate for referral to 

mediation under I.R.C.P. 16(k). 

Therefore, this case is hereby referred to mediation pursuant to I.R.C.P. 16(k). The 

parties are hereby ordered to confer and select a mediator. If a mediator is not selected within a 

reasonable amount of time, the parties are to notify the Court and the Court will appoint the 

mediator. 

The final mediation session must be completed by March 25, 2011, unless this time 

period is extended by court order. 

All named parties or their agents with full authority to settle, together with the attorneys 

responsible for handling the trial in this cause, are directed to be present during the entire 

mediation process pursuant to LR. C.P. l 6(k)(l 0), unless otherwise excused by the mediator upon 

a showing of good cause or by order of this Court. 
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The costs of mediation are to be divided and borne equally by the parties. 

Within seven (7) days following the last mediation session, the mediator is directed to 

advise Court only whether the case has, in whole or in part, been settled. 

case. 

Counsel and parties are directed to proceed in a good faith effort to attempt to resolve this 

All discovery and other proceedings are not stayed pending mediation as provided herein. 

IT IS SO ORDERED this Iih day of October 2010. 

JON. 
District Judge 

038 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on this 13_ day of October 2010, I did send a true and correct copy 
of the foregoing document upon the parties listed below my mailing, with the correct postage 
thereon; by causing the same to be placed in the respective courthouse mailbox; or by causing the 
same to be hand-delivered. 

Kipp Manwaring 
PO Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, ID 83405 

Justin Seamons 
Courthouse Box 

ORDER REFERRING CASE TO MEDIATION- 3 

RONALD LONGMORE 
Clerk of the District Court 

By: ~tt'°-CA lJc:DL·b, J 

Deputy Clerk 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 0 

V LEO CAMPBELL, et al, ) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Plaintiffs, 

-vs.-

Case No. CV-2010-3879 

ORDER SETTING PRE-TRIAL 
CONFERENCE AND JURY TRIAL 

JAMES C. KVAMME, et al, 

Defendants. 

Pursuant to Rule 16 of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, the following pre-trial 

schedule shall govern all proceedings in this case: 

I. IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

1. Formal pre-trial conference pursuant to Rule 16, I.R.C.P., will be held on April 

11, 2011, at 10:00 a.m., at which time witness lists, exhibit lists and any proposed jury 

instructions must be filed. 

2. Jury Trial shall commence at 1 :30 p.m., on April 25, 2011. 

No later than ninety (90) days before the date set for trial, counsel shall disclose 

the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of expert witnesses that may be 

called to testify at trial. 

4. All discovery shall be completed seventy (70) days prior to trial.1 

5. All Motions for Summary Judgment must be filed sixty (60) days prior to trial in 

conformance with Rule 56(a), I.R.C.P. 

6. All Motions for Summary Judgment must be heard at least twenty-eight (28) days 

prior to trial. 

1 Discovery requests must be served so that timely responses will be due prior to the discovery cutoff date. 

040 
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II. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each attorney shall, no later than fourteen (14) 

days before trial: 

1. Submit a list of names to the court of persons who may be called to testify. 

2. Submit a descriptive list of all exhibits proposed to be offered into evidence to the 

court indicating which exhibits counsel have agreed will be received in evidence 

without objection and those to which objections will be made, including the basis 

upon which each objection will be made. 

3. Submit a brief to the court citing legal authorities upon which the party relies as to 

each issue of law to be litigated. 

4. If this is a jury trial, counsel shall submit proposed jury instructions to all parties 

to the action and the court. All requested instructions submitted to the court shall 

be in duplicate form as set out in Idaho Rule of Civil Procedure 51 (a)( 1 ). 

5. Submit that counsel have in good faith tried to settle this action. 

6. State whether liability is disputed. 

III. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each attorney shall no later than seven (7) days 

before trial: 

1. Submit any objections to the jury instructions requested by an opponent specifying 

the instruction and the grounds for the objection. 

2. Deposit with the clerk of the court all exhibits to be introduced, except those for 

impeachment. The clerk shall mark plaintiffs exhibits in numerical sequence as 

requested by plaintiff and shall mark all defendant's exhibits in alphabetical 

sequence as requested by defendant. 

3. A duplicate set of all exhibits to be introduced, except those for impeachment, 

shall be placed in binders, indexed, and deposited with the clerk of the court. 

IV. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that: 

1. Any exhibits or witnesses discovered after the last required disclosure shall 

immediately be disclosed to the court and opposing counsel by filing and service 

stating the date upon which the same was discovered. 

2. No exhibits shall be admitted into evidence at trial other than those disclosed, 
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listed and submitted to the clerk of the court in accordance with this order, except 

when offered for impeachment purposes or unless they were discovered after the 

last required disclosure. 

3. This order shall control the course of this action unless modified for good cause 

shown to prevent manifest injustice. 

4. The court may impose appropriate sanctions for violation of this order. 

DATED this 12th day of October 2011. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on this a day of October 201(]}, I did send a true and correct copy 
of the aforementioned Order upon the parties listed below by mailing, with the correct postage 
thereon, or by causing the same to be hand delivered. 

Kipp Manwaring 
PO Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, ID 83405 

Justin Seamons 
Courthouse Box 

ORDER SETTING PRE-TRIAL CONFERENCE AND JURY TRIAL- 4 

RONALD LONGMORE 
Clerk of the District Court 

By: dti\d"o<e: v 1 ,~ U 
Deputy Clerk 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. - ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

1 (' tJ 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

fa10 
Case No. CV~-3879 

MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE 
ORDER 

In accordance with I.R.C.P. 3l(d) and 30(d)(2), the Plaintiffs move the court for its order 

limiting the Defendants' depositions of the Plaintiff to Yz day. This motion is based upon the 

affidavit of counsel and the pleadings of record. 

Oral argument is requested. 

Dated this /.sda"y of November, 2010. 

Motion for Protective Order - Page I 
10504-CA 

~~ / 

Kipp L. Man~~ 
Attorney for the Campbells 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

-t6 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the p- day of November, 2010, a true and correct copy 

of the foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Motion for Protective Order - Page 2 
10504-CA 

J<J Hand Delivered 
[ ] U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other 

~~~~~~~~~~ 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. -ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Camp bells 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
: SS 

County of Bonneville ) 

J..~//) 
CaseNo. CV~-3879 

AFFIDAVIT OF COUNSEL 

KIPP L. MANWARING, being first duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as 

follows: 

I. I am a licensed attorney in the state of Idaho and represent the Plaintiffs in the 

above action. 

2. Attached as Exhibit A and incorporated here by reference is a true and correct 

copy of a letter dated November 10, 2010 from Dr. Eric Perttula concerning the Campbells' 

medical condition relevant to their ability to participate in depositions. 

Affidavit of Counsel [Protective Order] - Page I 
10504-CA 
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3. The K vammes have expressed their intent to require the Camp bells to sit for 2 

consecutive days of depositions. Attached as Exhibit B and incorporated here by reference is a 

true and correct copy of a letter dated November 1, 2010 from the Kvammes' counsel to me. 

4. Attached as Exhibit C and incorporated here by reference is a true and correct 

copy of a reply letter dated November 15, 2010 from me to counsel for the Kvammes. 

5. In my opinion, the issues framed by the pleadings do not justify requiring the 

Campbells to sit for 2 consecutive days for depositions. I believe the depositions should be 

limited to a reasonable time frame as noted by the Campbells' doctor. 

Dated this ;5day of November, 2010. 

~~ KiP1J¥al;wa~ 
Attorney for the Campbells 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this J:;J!; day of November, 2010. 

Affidavit of Counsel [Protective Order] - Page 2 
10504-CA 

~/~-
Notary PubliCfui~ 
Residing at: Moore, Idaho 
My commission expires: 0912912015 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the Jsili day of November, 2010, a true and correct copy 
of the foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Affidavit of Counsel [Protective Order] - Page 3 
10504-CA 

r.xJ Hand Delivered 
[ ] U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other 

~~~~~~~~~-
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ric W. Perttula M. 
2001 S. Woodruff Avenue. Suite 5, Idaho Falls, ID 83404 (208) 528-8777 

November 10, 2010 

To Whom It May Concern: 

I understand that my patients V. Leo and Kathy Campbell are involved in a legal matter 
that may require their involvement in a 2 day deposition. 

It is my medical opinion that a 2 day deposition would be detrimental to their health. 
Both Leo and Kathy would be able to participate in a Yz day deposition at best but 
certainly not a 2 day deposition. 

If I can be of fmiher assistance please don't hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, w 
Eric W. Pe1itula, MD 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. -ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

,. 
0 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. CV-20410-3879 

NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE -
Plaintiffs' Supplemental Response 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on this 23rct day of November, 2010, I certify that I 

served a true and correct copy of Plaintiffs' Supplemental Response to Defendants' 

Interrogatories, pursuant to Rules 33, 34 and 36 of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, upon the 

following individuals by the method indicated below: 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Notice of Compliance [Supplemental] - Page 1 
10504-CA 

[ ] Hand Delivered 
[X] U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other _______ _ 

~// /~~~~ 
Leslie Northrup. 
Paralegal 
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Justin R. Seamons 
414 Shoup Avenue 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
Telephone Number: (208) 542-0600 
Facsimile Number: (208) 529-4166 
Idaho State Bar Number: 3903 

Attorney for Defendants 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN ) 
CAMPBELL, ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, ) 

) 
vs. ) 

) 
JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA ) 
KVAMME, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~) 

Case No. CV 10-3879 

OBJECTION TO AFFIDAVIT OF 
COUNSEL 

The Plaintiffs recently filed a MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER, dated 

November 15, 2010. In support thereof, Kipp L. Manwaring filed an AFFIDAVIT OF 

COUNSEL. Mr. Manwaring is an attorney; in fact, he is the attorney of record for the 

Plaintiffs. 

I. 

The affidavit includes an attachment-namely, a purported letter from Eric W. 

Pertulla. The affidavit and attachment constitute hearsay and are not admissible. See 

l.R.E. 801 and 1.R.E. 802. 

OBJECTION TO AFFIDAVIT OF COUNSEL - 1 
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II. 

In addition, Mr. Manwaring is not "competent to testify to the matters stated 

therein," the affidavit is not based on "personal knowledge," and it does not "set forth 

such facts as would be admissible in evidence." See l.R.C.P. 56(e). 

Ill. 

In addition, the affidavit and attachment do not "set forth" or otherwise disclose 

the "data and other information considered by the witness in forming the opinions," they 

do not state the "basis and reasons therefor," and they do not state the "qualifications of 

the witness." See l.R.C.P. 26(b)(4)(A). 

IV. 

Thus, the Defendants hereby object to the AFFIDAVIT OF COUNSEL and 

respectfully request the court to strike it. See I.RE. 103(a)(1 ). 

Dated November 29, 2010. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I served a copy of the foregoing OBJECTION TO AFFIDAVIT OF COUNSEL on 

the following person on November 29, 2010: 

Kipp L. Manwaring 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, ID 83405-0271 

~-_--------... _____ _ 
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Justin R. Seamons 
414 Shoup Avenue 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
Telephone Number: (208) 542-0600 
Facsimile Number: (208) 529-4166 
Idaho State Bar Number: 3903 

Attorney for Defendants 

r 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN ) 
CAMPBELL, ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, ) 

) 
vs. ) 

) 
JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA ) 
KVAMME, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~) 

Case No. CV 10-3879 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO CROSS­
EXAMINE V. LEO CAMPBELL, 
KATHLEEN CAMPBELL, AND 
ERIC W. PERTULLA 

INTRODUCTION 

The Plaintiffs recently filed a MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE ORDER, dated 

November 15, 2010. In support thereof, Kipp L. Manwaring filed an AFFIDAVIT OF 

COUNSEL. The affidavit includes an attachment-namely, a purported letter from 

Eric W. Pertulla. 

NOTICE 

The Defendants hereby elect to cross-examine V. Leo Campbell, Kathleen 

Campbell, and Eric W. Pertulla at the hearing of the MOTION FOR PROTECTIVE 

ORDER-that is, at 11 :30 a.m. on December 6, 2010. The Defendants will 

NOTICE -1 
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cross-examine V. Leo Campbell, Kathleen Campbell, and Eric W. Pertulla in 

accordance with l.R.C.P. 26(c). See also l.R.C.P. 6(c)(2). In this regard, please note 

the following: 

a. Any party may elect to produce testimony and evidence at 

the hearing, or to cross-examine the adverse party and/or the adverse 

party's affiants, by giving notice to the court and the adverse party at least 

24 hours before the hearing, and such notice shall designate the person(s) 

sought to be cross-examined. The party against whom relief is sought 

shall be given written notice of the requirements of this subsection when 

served with the order to show cause. 

b. If a party timely gives notice of the intent to cross-examine, 

the adverse party shall have the person(s) designated in the notice 

present at the hearing, unless otherwise ordered by the court. If the 

adverse party or such party's affiants are not excused by the court and fail 

to appear as requested in such notice, the court may impose sanctions as 

it deems appropriate, including awarding attorney fees to the requesting 

party. 

Dated November 29, 2010. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I served a copy of the foregoing NOTICE OF INTENT TO CROSS-EXAMINE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL, KATHLEEN CAMPBELL, AND ERIC W. PERTULLA on the 

following person on November 29, 201 O: 

Kipp L. Manwaring 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, ID 83405-0271 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STA TE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V LEO CAMPBELL, et al, 

Plaintiffs, 

-vs.-

JAMES C. KVAMME, et al, 

Defendants: 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Case No. CV-2010-3879 

MINUTE ENTRY 

On December 2, 2010, at 10:35 AM, a Motion for Protective Order came on for hearing 

before the Honorable Jon J. Shindurling, District Judge, sitting in open court at Idaho Falls, 

Idaho. 

Ms. Nancy Marlow, Court Reporter, and Ms. Grace Walters, Deputy Court Clerk, were 

present. Mr. Kipp Manwaring appeared on behalf of the plaintiff. Mr. Justin Seamons appeared 

on behalf of the defendant. 

Mr. Manwaring presented argument on the Motion for Protective Order and requested the 

deposition time be limited due to the health of the plaintiff. 

Mr. Seamons clarified that this is the hearing on the Motion for Protective Order, then 

argued in opposition to the motion. 

The Court will not restrict amount of time in deposition, but will restrict the time of 

sitting in a deposition and allow full and complete discovery, if it amounts to several sessions, 

but expects counsel to be sensitive to the health of the clients. If either client gets exhausted, 

MINUTE ENTRY - 1 

057 



counsel will not get good answers, it would be to the benefit to stop the deposition and resume 

on another day. 

Mr. Seamons reserved the right to bill the costs of court reporters to the plaintiffs. 

Court was thus adjourned. 

c: Kipp Manwaring 
Justin Seamons 

MINUTE ENTRY - 2 

DURLING 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 
KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. -ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
381 Shoup Avenue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH .JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. CV-20410-3879 

NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE -
Plaintiffs' Second Supplemental 
Response 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on this 14th day of December, 2010, I certify that I 

served a true and correct copy of Plaintiffs' Second Supplemental Response to Defendants' 

Interrogatories, pursuant to Rules 33, 34 and 36 of the Idaho Rules of Civil Procedure, upon the 

following individuals by the method indicated below: 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Notice of Compliance [2nd Supplemental] - Page I 
10504-CA 

[ ] Hand Delivered 
l/(J U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other _______ _ 

~.P'4, 
Leslie Northrup. 
Paralegal 



Justin R. Seamons 
414 Shoup Avenue 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
Telephone Number: (208) 542-0600 
Facsimile Number: (208) 529-4166 
Idaho State Bar Number: 3903 

Attorney for Defendants 

I ~ l I , 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN ) 
CAMPBELL, ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, ) 

) Case No. CV 10-3879 
vs. ) 

) NOTICE OF SERVICE 
JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA ) 
KVAMME, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

The Defendants served the following documents on the Plaintiffs on January 14, 

2011: 

1. INTERROGATORY (No. 19) 

2. REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION (No. 28) 

Dated January 14, 2011. 

NOTICE OF SERVICE - 1 060 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I served a copy of the foregoing NOTICE OF SERVICE on the following person 

on January 14, 2011: 

Kipp L. Manwaring 
HAND DELIVERED 

NOTICE OF SERVICE - 2 Q 61 



CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. - ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Camp bells 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. CV-204'10-3879 

NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE -
Plaintiffs' Response to Additional 
Interrogatory and Request for 
Production 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on thisAy;J day of January, 2011, I certify that I 

served a true and correct copy of Plaintiffs' Response to Defendants' Additional 

Interrogatory and Request for Production, pursuant to Rules 33, 34 and 36 of the Idaho Rules 

of Civil Procedure, upon the following individuals by the method indicated below: 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

[ ] Hand Delivered 
KJ U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
t ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other ________ _ 

~~ Leslie NorthfUP. 
Paralegal 
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Justin R. Seamons 
414 Shoup Avenue 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
Telephone Number: (208) 542-0600 
Facsimile Number: (208) 529-4166 
Idaho State Bar Number: 3903 

Attorney for Defendants 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN ) 
CAMPBELL, ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, ) 

) 
VS. ) 

) 
JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA ) 
KVAMME, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

Case No. CV 10-3879 

DISCLOSURE OF EXPERT 
WITNESSES 

The Defendants' hereby "disclose the names, addresses, and telephone 

numbers of expert witnesses [who] may be called to testify at trial" in accordance with 

the court's ORDER SETTING PRETRIAL CONFERENCE AND JURY TRIAL, dated 

October 12, 2010. See ORDER, p. 1, Section 1, Paragraph 2. 

1. Robert Jon Meikle 
Mountain River Engineering 
1020 Lincoln Road 
Idaho Falls, ID 83401 
(208) 524-6175 

DISCLOSURE OF EXPERT WITNESSES - 1 
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2. Heather Elverud 
Idaho Title & Trust, Inc. 
400 Memorial Drive 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
(208) 522-7895 

3. Kim H. Leavitt 
Harper-Leavitt Engineering, Inc. 
985 North Capital Avenue 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
(208) 524-0212 

4. The Defendants hereby reserve the right to call Kevin 
Thompson. See PLAINTIFFS' RESPONSE TO DEFEN­
DANTS' INTERROGATORIES AND REQUESTS FOR 
PRODUCTION, p. 1, dated September 30, 2010. 

Dated January 25, 2011. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I served a copy of the foregoing DISCLOSURE OF EXPERT WITNESSES on the 

following person on January 25, 2011: 

Kipp L. Manwaring 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, ID 83405-0271 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. - ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
381 Shoup Avenue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Camp bells 

80 ViLLE COUN..,.., 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. CV- ;<010-3879 

MOTION TO CONTINUE 

The Plaintiffs, V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen Campbell, move the court for its order 

continuing the trial currently scheduled for April 25, 2011 at 1 :30 p.m. to another date 

convenient to court and counsel. The reason for the request is the added stress of trial could be 

fatal to Mr. Campbell in his current health condition. 

Oral argument is reserved. 

DATED this -7__ day of April, 2011. 

Motion to Continue - Page 1 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 2~7 day of April, 2011, a true and correct copy of 
the foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Motion to Continue - Page 2 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL, et al, 

Plaintiffs, 

-vs.-

JAMES C. KVAMME, et al, 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

~~~~~~~~~~) 

Case No. CV-2010-3879 

MINUTE ENTRY 
N 

On April 11 , 2011, at 10:00 AM., this pre-trial conference came on for hearing before the j 

Honorable Jon J. Shindurling, District Judge, sitting in open court at Idaho Falls, Idaho. 

Ms. Nancy Marlow, Court Reporter, and Ms. Grace Walters, Deputy Court Clerk, were 

present. Mr. Kipp Manwaring appeared on behalf of the plaintiffs. Mr. Justin Seamons appeared 

on behalf of the defendants. 

The Court received a Motion to Continue filed by Mr. Manwaring. 

Mr. Seamons advised the Court the depositions were not quite finished, and requested the 

trial be put on calendar during the winter months. 

The Court reset the trial for March 5, 2012 at 1 :30 PM. Pretrial conference is reset to 

February 27, 2012 at 10:00 AM. 

Court was thus adjourned. 

c: Kipp Manwaring 
Justin Seamons 

PRE-TRIAL CONFERENCE MINUTE ENTRY - I 

. HINDURLING 
Dist . ct Judge 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 
KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. - ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

I . 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. CV-2010-3879 

THE PLAINTIFFS' MOTION FOR 
PARTIAL SUMMARY 
JUDGMENT 

In accordance with I.R.C.P. 56(a), the Plaintiffs move the court for its order granting 

partial summary judgment on the issues identified below. 

The issues are: Where the Defendants have failed to pay taxes on the Plaintiffs' property 

for a period of 20 years prior to filing the counterclaim, have the Defendants failed to sustain 

their burden of proving adverse possession?; Where a convenience fence was erected by the 

common owner of an entire parcel of land solely for purposes of securing livestock as was never 

agreed to be a boundary fence, have the Defendants failed to sustain their burden of proving 

boundary by agreement?; Are the Plaintiffs' entitled to judgment quieting title to their land in 

their name free of all claims and interests of the Defendants?; and, Where the Plaintiffs agree 

that the Defendants may remove any improvements they may have made upon the Plaintiffs' 

Motion for Summary Judgment - Page 1 
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land, should the court render judgment allowing the Defendants to remove their improvements at 

their cost? 

This motion is based upon the pleadings of record, the Affidavit of Margy Spradling, 

Affidavit of Jo Campbell, Affidavit of Blake Mueller, Affidavit of Mark Hansen, Affidavit of 

Counsel, and the Memorandum in Support filed simultaneously with this motion. 

Oral argument is requested. 

DATED this LZ day of May, 2011. 

~,ry}--~ Kipp L. Manwaring 
Attorney for th~mp~ 

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the /2B day of May, 2011, a true and correct copy of the 
foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Motion for Summary Judgment - Page 2 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. - ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
381 Shoup Avenue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Camp bells 
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. CV-2010-3879 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT 
OF THE PLAINTIFFS' MOTION 
FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY 
JUDGMENT 

The common predecessor in interest to both parties was Hyrum L. Campbell. 

During the common ownership of the land now owned by the Campbells and the 

Kvammes, a fence was erected solely for convenience in fencing livestock in what was then 

pasture ground. Subsequently, the land was separated into two parcels. Neither the 

Campbells nor their predecessors have ever agreed that a convenience fence was the 

boundary between their land and the Kvammes' land. The Kvammes have never paid real 

property taxes on the Campbells' property. The Campbells are entitled to judgment 

quieting title to their land in their name. 

Memorandum in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment - Page 1 
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FACTS 
The following facts have been established through deposition testimony and affidavit. 

Chain of Title 
Hyrum L. Campbell and Charlotte Campbell were the prior owners of the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 17, Township 3 North, Range 38 E.B.M., in Bonneville County, Idaho. 

(Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit B; Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A-Deposition of V Leo Campbell, 

Vol. II, p. 153, I. 25; p. 153, 11. 1-24). 

Following Hyrum Campbell's death, his widow Charlotte by warranty deed recorded as 

Instrument No. 305350 in the Recorder's Office for Bonneville County, Idaho conveyed the Sliz 

of the Northeast Quarter of Section 17 to Leo H. Campbell and his wife, Phyllis B. Campbell. 

(Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit B; Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A-Deposition of V Leo Campbell, 

Vol. II, p. 155, 11. 6-25, p. 156, 11. 1-25). 

Charlotte Campbell by warranty deed recorded as Instrument No. 380830 in the 

Recorder's Office for Bonneville County, Idaho conveyed the Nliz of the Northeast Quarter of 

Section 17 to her daughter and son-in-law, Mary Killian and Delbert H. Killian. (Affidavit of 

Counsel, Exhibit B; (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A-Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. II, p. 

162, 11. 9-25; p. 163, 11. 1-17). The Nliz was given to the Killians for a place to live due to their 

poverty resulting from loss of their own farm property. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A­

Deposition ofV Leo Campbell, Vol. II, p. 159, 11. 18-25; p. 160, 11. 1-19). 

By Personal Representative's Deed recorded as Instrument No. 1122583 in the 

Recorder's Office for Bonneville County, Idaho the Estate of Delbert Killian conveyed title to 

the Kvammes. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit C). 

Leo H. Campbell and Phyllis B. Campbell partitioned the Sliz of the NE\!4 of Section 17 

and conveyed separate parcels to their three children. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit B). By gift 

deed recorded as Instrument No. 774870 in the Recorder's Office for Bonneville County, Idaho 

Leo H. Campbell and Phyllis B. Campbell conveyed title to 22.3 acres to V. Leo Campbell. 

(Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit B; Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo 

Campbell, Vol. II, p. 166, 11. 14-20; p. 167, 11. 1-13). In turn, through various recorded deeds, V. 

Leo Campbell conveyed to he and his wife Kathleen Campbell (the Campbells) title to their 

portion of the Sliz of the NE\!4 of Section 17. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit B). By warranty deed 

recorded as Instrument No. 607254 in the Recorder's Office for Bonneville County, Idaho Leo 

H. Campbell and Phyllis B. Campbell conveyed title to approximately 1.14 acres to the 
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Campbells. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit B; Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V 

Leo Campbell, Vol. II, p. 163, 11. 23-25; p. 164, 11. 1-15). 

The Campbells own two contiguous parcels of real property: a small parcel where the 

Campbells' home is situated and a larger 22-acre farm parcel. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit B; 

Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. II, p. 166, 11. 14-20; p. 167, 

11. 1-13; Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit B). 

Orientation of the Properties and History of Use 
The Campbells' two parcels abut the southern described boundary of the Kvammes NYz 

of the NE1/4 of Section 17. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit D). Lying fifteen feet south of th~ 

coterminous described boundary of the parties' respective parcels and entirely within the 

Campbells' land is a fence (disputed fence). (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit D). 

In 2008 the Kvammes installed a center pivot irrigation system. A portion of the 

Kvammes' center pivot pad together with a pump and mainline encroach upon the Campbells' 

land. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit D). 

Either prior to or during Hyrum Campbell's ownership of the entire NE 1/4 of Section 17, 

the disputed fence was erected. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo Campbell, 

Vol. III, p. 218, 11. 7-25, p. 219, 11. 1-25, p. 220, 11. 1-4; Affidavit of Margy Spradling; Affidavit of 

Jo Campbell). 

At some point in time the entire NEl/i was enclosed by a perimeter fence. (Affidavit of 

Counsel, Exhibit A Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. II, p. 13, 11. 1-18). Several interior 

convenience fences were erected over the years in the SYz of the NEl/i of Section 17. (Affidavit of 

Counsel, Exhibit A Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. III, p. 185, 11. 12-25; p. 186, 11. 1-9). 

While he was alive, Hyrum Campbell farmed, grazed cattle and raised animals on the 

entire NEl/i of Section 17. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A Deposition ofV Leo Campbell, Vol. 

II, p. 158, 11. 23-25; p. 159, 11. 1-17; p. 160, 11. 11-25; p. 161, 11. 1-2). Prior to the Killians 

occupying the NYz of the NEl/i of Section 17, Leo H. Campbell fanned and kept animals on the 

entire NEl/i. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A -Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. II, p. 157, 11. 

7-25; p. 158, 11. 1-11; p. 160, 11. 9-25; p. 161, 11. 1-10). 

The disputed fence consists of wood and steel posts with about three to six strands of 

barbed wire. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. III, p. 188, 

11. 13-16; p. 189, 11. 1-4). The disputed fence was solely for convenience in controlling horses 

and livestock. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. III, p. 191, 
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11. 22-24, p. 220, 11. 23-25, p. 221, 11. 1-6, p. 222, 11. 6-25, p. 223, 11. 23-25; p. 224, 11. 1-3, p. 227, 

11. 11-20, p. 228, 11. 4-7, p. 229, 11. 1-18; Affidavit of Margy Spradling; Affidavit of Jo Campbell). 

After Hyrum Campbell's death, the NE1/i was separated into two equal parcels and the NYz was 

conveyed to the Killians and the SYz was conveyed to Leo H. Campbell and Phyllis B. Campbell. 

(Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. II, p. 159, 11. 18-25; p. 

160, 11. 1-19; Affidavit of Margy Spradling). 

After Hyrum Campbell's death, the disputed fence continued to stand, but the 

neighboring family members did not treat or consider that fence to be the boundary of their 

properties. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. III, p. 224, 11. 

23-25; p. 225, 11. 1-6; Affidavit of Margy Spradling; Affidavit of Jo Campbel[). Because the 

Killians and Leo and Phyllis Campbell were family, no one objected to the disputed fence or its 

location or felt any need to move the fence. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V 

Leo Campbell, Vol. III, p. 235, 11. 12-25, p. 240, 11. 21-25, p. 241, 11. 1-3; Affidavit of Margy 

Spradling; Affidavit of Jo Campbel[). 

Leo H. Campbell knew the fence was not on the property line and knew his property 

boundary was some few feet north of the fence. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A Deposition of 

V Leo Campbell, Vol. III, p. 239, 11. 4-11; Affidavit of Margy Spradling; Affidavit of Jo 

Campbel[). Leo H. Campbell had lived on his property for over 40 years. (Affidavit of Counsel, 

Exhibit A-Deposition ofV Leo Campbell, Vol. II, p. 130, 11. 9-13). 

V. Leo Campbell has lived on his property for 30 years and has known of the disputed 

fence since he was six years of age. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo 

Campbell, Vol. 1, p. 82, 11. 5-25; Vol. II, p. 130, 11. 6-8). Since about age 6, V. Leo Campbell has 

known the true boundary of the property was several feet north of the disputed fence. (Affidavit 

of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. 1, p. 82, 11. 5-25; p. 83, 11. 1-12; 

Vol. III, p. 225, 11. 4-7). 

As part of the Campbells' plans to sell their property, they obtained a survey to confirm 

the dimensions of their land. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A Deposition of V Leo Campbell, 

Vol. III, p. 213, 11. 20-25, p. 214, 11. 1-2). That survey confirmed the disputed fence lies within 

the Campbells' property. (Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit A - Deposition of V Leo Campbell, Vol. 

III, p. 213, 11. 20-25, p. 214, IL 1-2; Affidavit of Counsel, Exhibit D). 

Bonneville County assesses real property based upon the legal description contained in 

deeds of conveyance and not upon fence lines. (Affidavit of Blake Mueller). The Campbells have 
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been assessed real property taxes based upon the legal descriptions contained in deeds of record. 

(Affidavit of Blake Mueller). Bonneville County receives tax payments based upon the 

assessments as determined by the Assessor's Office. (Affidavit of Mark Hansen). 

Since their ownership of their property, the Campbells have been assessed and paid real 

property taxes on all their land in the SYz of the NE1!4 of Section 17. (Affidavit of Mark Hansen). 

No other person has paid any taxes assessed on the Campbells' land. (Affidavit of Mark Hansen). 

No part of the Kvammes' tax payments for their assessments on their property were in any 

manner applied to the Campbells' property. (Affidavit ofAfark Hansen). 

ARGUMENT 

Standard for Summary Judgment 
Summary judgment must be granted "if the pleadings, depositions, and admissions on 

file, together with the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact 

and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter oflaw." I.R.C.P. 56(c). In order to 

determine whether judgment should be entered as a matter of law, the trial court must review the 

pleadings, depositions, affidavits, and admissions on fi.le. I.R.C.P. 56( c ). 

The trial court liberally construes the record
1 
in the light most favorable to the party 

opposing the motion, drawing all reasonable inferences and conclusions in that party's favor. 

Tolmie Farms v. JR. Simplot Co., 124 Idaho 607, 609, 862 P.2d 299, 301 (1993); Doe v. 

Durtschi, 110 Idaho 466, 469, 716 P.2d 1238, 1241 (1986). If reasonable people could reach 

different conclusions or draw conflicting inferences· from the evidence, the motion must be 

denied. Featherston v. Allstate Insurance Co., 125 Idaho 840, 842, 875 P.2d 937, 939 (1994). 

However, if the evidence reveals no disputed issues of material fact, the trial court should 

grant summary judgment. I.R.C.P. 56(c); Olsen v. JA. Freeman Co., 117 Idaho 706, 720, 791 

P.2d 1285, 1299 (1990). If the district court sits as the trier of fact, it may draw reasonable 

inferences based upon the evidence before it and may grant summary judgment despite the 

possibility of conflicting inferences. Cameron v. Neal, 130 Idaho 898, 900, 950 P.2d 1237, 1239 

(1997). 

The party moving for summary judgment initially carries the burden to establish that 

there is no genuine issue of material fact and that he or she is entitled to judgment as a matter of 

law. Eliopulos v. Knox, 123 Idaho 400, 404, 848 P.2d 984, 988 (Ct. App. 1992). "Rule 56( c) 

mandates the entry of summary judgment, after adequate time for discovery and upon motion, 
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against a party who fails to make a showing sufficient to establish the existence of an element 

essential to that party's case, and on which that party will bear the burden of proof at trial. In 

such a situation, there can be 'no genuine issue as to any material fact,' since a complete failure 

of proof concerning an essential element of the nonmoving party's case necessarily renders all 

other facts immaterial." Dunnick v. Elder, 126 Idaho 308, 311, 882 P.2d 475, 478 (Ct. App. 

1994), citing, Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 322-23, 106 S.Ct. 2548, 2552, 91 L.Ed.2d 

265 (1986). 

Pertinent to the issues in this case are the following additional standards. Because the 

party holding title to property is presumed to be the legal owner, someone claiming ownership of 

that property must prove his or her claim by "clear, satisfactory, and convincing evidence." 

Anderson v. Rex Hayes Family Trust, 145 Idaho 741, 744, 185 P.3d 253, 256 (2008). "When an 

action will be tried before the court without a jury, the trial court as the trier of fact is entitled to 

arrive at the most probable inferences based upon the undisputed evidence properly before it and 

grant the summary judgment despite the possibility of conflicting inferences." Shawver v. 

Huckleberry Estates, L.L.C., 140 Idaho 354, 360-61, 93 P.3d 685, 691-92 (2004). 

Boundary by Agreement 
"Boundary by agreement or acqmescence has two elements: (1) there must be an 

uncertain or disputed boundary and (2) a subsequent agreement fixing the boundary." Luce v. 

Marble, 142 Idaho 264, 271, 127 P.3d 167, 174 (2005). Lack of uncertainty of the true boundary 

is fatal to the first element. Cox v. Clanton, 137 Idaho 492, 493, 50 P.3d 987, 988 (2002); Luce v. 

Marble, 142 Idaho 264, 127 P.3d 167 (2005). 

In Idaho, the phrase 'boundary by acquiescence' is often used 
interchangeably with 'boundary by agreement,' although the latter more 
accurately describes the doctrine. To prove boundary by agreement, there 
must be an uncertain or disputed boundary and a subsequent agreement 
fixing the boundary. The agreement need not be express, but may be 
implied by the surrounding circumstances and conduct of the parties. [T]he 
long existence and recognition of a fence as a boundary, in the absence of 
any evidence as to the manner or circumstances of its original location, 
strongly suggests that the fence was located as a boundary by agreement. 
Acquiescence is merely regarded as competent evidence of the agreement. 
[A ]n agreement fixing the boundary line, whether express or implied, 1s 
essential to a claim of boundary by acquiescence. 

Cox v. Clanton, 137 Idaho 492, 493, 50 P.3d 987, 988 (2002)( citations omitted). 

The doctrine of boundary by agreement has long been established in Idaho's 
case law. To have a boundary by agreement, the location of the true 
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boundary line must be uncertain or disputed and there must be a subsequent 
agreement fixing the boundary. The agreement need not be express, but 
may be implied by the surrounding circumstances and conduct of the 
parties. The existence of such an agreement between adjoining landowners 
may appear where their property rights have been defined by the erection of 
a fence, followed by treatment of the fence by the adjoining owners as the 
boundary. Further, the long existence and recognition of a fence as a 
boundary, in the absence of any evidence as to the manner or circumstances 
of its original location, strongly suggests that the fence was located as a 
boundary by agreement. 

* * * 
Thus, the doctrine of boundary by agreement requires (1) an uncertain or 
disputed boundary and (2) an express or implied agreement subsequently 
fixing the boundary. 

Johnson v. Newport, 131 Idaho 521, 522-523, 960 P.2d 742, 743-744 (1998)(citations omitted). 

"Where the location of a true boundary line between coterminous owners is known to 

either of the parties, or is not uncertain, and is not in dispute, an oral agreement between them 

purporting to establish another line as the boundary between their properties constitutes an 

attempt to convey real property in violation of the statute of frauds ... and is invalid." Downing 

v. Boehringer, 82 Idaho 52, 56, 349 P.2d 306, 308 (1960). 

In recognizing the reliance people often place on fences to denote boundaries, 
courts should not overlook the equally important reliance that people place on 
legal descriptions in public records to define the boundaries of ownership. A 
description used and relied upon repeatedly by many persons-in addition to the 
owners of the property-for perhaps a century or longer, should not be disregarded 
lightly to accommodate the theory of boundary by oral agreement. 

Dreher v. Powell, 120 Idaho 715, 721, 819 P.2d 569, 575 (Ct. App. 1991). 

Where stock fences are erected as a barrier to livestock for the convenience of the 

property owner and not to mark the boundary of land, such fences cannot form the basis of 

boundary by agreement. Griffin v. Anderson, 144 Idaho 376, 378, 162 P.3d 755, 757 (2007); Cox 

v. Clanton, 137 Idaho 492, 50 P.3d 987 (2002). 

"A fence is not converted into a boundary merely because it exists for the statutory period 

or longer." Trunnell v. Ward, 86 Idaho 555, 561, 380 P.2d 221 (1964). 

There has been no historic uncertainty of the boundary between the NY2 and the SV2 of the 

NEl/i of Section 17. V. Leo Campbell has known since childhood that the northern boundary of 

his property was a few feet to the north of the disputed fence. 

Substantial evidence establishes that during Hyrum L. Campbell's common ownership of 

the NEl/i of Section 17, the disputed fence was erected for the purpose of controlling livestock 
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and not to create a boundary. Corrals used for draft horses and other animals kept by the 

Campbells abutted the disputed fence. Indeed, as the owner of the entire NEY4 of Section 17, 

neither Hyrum L. Campbell nor his predecessor in interest would need to create a boundary fence 

by the erection of the disputed fence. 

At no time since the erection of the disputed fence have the subsequent partitioned 

owners of the coterminous NYz and SYz of the NEY4 ever expressly agreed that the fence was the 

boundary. 

The legal descriptions for the Campbells' property and the Kvammes' property clearly 

identify the actual proportions of their respective parcels. Those legal descriptions have been 

relied upon for many years for purposes of identifying ownership and tax assessments. 

The Kvammes' claim of boundary by agreement rests solely on an argument that the 

Campbells and their predecessors in interest impliedly agreed through acquiescence with the 

Killians that the disputed fence was the boundary. The evidence does not sustain the Kvammes' 

burden of proving by clear and convincing evidence an implied agreement. 

Consequently, the Kvammes' cannot prove by clear and convincing evidence their claim 

for boundary by agreement. 

Adverse Possession 
Idaho Code § 5-210 defines the elements of adverse possession under an oral claim of 

right. It specifically provides, "that in no case shall adverse possession be considered established 

under the provisions of any sections of this code unless it shall be shown that the land has been 

occupied and claimed for a period of twenty (20) years continuously, and the party or persons, 

their predecessors and grantors, have paid all the taxes, state, county or municipal, which have 

been levied and assessed upon such land according to law." 

"The burden of showing all of the essential elements of adverse possession is upon the 

party seeking title thereunder and every element of adverse possession must be proved with clear 

and satisfactory evidence." Baxter v. Craney, 135 Idaho 166, 171, 16 P.3d 263, 268 (2000). 

Assessments for real property taxes based on a metes and bounds description, as opposed 

to lot number or acreage assessments, make it possible to determine from the tax assessment 

record the precise quantum of property being assessed. Baxter v. Craney, supra; Trappett v. 

Davis, 102 Idaho 527, 633 P.2d 592 (1981). 

The Bonneville County Assessor's Office assesses real property taxes based upon the 

legal descriptions contained in deeds of record. Where, as here, the legal description for the 
Memorandum in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment - Page 8 
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Carnpbells' property is clearly defined, the Assessor's Office relied upon that description. The 

Assessor's Office does not rely upon or consider fence lines in making a determination of the 

acreage of real property for tax assessments purposes. 

The Bonneville County Treasurer's Office collects tax payments based upon assessments 

performed by the Assessor's Office. All tax payments received are applied to the real property 

described in the assessment. No part of the tax collections received on the assessment of the 

Kvammes' real property were applied to the Campbells' real property. The Campbells have paid 

all taxes assessed on their real property. 

Accordingly, the Kvammes cannot prove by clear and convincing evidence their claim 

for adverse possession. 

Quiet Title 
In quiet title actions, the plaintiff "asserts his own estate and declares generally that the 

defendant claims some estate in the land, without defining it, and avers that the claim is without 

foundation, and calls on the defendant to set forth the nature of his claim, so that it may be 

determined by decree." Dickerson v. Brewster, 88 Idaho 330, 336, 399 P.2d 407, 410 (1965). 

Once the parties have set forth the bases of their respective claims, the trial court must then 

determine the ownership rights of the parties based on the facts involved. "In making this 

determination, the district court should examine the facts by applying relevant legal principles 

and theories that define the property rights of the parties." Drew v. Sorensen, 133 Idaho 534, 

541, 989 P.2d 276 (1999); Loomis v. Union Pacific Railroad Co., 97 Idaho 341, 544 P.2d 299 

(197 5); I. c. § 6-401. 

The Campbells have established their title to their real property. The only challenges the 

Kvammes' have asserted to the Campbell's title was the claims of boundary by agreement and 

adverse possession. Those claims have been shown unsupportable. 

The Campbells are entitled to judgment quieting in their names title to their real property 

free of all claims and interests of the K vammes. 

Right to Improvements 
In their counterclaim, the K vammes asserted a right to recover any improvements they 

have made that are found or encroach upon the Campbells' property. In reply to the 

counterclaim, the Campbells disclaimed any interest in the Kvammes' improvements. 

Memorandum in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment - Page 9 
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Under I.C. §§ 6-403, 405 and 414, the Kvammes may, upon order of the court, remove 

any improvements from the Campbells' property so long as the Kvammes do not injure the 

Campbells' real estate. The Kvammes may be required to post sufficient surety to cover any 

potential damages caused by their removal of any improvements. LC. § 6-405. 

Although the Campbells are not asserting any rights to or interest in the Kvammes' 

irrigation system presently encroaching in part upon the Campbells' property, in the Kvammes 

fail to timely remove their irrigation system from the Campbells' property, such improvements 

should be deemed abandoned and adjudged part of the Campbells' real estate as part of quiet title 

judgment. 

CONCLUSION 

There are no genuine issues of material fact concerning the K vammes' claims of 

boundary by agreement and adverse possession. As a matter of law, the Camp bells are entitled to 

summary judgment on those claims. 

With summary judgment on the claims of boundary by agreement and adverse 

possession, the Campbells' are entitled to summary judgment quieting in their names title to their 

real property free of the K vammes' claims and interests. 

Where the Campbells have agreed that the Kvammes' may retain their improvements, 

summary judgment should be entered directing the K vammes at their sole cost to remove their 

improvements from the Campells' land and restore the Campbells' land for any injury caused by 

removal of the Kvammes' property. 

DATED this / 7 day of May, 2011. 
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STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

VS. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 
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STATE OFIDAHO ) 
: SS 

County of Bonneville ) 

Case No. CV-2010-3879 
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KIPP L. MANWARING, being first duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as 

follows: 

1. I am a licensed attorney in the state of Idaho and represent the Plaintiffs in the 

above action. 

2. Attached as Exhibit A and incorporated here by reference is a true and correct 

copy of select pages from Volumes I, II, and III of the deposition of V. Leo Campbell. 

3. Attached as Exhibit B and incorporated here by reference are true and correct 

copies of deeds of record establishing the Camp bells' chain of title. 
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4. Attached as Exhibit C and incorporated here by reference are true and correct 

copies of deeds of record establishing the Kvammes' chain of title. 

5. Attached as Exhibit D and incorporated here by reference is a true and correct 

copy of a survey performed by Thompson Engineering. 

Dated this .JZ day of May, 2011. 

KippL. Man~V 
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DEP ION OF VEE LEO CAMPBELL, 1E I - 12/03i2010 
r= SIIEET 21 PAGE 81 =========~ PAGE 83 =============~ 

1 corner of the hundred and sixty acres that was out ~ A. Not a whole lot other than where the 
2 there. That's the first home that the folks were 2 ditches used to run and what was buried where. By 
3 ever in. Jo was a toddler then. 3 "what was buried where," we're talking about the 
4 Q. And that's the·· sorry, that's the home 4 south driveway at the folks's old place. That 
5 that the Robbins own today? I 5 property line is off about ten feet. 
6 A No. That's a home that isn't there. 6 Once upon a time, there was a potato 
7 This was beyond the banks of the Winkler Canal, the 7 cellar out there, and the ditch had to go around it, 
8 way I understand it That's where the home was. 8 so the fence went on the ditch line which put it off 
9 Q. What's the earliest date that you know 9 the property line by that same distance. 

1 O that they lived on the farm? 10 And there were several old car parts, 
11 A Probably after 1946 when I was born. 11 one thing and another, buried out there along the 
12 Q. And in 1946, in what home did they 12 old potato cellar. 
13 live? 13 MR. SEAMONS: Just let --
14 A They lived on -- at one oh -- one oh -- 14 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We have five minutes 
15 10519 or 10915 North 15th, the old family home out 15 of tape left. 
16 there. 16 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Is the old potato 
17 Q. Is that the one the Robbins live in 17 cellar gone? 
18 today? 18 A Yes,itis. 
19 A. Yes. 19 Q. Anythingelseyourecall? 
20 Q. Did you talk with your father or 20 A. No. 
21 correspond with your father about the facts of this 21 MR. SEAMONS: John, is it just a matter 
22 case? 22 of changing a tape, or is this a good place to stop 
23 A. No. My dad talked to me when I was a 23 for you for the day? 
24 kid about the farm, but not about the facts of this 24 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We can stop any time, 
25 case. Kind of hard to talk to a dead guy about the 25 but I'll have to change a tape because we'll run 

PAGE 82 =============~ ~ PAGE 84 =============~ 

1 facts of a case. 
2 Q. When you say he talked to you about tl1e 
3 farm·· 
4 A. Uh-huh. 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

Q. ··what did he discuss with you about 
the facts of this case? 

A. The property lines and where they were 
on both sides of the farm. 

Q. When did this conversation take place? 
A. Numerous times from the time I was six, 

eight years old, probably, on up until probably a 
few months before he killed himself. 

Q. What did he tell you? 
A. He told me where he thought the 

relative -- or where he thought the property lines 
were on both sides of the property, south and 
north. 

Q. And specifically what did he tell you in 
that regard? 

A. He told me the south property line fence 
would line up with the power poles on the Ucon 
Cemetery Road, and that the north property line 
would be fifteen to sixteen feet north of the fence 
line, that being my pasture fence. 

Q. Anything else he told you? 

www.TandTReporting.com 

1 out. We have four minutes left. So you can 
2 question for four more minutes, if you'd like. It's 
3 up to you. 
4 If it's a great place for you to stop, 
5 then stop here, or whatever. It doesn't matter. 
6 MR. SEAMONS: I've got miles to go, but 
7 do you want to stop here for the day? 
8 THE WITNESS: Well, I'll have to change 
9 oxygen bottles here in a few minutes, so it's 

10 probably as good a place as any to stop. 
11 MR. SEAMONS: Fair enough. Let's go 
12 ahead --
13 MR. MANWARING: My observation is we 
14 probably ought to just quit for the day. I can tell 
15 when Leo's getting worn out even though he doesn't 
16 want to admit when he's getting worn out. 
17 MR. SEAMONS: Do you want to say 
18 anything official to go off the record for the day? 
19 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: You're going to 
20 continue this, right? 
21 MR. SEAMONS: Yes. We're going to 
22 continue it 
23 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're not going to Q 8 3 
24 conclude it at this point, so we'll just go ~o ilqllilh1P.illl••••• 
25 record, and that's what we'll do. Okay? EXHIBIT 
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DEPOSIC --J OF VEE LEO CAMPBELL, VOL ~ II - 01/26/2011 
..- SHEET 3 Pl\GE 97 = PAGE 99 

~ 1 northeast quarter of Section 17? 1 answer. 
2 A. We ll , he had the whole hundred sixty at 2 THE WITNESS: Okay. I· 

3 one time. 3 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) When did your father 
\I 

4 Q. Your father did? 4 begin calling the farm the seventy-four acre farm? 

I 5 A. Yes. 5 A. He didn't. It was eighty acres. 
6 Q. When did your father get the entire one 6 Q. Why did you call it the seventy-four 

I 7 hundred sixty from your grandfather? 7 acre farm? 
8 A. I don't know. It was later after Marion 8 A. Because it has been reduced to that. 
9 Delbert starved out up to Poplar that grandpa split 9 Q. What happened to the other six acres? 

10 the farm and gave them the eighty acres that's on 10 A. I live on one of them, and we lost the 
11 the south side. 11 fo lks's home to some people my younger sister rented 
12 Q. When your father had the entire one 12 the home and yard area to. 
13 hundred and sixty acres, was that in ownership, or 13 Q. That would be the Robbins family? 
14 was he simply operating it? 14 A. Yes. 
15 A. He was buying it from granddad at the 15 Q. And your belief is that the acre around 
16 time. That's my understanding. 16 your home and the property around the Robbins home 
17 Q. Where did you get that understanding? 17 equals six acres? 
18 Who told you that? 18 A. Could be. I don't know for sure. 
19 A. My dad. 19 Q. But is that the reason you call it the 
20 Q. Was there any kind of a purchase 20 seventy-four acre farm? 
21 contract? 21 A. Yes. 
22 A. I assume there was. 22 Q. The eighty acres minus those two parcels 
23 Q. Did you ever see it? 23 only. 
24 A. No. 24 A. Well, the seventy-five acres and because 
25 Q. Was the one hundred and sixty acres ever 25 my brother and my sister each have twenty-five acres 

PAGE 98 PAGE 100 

1 deeded to your father? 1 plus the acre that my house is sitting on. 
2 A. I don't know. 2 Q. Who is Phyllis Campbell? 
3 Q. Do you know the year when your 3 A. My mother. 
4 grandfather purchased the property? 4 Q. When was she born? 
5 A. No, I don't. 5 A. 1919, July. 
6' Q. Do you know the year when your father 6 Q. Where was she born? 
7 moved onto the property? 7 A. Blackfoot. 
8 A. No, I don't. 8 Q. Was she ever married to any person other 
9 Q. Do you know the year when your 9 than your father, Leo H. Campbell? 

10 grandfather moved onto the property? 10 A. I don't think so. None that I know 
11 A. No, I don't. I don't think my 11 of. 
12 grandfather moved onto the property. I think he 12 Q. When did they get married? 
13 acquired it, or one of his predecessors. 13 A. Don't know. 
14 Q. Did your father ever move onto the 14 Q. Do you know the year? 
15 property? 15 A. Not for sure, no. It had been prior to 
16 A. Yes. 16 1940. 
17 Q. What year? 17 Q. Why do you say that? 
18 A. I don't know. 18 A. Because my brother was born in 1940. 
19 Q. In what year did your grandfather 19 Q. And they together had the four 
20 transfer half of the property·· 20 children? 
21 A. I don't know. 21 A. Yes. 
22 Q. ··to Mary? 22 Q. Did she have any siblings? 
23 A. -- that either. 23 A. Yes. 
24 MR. MANWARING: Leo, make sure you wait 24 Q. Are any of them still alive today? 
25 until the question's completely asked and then 25 A. Yes. 084 
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DE TION OF VEE LEO CA_NIPBELL, lJME II - 01/26/2011 
SHEET 11 PJ\_GE 129 ===========- PAGE 131 ============== 

~ MR. MANWARING: If he's going to testify f: Q. Okay. Let's put a Nat the top of the 
II 2 from it, we need to mark it. II 2 paper, then, for north. 

3 MR. SEAMONS: Okay. Mr. Campbell, can 3 A. Okay_ 
4 we continue? 4 Q. All right. Please mark south. 
5 MR. MANWARING: Is he going to testify 5 A. (Witness complying.) 
6 from this page? 6 Q. Please mark east and west respectively. 
7 MR. SEAMONS: Let's take another 7 A. (Witness complying.) 

I 8 break. 8 Q. Thank you. Along the northern boundary 
9 MR. MANWARING: All right. 9 of Section 17, is there a road? 

10 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Okay. We're off the 10 A. Yes. 
11 record. 11 Q. 113thNorth? 
12 (Abriefrecesswashad.) 12 A. lthinkit's15th,15thEast. 
13 MR. SEAMONS: Wny don't you mark that, 13 Q. Along the northern boundary is 
14 whatever you'd like to mark that. 14 15th East? 
15 MR. MANWARING: We'll have the reporter 15 A. Along the northern boundaries. 
16 mark this as a deposition exhibit. What are the 16 Q. Along the northern boundary of 
17 numbers. 17 Section 17, is there a road? 
18 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Did you want this on 18 A Yes. 
19 the record or not. 19 Q. Is that 113th North? 
20 MR. SEAMONS: Yeah. That's fine. I do 20 A I think so. I'm not aware of the 
21 not want that marked with a number. You could mark 21 numbers of those roads out there. 
22 that however you'd like, but not with a number. 22 Q. Okay. Along the eastern boundary of 
23 MR. MANWARING: A. 23 Section 17, is there a road? 
24 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: So you're ready to go 24 A Yes. 
25 back on? 25 Q. Would that be 15th East or Ucon Road-· 

= PAGE 130 = PAGic 132 ~ 

1 MR. SEAMONS: Yeah. 1 or St. Leon Road, pardon me? 
2 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're now on the 2 A. Yes. 
3 record. 3 Q. All right. Would you please mark 
4 (Deposition Exhibit A was marked for 4 St. Leon Road? 
5 identification.) 5 A. (Witness complying.) 
6 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Mr. Campbell, how 6 Q. And you don't know the number of the 
7 long have you purportedly lived in your house? 7 road on the northern boundary, but there is such a 
8 A. Thirty years or so. 8 road? 
9 Q. And how long did your father purportedly 9 A. Yes. This was the Ucon Road. 

10 live on this property? 10 Q. Now, with reference to the northeast 
11 A. Forty plus years, I assume. I think. 11 quarter, is there an exterior fence on the northern 
12 Don't know for sure. Couldn't give you the 12 boundary of the northeast quarter of Section 17? 
13 numbers. 13 A. That would be over here? 
14 Q. And do you hold yourself out as a person 14 Q. Yes. The northern boundary. 
15 that knows this property and the directions that 15 A. No, there isn't. There's a partial 
16 relate to it? 16 fence. 
17 A. Yes. 17 Q. Could you please mark the location of 
18 Q. With reference, then, to what you have 18 the partial fence. 
19 marked as the northeast quarter of Section 17, let's 19 A It would be about there. 
20 go back to Exhibit 4, and put the cardinal points on 20 Q. On the western boundary of the northeast 
21 the document. Please mark north, south, east, and 21 quarter, is there an exterior fence? 
22 west on Exhibit 4 for me. 22 A. Yes. 
23 A Okay. Now, the schools I went to, the 23 Q. Could you please mark that on the map. 
24 top of the piece of the paper was always north. 24 A (Witness complying.) 
25 That's what threw me off. 25 Q. On the southern boundary of the 085 
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DEP ON OF VEE LEO CAMPBELL, V E II - 01/26/2011 
~ :OHJ:,"''l' 1 , ·£., ........... 

1 Q. The initial fence ti1en enclosed all of 
2 the northeast quarter, correct? 
3 A. To my knowledge, yes. 
4 Q. And yow would agree with me that tliat 
5 would protect the land -· 
6 A. Yes. 
7 Q. ··enclosed within the fence? 
8 A. Yes. 
9 Q. And conversely, that fence would 

10 likewise protect the land from outside livestock 
11 roaming or drifting onto it, correct? 
12 A Yes. 
13 Q. Or trespassers coming onto it? 
14 A Yes. 
15 Q. And you would further agree that the 
16 fence was a substantial enclosure at the entire 
17 northeast quarter, correct? 
18 A Yes. 
19 Q. V'Vith reference to the northern boundary 
20 where the fence is no longer up today, who took that 
21 fence down? 
22 A. I believe Mr. Kvamme did. 
23 Q, With reference to the eastern boundary 
24 of the property where there was no longer a fence 
25 today, who took that fence down? 

PJ\GE 138 

1 A. I believe it was Mr. Kvamme and his 
2 hired man. 
3 Q. With reference to the northern boundary, 
4 when did Mr. Kvamme allegedly take that fence 
5 down? 
6 A. It would have been three, four years 
7 ago, after he acquired the property. 
8 Q. With reference to the eastern boundary 
9 of the northeast quarter, when did Mr. Kvamme 

10 allegedly take that fence down? 
11 A. About the same time. 
12 Q. And your testimony is that he took the 
13 eastern fence down all the way along the eastern 
14 boundary? 
15 A. Of my property and my brother and 
16 sister's, yes. 
17 Q. From the northeast corner clear to the 
18 southeast corner? 
19 A From the corner of my property to the 
20 corner of my brother's property, that fence was 
21 taken down. 
22 Q. And further south than that, does the 
23 fence still exist, or has it been taken down, too? 
24 A. I don't think there's a fence over 
25 there. 

www.TandTReporting.com 

n 3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

j 1 ~ 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

117 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

Q. Okay. 
A It's been taken down. 
Q. By Mr. Kvamme? 
A. Don't know. 
Q. Are you aware of any modifications to 

the exterior fence around the northeast quarter over 
the years? 

A. Yes. 
Q. What modifications have taken place to 

that exterior fence? 
A. I replaced posts on the old Killian 

homesite, around their corrals along the road. Hung 
new rails for my Aunt Mary. 

Q. Would that be the fence on the eastern 
boundary of the northeast quarter? 

A. That would be on the northern 
boundary. 

Q. On the northern boundary only? 
A. Yes. 
Q. And that is the section of fence that 

Mr. Kvamme has removed sometime since acquiring the 
property? 

A. No. That's part of the fence that's 
around the ground that Delbert kept for himself, 
around the old homestead, the house. 

,- PJ\GE 140 

1 Q. That would be the house in the northeast 
2 corner? 
3 A. Yes. 
4 Q. And you have marked a small box in the 
5 northeast corner of the northeast quarter. 
6 Is that the section of fence to which 
7 you're referring? 
8 A. Yes. 
9 Q. And that's the only section where you've 

10 performed repairs or made modifications? 
11 A On that fence, yes. 
12 Q. Are there any other exterior fences 
13 where you have performed repairs or modifications on 
14 the northeast quarter? 
15 A. No. 
16 Q. Do you know of any other person who has 
17 made repairs or modifications on the exterior fence 
18 of the northeast quarter? 
19 A Are we talking just about this fence or 
20 the entire. 
21 Q. Any of the exterior fences. 
22 A. Okay. Yeah. I worked on this fence 
23 over here. 
24 Q. Would that be the fence on the southern 
25 boundary of the northeast quarter? 
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DEP ION OF VEE LEO CAMPBELL, V NIB II - 01/26/2011 
- SHEET 17 PA.GE 153 Pl\ GS l 5 :i 

1 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're now off the ~ identification.) i 
2 reco rd . 2 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Let me next hand you ~ 3 (Discussion off the record .) 3 a copy of Exhibit 7. 
4 TH E VIDEOGRAPHER: We 're now on the 4 Are you ready? 11 

5 record. 5 A. Yes. I 6 (Deposition Exhibit 6 was marked for 6 Q. Exhibit 7, again, is a document entitled 
7 identification.) 7 warranty deed, correct? 

I 8 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Mr. Campbell, I've 8 A. Yes. 
9 handed you an exhibit, Exhibit Number 6. Let me 9 Q. It appears to have been made on I 

I 

10 have you review that for a moment and tell me when 10 March 24th of 1950. 
11 you're ready to answer a few questions. 11 A. Yes. 
12 A. Okay. 12 Q. Is this the deed from Charlotte Campbell 
13 Q. Ti1is document is a warranty deed, 13 to your parents, Leo H. Campbell and Phyllis 8. 
14 correct? 14 Campbell? 

I 
15 A. It appears to be, yes. 15 A. It appears to be, yes. 
16 Q. The opening phrase of this warranty deed 16 Q. To what property does this deed pertain? 
17 is that it was made on March the 12th of 1937 17 In other words, what ground is being transferred to 
18 between Hannah Davis and Charlotte Campbell ; is that 18 your parents? 
19 correct? 19 A. Well, I didn't bring my reading glasses, 
20 A. Yes. 20 and my eyes don't move as fast as my hands. 
21 Q. Who is Hannah Davis? 21 Q. That's okay. On page 1 it seems to 
22 A. That would be my dad 's grandmother, I 22 indicate this was the transfer of the south half of 
23 be lieve . 23 the northeast quarter to your parents; is that 
24 Q. And Charlotte Campbell, then, would be 24 correct? 
25 your father's·· 25 A. Yes. 

= PAG~ - 54 t. l ;== f -, 0 

1 A. Mother. 1 Q. On page 2 of this exhibit, if you turn 
2 Q. •• mother, correct? 2 it sideways, it shows that this document was 
3 A. Yes. 3 recorded on January 30th of 1962, twelve years 
4 Q. Your grandmother. 4 later. 
5 A. Yes. 5 A. Okay. 
6 Q. The language indicates that Hannah Davis 6 Q. Do you know who had this deed for that 
7 at that point in time was a widow. 7 twelve-year period of time? 
8 A. Yes. 8 A. Possibly my grandmother. 

I 

9 Q. Was Charlotte Campbell a widow at that 9 Q. Do you know when she delivered the deed 
10 point in time, that is 1937? 10 to your father and. your mother? 
11 A. No, I don't think so. 11 A. No, I don't. 
12 Q. You do know that your grandfather passed 12 Q. Where does your grandmother live, that 
13 away before you were born in 1946, but you don't 13 is Charlotte, between 1950 and 1962? 
14 know·· ,14 A. In Rigby. 
15 A. No. 15 Q. Did she live on this property? 
16 Q. •• exactly when? 16 A. No. 
17 A. No. 17 Q. Where did your father and mother live 
18 Q. Okay. Do you know why Hannah only 18 between 1950 and 1962? 
19 conveyed the property to Charlotte and not to 19 A. On this property. 
20 Charlotte and Hyrum both? 20 Q. In the Robbins' home? 
21 A. I don't. 21 A. No. In the Campbell home. It became 
22 Q. Is this the deed to the northeast 22 the Robbins. 
23 quarter of Section 17? 23 Q. Right. Today it's called the Robbins 
24 A. It appears to be, yes. 24 home, but that is the homesite which they lived from 
25 (Deposition Exhibit 7 was marked fo r 25 1950 to 1962? 

~ 
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1 A. Yes. 1 Q. Did he farm the northeast quarter, to 
2 Q. Do you know when they moved into that 2 your knowledge? 
3 home? 3 A I'm sure he did a lot of work out there, 
4 A. No, I don't I 4 but his -- you know, I guess you could call it 
5 Q. Did they ever move out of that home? 5 fa rming. 
6 A. No. 6 Q. Did he cultivate the northeast quarter 
7 Q. What did your father do for a living? 7 of Section 17? 
8 A. Farmed. Did custom farm work and worked 8 A. In pieces, yes. 
9 at the county, grader operator and a welder in the 9 Q. Did he raise cattle and pasture 

10 shop, so he moved into the shop. 10 cattle-· 
11 Also ran the gravel crusher up on Eagle 11 A. Yes. 
12 Creek when they were improving the roads in the Bohn 12 Q. -·on the northeast quarter of 
13 area. 13 Section 17? 
14 Q. Between 1950 and 1962, what did your 14 A. And horses. 
15 father do for a living? 15 Q. And horses also? 
16 A. Farmed, custom farm work, worked in the 16 A. Yes. This is -- probably needs an 
17 sugar factory in the winters. 17 explanation, but it's quite lengthy. 
18 Q. Did he farm the south half of the 18 Q. You say that Mary and Delbert starved 
19 northeast quarter of Section 17? 19 out up at Poplar. 
20 A. Yes. 20 What did you mean by that? 
21 Q. Did he farm the north half of the 21 A. They went broke , dry farming. 
22 northeast quarter of Section 17? 22 Q. What year was that? 
23 A. No. If you're talking about the Killian 23 A. I don't know. 
24 place, no. 24 Q. I take it from your answer, though, that 
25 Q. You earlier testified that your father 25 at some point they began farming part of the 

= PAGE '"8 J_~ = PAGE 160 

1 was going to buy the entire one hundred sixty acres, 1 northeast quarter? 
2 that is the northeast quarter of Section 17, 2 A. Yes. 
3 correct? 3 Q. That would be the north half of the 
4 A. Yes. 4 northeast quarter. 
5 Q. When was he going to make that 5 A. Yes. 
6 purchase? 6 Q. The half that your father never 
7 A. Well, I think it was his understanding 7 farmed? 
8 that it was his to buy when they got all that the 8 A. You said that. 
9 legalese knocked out between him and his folks. But 9 Q. I thought I asked if your father-· 

10 in the interim, Delbert and Mary starved out of 10 A. My dad farmed it. 
11 Poplar and needed a place to live. 11 Q. Your father did farm the·· 
12 Q. Did Hyrum and Charlotte ever live in the 12 A My grandfather farmed it. It was my 
13 Robbins home? 13 dad's understanding he was going to get the entire 
14 A. No. 14 hundred and sixty. 
15 Q. Did they ever live anywhere on the 15 Q. Okay. 
16 northeast quarter -- 16 A. Then Delbert and Mary starved out. 
17 A. No. 17 Granddad said: Well, we'll jsut cut it up because 
18 Q. ·-of Section 17? 18 there's a couple houses on that property. They can 
19 Between 1937 and 1950, who was using the 19 live in one, and you can live where you're at. 
20 northeast quarter of Section 17? 20 Q. All right. To be clear, then, your 
21 A. I imagine my fo lks and the Killians. My 21 grandfather, Hyrum Campbell, did cultivate the 
22 granddad, possibly. 22 northeast quarter in its entirety of Section 17 -· 
23 Q. What did Hyrum do for a living? Did he 23 A Yes. 
24 farm? 24 Q. ··true? 
25 A. He was a farmer. 25 A. Yes. 
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1 Q. And grazed cattle and horses -· 
2 A. Yes. 
3 Q. ··on the northeast quarter. 
4 Your father, however, only cultivated 
5 and farmed the south half of the northeast 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

quarter. 
A. No. While my dad was on that property, 

he run the whole hundred and sixty. His 
understanding was that he was getting the entire 
hundred sixty. 

Q. But you don't recall the year that he 
went onto the property? 

A. No, I wasn't around. 
Q. Sometime before 1946? 
A. Yes. 
Q. And sometime after 1937? 
A. Yes. As far as Hannah owning it, I'm 

pretty sure that was part of the collective brothers 
and sisters thing that was going on between my 
granddad and his siblings. It was a family farm, it 
took the whole family to run it. 

Q. And you don't recall the year that Mary 
and Del be rt began farming the north half of the 
northeast quarter? 

A. No. They were always over on the corner 

- PAGE 163 ============~ 

1 to 1968? 
2 A. No, I don't. I would assume my 
3 grandmother. 
4 Q. Do you know when she delivered it to 
5 Delbert and Mary Killian? 
6 A. No, I don't. 
7 Q. Between 1950 and 1968, where did Delbert 
8 and Mary Killian live? 
9 A. On the property. 

10 Q. On the north half of the northeast 
11 quarter? 
12 A. Yes. 
13 Q. Would that be in the home that you 
14 earlier marked in the northeast corner of that 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

property? 
A Yes. It's aboutthe time that Delbert 

died, '67 or '8. 
Q. Perhaps 1969? 
A Could have been. I wasn't around then. 

I was in the military. 
(Deposition Exhibit 9 was marked for 
identification.) 

Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Let's now move to 
Exhibit 9, which you've previously had a chance to 
review. Exhibit 9 is the warranty deed from your 

rr== PAGE 162 ===============;i - P.l\GE 164 =============.. 

1 all of my life, and I don't know anything about 1 parents, Leo H. Campbell and Phyllis Campbell, to 
2 it. 2 you and your wife, Kathy; is that correct? 
3 (Deposition Exhibit 8 was marked for 3 A Yes. 
4 identification.) 4 Q. And this deed is only for a parcel of 
5 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Let me hand you 5 ground in Section 17 measuring two hundred eight by 
6 Exhibit 8. 6 two hundred thirty-eight feet; is that correct? 
7 Are you ready, Mr. Campbell? 7 A. Yes. 
8 A. Yes. 8 Q. Do you know how many square feet that 
9 Q. Exhibit 8 is another deed entitled 9 equals? 

10 warrantydeed,againfromyourgrandmother, 10 A. No. 
11 Charlotte Campbell, this time to Delbert H. Killian 11 Q. Do you know if that is approximately 
12 and Mary Killian; is that correct? 12 1.13to1.14acres? 
13 A. Yes. 13 A. Yes. 
14 Q. It bears the date of April 10, 1950; is 14 Q. Is that accurate? 
15 that correct? 15 A. Yes. 
16 A. Yes. 16 Q. Did you request or otherwise receive a 
17 Q. And with reference to the description of 17 survey to confirm the two hundred eight by two 
i 8 the property, this is the north half of the 18 hundred thirty-eight feet granted to you in this 
19 northeast quarter of Section 17, correct? 19 deed? 
20 A. Yes. 20 A. I believe my dad had the survey done. 
21 Q. On page 2, this document appears to have 21 Q. Well, whether he did or didn't, did you 
22 been recorded, not appears. This document was 22 request a survey·· 
23 recorded on January 9th of 1968, correct? 23 A. No. 
24 A. Yes. 24 Q. -·to confirm the two hundred eight by 
25 Q. Do you know who had this deed from 1950 25 two hundred thirty-eight feet? 0 f.J 
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r:
1 

1 A. No, I didn't I don't think. I don't ~ Q. And at that time the address of the 
2 remember. It's been a long time ago. 2 homesite you moved onto, your one-acre parcel, was 

I 
3 Q. And, again, with reference to the 3 10909 North 15th East; is that correct? 
4 possible survey your father requested, you haven't 4 A Yes. 

I 5 seen it and have no personal knowledge of it'? 5 Q. Why did your parents only grant this 
I 6 A. No. 6 property or this deed of gift to you and not to you 
· 7 Q. That is one of those surveys that we 7 and Kathy both? 

8 concluded was speculative. 8 A. 1989? I don't know. Well, that's the 
9 A. Yes. 9 way my dad did business. Family discussions were, 

10 Q. The description of the property says: 10 in Scott's clan tradition, the men only attend. 
11 Beginning at the northeast corner of the south half 11 Girls go outside and pull weeds in the garden, 
12 of the northeast quarter. 12 something like that. Dad was very old school and 
13 Did you request a survey to confirm that 13 adamant about that 
14 location, that is the northeast corner of the south 14 Q. Your father, likewise, gave a deed of 
15 half of the northeast quarter? 15 gift to Jo •• 
16 A. No. Again, I assumed my father did 16 A. Uh-huh. 
17 that. I don't think I did it. 17 Q. ··one to Margie-· 
18 Q. When did you build a house on this piece 18 A Yes. 
19 of property? 19 Q. •• and one to Helene. 
20 A I didn't I moved the house onto it. 20 A. Yes. 
21 Q. What year was that? 21 Q. Am I pronouncing Helene's name, 
22 A. 1980. 22 correct? 
23 Q. The date of this deed is May 28th, 23 A. Yes. 
24 1981? 24 Q. With reference to the amount of property 
25 A. Okay. I misspoke. It would have been 25 being transferred to you, earlier today you 

~ PAGE 166 ~ 
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1 '81. 1 indicated that was twenty-five acres. 
2 Q. So earlier today when you testified that 2 A. Yes. 
3 you moved onto your property in 1979, that, too, 3 Q. That's not correct, is it? 
4 would have been a mistake? 4 A Yes. 
5 A Yes. 5 Q. In the legal description on page 1, it 
6 Q. You moved onto the property·· moved a 6 indicates that the parcel being transferred to you 
7 house onto the property and began residing there in 7 contains 20.48 acres. 
8 1981? 8 A. Yes. 
9 A. Yes. 9 Q. Is that accurate? 

10 Q. Ready, Mr. Campbell? 10 A. Yes. 
11 A. Yes. 11 Q. And goes on to state that this, quote, 
12 (Deposition Exhibit 1 O was marked for 12 includes 1.14 acres heretofore deeded to donee in I 
13 identification.) 13 the northeast corner and in which the donee has 
14 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) The next exhibit is 14 constructed substantial improvements prior hereto; 
15 Exhibit 10, which is another deed, this time 15 is that correct? 
16 entitled deed of gift; is that correct? 16 A. Yes. 
17 A. Yes. 17 Q. As of 1989, your ownership of record, 
18 Q. This is a deed from your parents to you 18 based on this document, was 20.48 acres total, 
19 in 1989; is that correct? 19 correct? 
20 A. Yes. 20 A. Yes. 
21 Q. In 1989, the street address of the house 21 Q. Have you ever added the acreage deeded 
22 where your parents lived, the Robbins house, was 22 to you with that deeded to Jo, Margie, and Helene? 
23 one --well, 10519 North 15th East; is that 23 A Just Helene. 
24 correct? 24 Q. You do not know, then, whether it is 
25 A Yes. 25 more or less than eighty acres, do you? 

(\ (~ ,~t 
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1 finished? 
2 A. I said they were all with K's. 
3 Q. At the time you constructed this fence 
4 in approximately 1995 to 19%, why did you construct 
5 it where it is? 
6 A. Convenience. 
7 q, And by "convenience," what in particular 
8 was convenient about that location? 
9 A. Access to the corrals, the house and 

10 yard. I didn't put the corral fences or any of that 
11 in. 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 

1

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

Q. I understand from that answer that you 
may have some additional interior fences on your 
property •• 

A. Yes. 
Q. ··that pertain to corrals and other 

horse-keeping areas. 
A Yes. 
Q. Okay. With the exception of the two 

fences that you've drawn that run east to west 
across the northeast quarter, are there any other 
interior fences that used to be there that have 
since been taken out and renewed? 

A. There is lots of fences used to be 
there. 

PAGE 186 _ 

~ 
Q. Give me an approximate number of 

interior fences that have been on the northeast 
quarter over the years. 

A. Six to ten in the last -- how many 
5 years? 
6 Q. Well, we picked up our chain of title 
7 yesterday in 1937. 

I 8 A. Well, there's been a bunch of fences in 
9 there. 

10 Q. Okay. With reference to the fence, the 
11 interior fence furthest to the north that you have 

i 12 drawn, what is that fence, and what does it 
13 demarcate? 
14 A. Pasture. 

i 15 Q. Is this the fence that is the one 
16 furthest to the north that you have drawn that 
17 separates your property from Mr. Kvamme's property 

, 18 in the northeast quarter? 
19 A. No. There isn't a fence that separates 
20 our property. 

121 Q. There is no fence between your 
22 properties? 
23 A. No, sir. 
24 Q. My understanding of this rase is that 
25 there is a fence that runs east and west across the 

www.TandTReporiing.com 

1 northeast quarter between your property and 
2 Mr. Kvamme's property. 
3 Am I incorrect in that understanding? 
4 A Yes, sir, you are fence runs 
5 fifteen, sixteen feet inside surveyed property 
6 line. 
7 Q. Okay. Now, I understand that's your 
8 allegation in this case, but this is the fence 
9 that's in dispute in this case; is that correct? 

10 A. Yes. 
11 
12 
13 

Q. All right. So when you and I talked 
about this fence, I understand your allegation is 
that it's in the wrong location, but this is the 

14 fence that's the dispute in this case, correct? 
15 A. No, sir. 
16 Q. No? 
17 MR. MANWARING: I'm going to make an 
18 objection as to the form, but you can answer. 
19 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Okay. Is thEHe a 
20 fence in this case that's in dispute as to its 
21 location? 
22 A No, sir. There's a pump in this case 
23 that is in dispute. 
24 Q. What pump is in dispute in this case? 

A. Mr. Kvamme's ditch pump. 

~- Pl\GE 188 =============~-=o 

1 Q. And what's in dispute about his ditch 
2 pump? 
3 A. It's on my deeded property. 
4 Q. Well, I understand that's your 
5 allegation, but, again, the court's going to have to 
6 determine whether that's your property. You claim 
7 that it is, but the point is when we talk about this 
8 fence, the one that you demarcated furthest to the 
9 north and running east and west across the property, 

10 that's the fence in dispute, and you claim the 
11 underlying property is your property, correct? 
12 A. Yes. 
13 Q. All right. Describe this fence for me. 
14 A Barb wire and posts. 
15 Q. How many lines of barb wire? 
16 A Three to five, six in some places. 
17 Q. So it's a three to five or six strand 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 

barb wire fence. 
A Yes. VVith at one time electrical wire 

strung on it as well. 
Q. When was the electrical wire on this 

fence, the approximate year? 
A '95-ish. I think there was some on 

there before then, but I couldn't tell you what year 
it was. It had been probably the sixties, 
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G 
sixties. 

Q. And what type of post was utilized for 
this fence? 

I 4 A. Wood posts and steel T posts. 
lj 5 Q. We talked yesterday about the exterior 
!. 6 fences and this property in general, the northeast 
II 7 quarter. The interior fence that we're currently 
i 8 discussing that runs east and west across the 
, 9 property, does that run from ··does it run all the 
10 way across the northeast quarter? 
11 A. No. 

112 Q. Where does it begin, and where does it 
13 end? 
14 A. Well, within fifty feet of the canal at 

1
11

1

5

6 

the west end, and fifty to a hundred feet on the 
east end. 

17 Q. Let's go first with the west end. As 
18 that fence that we're discussing runs east and west 
19 across the property to the west end of the property, 
20 does it connect with the exterior fence on the west 
21 boundary of the property? 
22 A No. 
23 Q. Does it connect with anything? 
24 A No. I didn't put this in down here at 
25 the west end on my pasture fence. 

, 1 Q. All right. 
2 A. Part way. 
3 Q. Correct. Because yesterday you 
4 explained that Mr. Kvamme, in connection with his 
5 use of the property, has removed part of the eastern 
6 fence. 
7 A. Yes. 
8 Q. All right. Whether we're talking about 
9 Mr. Kvamme's property in the north half or your 

10 property in the south half of the northeast quarter, 
11 in both instances again, this is not open range, is 
12 it? 
13 A. No. 
14 Q. And whether you're standing on 
15 Mr. Kvamme's property or standing on your property, 
16 that fence running east to west across the property 
17 encloses property, does it not? 
18 A. Yes, it does. 
19 Q. In fact, it encloses his property to the 
20 north and your property to the south. 
21 A. That's arguable. 
22 Q. Why do you say it's arguable? 
23 A. It's a convenience fence. It was 
24 erected as a convenience fence. 
25 Q. Ol<ay. I understand that's your 

PAGE 90 ===============;i PAGE 192 =============='91 

1 Q. There is no fence on the west boundary, 
2 then, to which that fence can exit? 
3 A. There is. It's the pasture fence on the 
4 west end. 
5 Q. All right. So there is a fence on the 
6 west boundary --
7 A No. 
8 Q. ··which -· 
9 A. There is a fence on the west end. The 

1 O boundary is on the other side of the canal. 
11 Q. Okay. 
12 A. There's an official easement for the 
13 canal company --
14 Q. All right. 
15 A. -- through there. 
16 Q. So there is a fence on the west end of 
17 the property to which this fence running east and 
18 west across the property connects. 
19 A. Yes. 
20 Q. All right. On the east end of the 
21 property, does it connect to a fence? 
22 A. It does. 
23 Q. All right. And that is the fence that 
24 runs along the eastern end of the property? 
25 A. Yes. 

www.TandTReporting.com 

1 allegation, but the fact of the matter is it 
2 encloses his property and your property, his on the 
3 north, yours on the south, correct? 
4 MR. MANWARING: Do you understand what 
5 he's asking? 
6 THE WITNESS: Yeah. I think he's asking 
7 me to admit that that's Mr. Kvamme's property to the 
8 north of the fence and mine to the south. 
9 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) I'm not asking you to 

10 admit whose property it is. I'm simply asking if 
11 it's true that the fence encloses property, his on 
12 the north and yours on the south, and that fence 
13 acts as an enclosure going both directions, does it 
14 not? 
15 A. No,itdoesn't. Therearen'tanyfences 
16 on the north side. It doesn't enclose anything. It 
17 encloses my pasture. 
18 Q. Right. Yesterday you testified that 
19 Mr. Kvamme has removed the fence on the northern end 
20 of the property·· 
21 A. Uh-huh. 
22 
23 
24 
25 

Q. ··but with reference to the fence that 
we're discussing, and that is the fence you've 
marked as an interior fence running east to west 
across the property, that encloses the property, 

T&T REPORTING (208) 529-5491 

09 

ltl 



DEPOS N OF VEE LEO CAMPBELL, VOL . III - 01/28/2011 

~ ~~;;h;; bu~;~~e ~;~ce, and I know that this is 
II 2 going to be a fertile ground for disagreement. 

3 A. Okay. 
4 Q. But I want to go through some 
5 preliminary questions where there may not be 
6 disagreement, but I'll find out. 
7 A. Okay. 
8 Q. And I want to get to the nuts and bolts 
9 of who, when, and why. But from a preliminary 

IO standpoint let me ask a few questions. 
11 Irrespective of the fences that we've 
12 been discussing, of your own personal knowledge, do 
13 you know the boundary, the line of separation, the 
14 boundary between tile north half of the northeast 
15 quarter and the south half of the northeast quarter 
16 of Section 17? 

1

17 A. Yes. 
18 Q. How do you know that? 
19 A. SuNey. 
20 Q. Okay. So, again, with reference to your 
21 personal knowledge, what I understand from your 
22 answer is you had a survey done at 2009 by Mr. Kevin 
23 Thompson, correct? 
24 A. Yes, sir. 
25 Q. And your allegation is that survey shows 

PAGE 215 =============~ 

~ that runs east and west across the property, does 
2 not mark the boundary, correct? 
3 A. Correct 
4 Q. That's your allegation. li1at it does 
5 not fix the boundary? 
6 A. No. 
7 Q. And your contention is the true and 
8 correct boundary is somewhere north of that fence? 
9 A. Correct 

10 Q. The basis or evidence that you would 
11 tender to me to support your allegation, would be 

I 12 the survey from Mr. Kevin Thompson, correct? 
13 A. Correct. 
14 Q. And with the exception of that survey, 
15 you have no other evidence of the boundary between 
16 the north half and the south half of the northeast 
17 quarter of Section 17, do you? 
18 MR. MANWARING: Object to the form. You 
19 can go ahead and answer. 
20 THE WITNESS: There's the suNey done 
21 when I first occupied the land. There was the 
22 suNey done before that when my dad occupied the 
23 land. 
24 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Yesterday we talked 
25 about those surveys as having been a possibility, 

PAGE 2 4 =============~ = PAGE 216 =============~ 

~ a boundary and a fence, correct? 
2 A. Correct 
3 Q. All right. That's not your knowledge. 
4 Mr. Kevin Thompson did that survey. I'm talking 
5 about your personal knowledge. 
6 Of your own personal knowledge, do you 
7 knowihe boundary, the actual boundary, the true and 
8 correct boundary, between the north half of the 
9 northeast quarter and the south half of the 

10 southeast quarter of Section 17? 
I 11 A. Not the exact, no. 
1 

12 Q. And when you say not the exact boundary, 
13 no, by that you would also agree that you're 
14 uncertain as to the true and correct boundary 
15 between the north half and the south half of the 
16 northeast quarter of Section 17? 
17 A. I agree, I would be uncertain, as would 
18 everybody else. 
19 Q. Now, notwithstanding the fact that you 
20 are uncertain about that boundary, your contention 
21 in this case is that the boundary is in dispute, 
22 correct? 
23 A Correct. 
24 Q. And your claim is the fence that we have 
25 been discussing, the northernmost interior fence 

www. TandTReportmg. corn 

1 but my understanding of your testimony was, of your 
2 own personal knowledge, whether your father did or 
3 did not ever get such a survey was speculative, 
4 correct? 
5 A. Correct. 
6 Q. And with reference to the one that you 
7 may have gotten in 1981, that, too, is speculative. 
8 You can't even remember, correct? 
9 A. It has been a few days, yes, but I don't 

1 O think my mortgage holder would have loaned on it had 
11 it have been speculative. 
12 Q. But whether they would or would not have 
13 loaned on it, that too is speculative. You're not 
14 the mortgage guy, are you? 
15 A No,l'mnotthemortgageguy. 
16 Q. All right. So, really, Mr. Campbell, 
17 when you boil this thing down, and we'll get to the 
18 who, why, and when in just a moment, but when you 
19 boil this case down to some simple propositions, 
20 with exception to the survey by Mr. Kevin Thompson, 
21 you have no other evidence that tile fence does not 
22 mark the boundary, do you? 
23 MR. MANWARING: Object as to form. Go 
24 ahead and answer. 
25 THE WITNESS: Well, in that light, I 
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i suppose not. 
2 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:} And you have no other 
3 evidence that the fence does not fix the boundary, 
4 do you? 
5 MR. MANWARING: Object to form. You can 

I 
6 answer. 
7 THE WITNESS: I think we need to go off 
8 the record. 
9 MR. MANWARING: Okay. 

10 MR. SEAMONS: I'd like to have that 
11 question answered before we go off the record. That 
12 was a fair question. 
13 THE WITNESS: And it was, if you 
14 wouldn't mind repeating. 
15 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Yeah. And my 
16 question was, with the exception of the survey, you 
17 have no other evidence that the fence does not fix 
18 the boundary, correct? 
19 A. Correct. 
20 MR. MANWARING: Object as to form. You 
21 can still answer. 
22 THE WITNESS: I answered correct. 
23 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Okay. Let's go ahead 
24 and take a break, and we'll come back with who, 
25 when, and why. 

I 

~ PAG~. 
21 

~Y Charlotte?- . 

2 A. No. That would have been Hannah. 

11 

I 

I 

3 Q. Hannah granted the property to Charlotte 
4 in 1937? 
5 A. Well, I believe the fence was there 
6 before tr1e Davises brought the property. 
7 Q. Okay. Do you know in what year Hannah 
8 and her husband bought the property? 
9 A. No, ldon1. 

1 O Q. Wily do you believe the fence was there 
11 even as early as that date? 
12 A. It was the property itself that my 
13 grandfather and great grandfather and the Davises 
14 were all interested in because of the diversity of 
15 soils on that hundred and sixty acres. 
16 Most of the farming in the area was done 
17 by horse drawn implement, and that's what made that 
18 property so attractive to them because of the 
19 diversity of soils across the property. 
20 Q. Okay. So with reference, then, to your 
21 answer to Interrogatory Number 14 that you believe 
22 Hyrum Campbell constructed the fence, your testimony 
23 today would be you have no personal knowledge that's 
24 accurate, and it may have been, in fact, long before 
25 him? 

~ PAGE 218 ================;, _ PAGE 220 ===============n 

f1 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We'll now go off the 
I\ ~ record. 
· 3 (Discussion off the record.) 

4 THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We are now on the 
5 record. 
6 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Thank you. 
7 During the discovery process in this 
8 case, Mr. Campbell, we served an interrogatory on 
9 you, Interrogatory Number 14, to be specific, that 

10 asked who built the fence. And your answer to that 
11 was you believed Hyrum Campbell built the fence. 
I 12 And so now I want to go into the next 
13 section here and that is who built it, when they 
14 built it, and why they built it. We'll start with 
15 who. 
16 
17 

j 1 s 
1

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

In light of the fact that your 
grandfather passed away, Hyrum, passed away before 
you were born in 1946, why do you believe that he 
was the one that built this fence? 

A. I don't think he was the one that built 
it. The fence, to my knowledge, was there when 
property was first purchased. 

Q. And by first purchased, you mean in 
1937? 

A. 1937. 

1 A. Exactly. 
2 Q. In simple terms, you don't know who 
3 constructed that fence, do you? 
4 A. No, /don't. 
5 Q. And a word we've used now several times 
6 would be speculative and that is whether it was 
7 Hyrum or some person before him, long before him 
8 would be raw speculation at this point? 
9 A. Yes. 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

Q. In Interrogatory Number 15, we asked 
when the fence was constructed, no matter who did 
it, when it was constructed. Your answer there was 
you didn't know. 

A. No. 
Q. And I take it you mean that at face 

value that you simply don't know when that fence was 
constructed? 

A. I don't. 
Q. And you have no personal knowledge of 

it, and everything in that regard would be, again, 
just raw speculation. 

A Yup. 
Q. That, in turn, would mean that of your 

knowledge, whoever constructed the fence and 
whenever they constructed it, may or may not have 
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known tile boundaries of tlie northeast quarter, 1 Q. I understand that's your allegation that 
true? 2 the fence is a convenience fence, but the point is 

A. I don 't think that was a concern. They 3 they may have been uncertain about the boundary, and 
owned the entire hundred and sixty acres. VVhat 4 you just don't know, do you? 
difference would it make where they put a fence if 5 MR. MANWARING: Objection as to the form 
they owned it. 6 of the question. 

Q. Well •• but if we don't know who 7 THE Vv1TNESS: I don't think they 
constructed it and when they constructed it, you 8 cared. 
obviously don't know if they knew where the 9 MR. SEAMONS: Just answer my question. 
boundaries were for the northeast quarter, do you? 10 MR. MANWARING: Same objection. 

A. No. 11 THE Vv1TNESS: You're asking me to make 
Q. That, again, would be speculation. 12 an assumption for people wl10 aren't even alive 
A. Exactly. 13 anymore. 
Q. And we could even take that down one 14 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) But based on your 

level and say that you don't know if they knew where 15 personal knowledge, they may have been uncertain 
the north half was located or where the sout!1 half 16 about the boundary; isn't that true? 
was located of the northeast quarter, do you? 17 MR. MANWARING: Object as to form. 

A. No. 18 THE WITNESS: VVhen I put the fence down 
Q. Again, that would be conjecture and 19 the south side of my pasture, I did that for my 

speculation. 20 convenience. 
A. Uh-huh. 21 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) I understand, 
Q. Thus, as far as you know of your own 22 Mr. Campbell. But this fence •• 

personal knowledge, whoever built the fence and 23 A. Okay. VVhen that fence was put in , I'm 
whenever they built the fence, may have been 24 sure it was a fence of convenience because the 
uncertain of the boundary between the north half and 25 individuals who owned the property owned both sides 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

!1 

I 
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1 the south half of the northeast quarter, right? 
2 MR. MANWARING: Objection as to form. 
3 Go ahead and answer. 
4 THE Vv1TNESS: I don't th ink that was 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

ever their concern. 
Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) But, again, based on 

your personal knowledge, you don't know. 
A. On my personal knowledge, I don't know. 

I, on my own personal knowledge, don't see why they 
would put a fence there except for a convenience 
fence . 

Q. That would be your speculation, but as 
to what they knew, you don't know if they knew the 
actual boundary between the north half and the south 
half of the northeast quarter, do you? 

MR. MANWARING: Objection to form. Go 
ahead and answer. 

THE Vv1TNESS: No, I don't. I can't 
speak for those people. 

Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) So as far as you know 
that person, whoever it was and whenever it was, may 
have been uncertain about the boundary? 

A. Again, I don't think it matters to them. 
They owned the whole hundred sixty. VVhat's the 
point other than putting a convenience fence in? 

1 on eitl1er side of the fence. It really didn't 
2 matter where it went in except as a convenience to 
3 them. 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

121 
22 
23 
24 
25 

Q. l understand that's your argument, but 
we've already established you don't know wflo built 
the fence or when they built the fence and therefore 
you don't know if they were certain about the 
boundary, do you? 

MR. MANWARING: Objection as to fo rm. 
You can answer. I think it's been asked and 
answered as well, but you can --

MR. SEAMONS: He's trying hard not to 
answer it, but it's a pretty straightforward 
question . 

You don't know, do you? 
MR. MANWARING: It's an objectionable 

question. Go ahead and answer. 
THE Vv1TNESS: I don't know, but I don't 

see what would matter to them. If they own the 
entire piece, who cares where the fence goes as long 
as it's convenient for you and what you desire in 
your fence. 

Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) And conversely, then, 
since you don't know if they knew and were certain 
about the boundary, for all you know, based on your 
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n own personal knowledge, that fence may have fixed 
2 the boundary, true? 

I 

. 3 MR. MANWARING: Objection. 

1 that constructed it, you don't know why they put 
2 that fence in the location where it stands to this 
3 day, do you? 

4 THE WITNESS: No, I don't agree to that 
5 at all. My dad told me when I was ten, twelve years 
6 old that that fence wasn't the boundary. 
7 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Well, I understand 
8 that's your allegation --
9 A Okay. 

1 O Q. -- and we'll come back and talk about 
11 those conversations later. 
12 A Okay. 

· 13 Q. But of your own personal knowledge as 
14 far as you know, that fence, at the time the person 
15 built it, whenever it was and whoever it was, may 
16 have fixed the boundary of the south half and the 
17 north half of the northeast quarter, right? 
18 MR. MANWARING: Object as to form. You 
19 can try to answer that. 
20 THE WITNESS: I don't really think so. 
21 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) I know you may not 
22 think so, but based on your own personal knowledge, 
23 that's a possibility, isn't it? 
24 MR. MANWARING: Object as to form. I 
25 think it's asked and answered. 

4 A. No, I dont 
5 MR. M,A.NWARING: Objection as to form. 
6 You can answer. 
7 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) You would agree with 
8 me that that fence has been there for a long period 
9 of time. 

10 A. Correct. 
11 Q. I'm going to give you a chance now to 
12 give me your bit of speculation. 
13 Why do you think that person, whoever it 
14 was and whenever it was, would construct that fence 
15 in the wrong spot? 
16 MR. MANWARING: Objection as to form. 
17 Assumes facts not in evidence. 
18 THE WITNESS: I don't know that it's a 
19 wrong spot. For that person who constructed that 
20 fence, it might have been the correct spot. 
21 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Fair enough. Let me 
22 rephrase the question. 
23 Whenever it was and whoever it was, why 
24 do you think they built that fence not on the 
25 alleged boundary between the north half and the 

PAGE 226 ==============u PAGE 228 ============~ 

~ 
Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) True? '1 south half of the northeast quarter? 
A. You're asking me to agree to something I 2 MR. MANWARING: Objection as to form. 

that I can't agree to. I would have to assume that 3 You can try to answer it. 
4 they were putting a fence for north and south 4 THE WITNESS: Because there was no north 
5 boundary. Again, I'm assuming. 5 half and south half. It was a fence of convenience. 
6 Q. It would be speculative. 6 He owned the entire hundred and sixty acres. It was 
7 A. Very much so. So I really don't. I 7 pretty much his business where he put a fence. 
8 didn't know those people, I don't know why the fence 8 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) You assume that the 
9 was put in there. I can't answer that. 9 person owned the entire one sixty. You don't know 

10 Q. And I think that's the key. You admit 10 that of your own personal knowledge, though, do you? 
11 you don't know why that person, whenever it was, put 11 You've already established you don't know who did it 

112 that fence where it is, do you? 12 and when they did it, correct? 
13 A. I would believe it would be a fence of 13 A. Correct. 
14 convenience. 14 Q. Now, you say there was no north half, 
15 Q. I understand what you believe, but of 15 there was no south half. There has always been a 
16 your own personal knowledge, you don't know why they 16 north half and a south half of the northeast 
17 did it, do you? 17 quarter. In fact, there's an east half and the west 
18 A All I can tell you is what my dad told 18 half of the northeast quarter, true? 
19 me. 19 A. Agreed, yes. 
20 Q. And we'll go to those conversations 20 Q. So when you say there was no north half 
21 later. 21 and south half, you're actually arguing that the 
22 A. Okay. 22 person put the fence wherever he wanted as a 
23 Q. But, again, Mr. Campbell, of your own 23 convenience to him. 
24 personal knowledge, of your own personal knowledge, 24 That's your argument, correct? 
25 whenever that fence was erected and whoever it was 25 A. Correct. 
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1 A. He did --
2 Q. Why did ·-
3 A. He did --
4 Q. -· he move it --
5 A He did farm --
6 Q. -·to what you allege is the true and 
7 correct boundary? 
8 MR. MANWARING: You have to wait--
9 THE WITNESS: Okay. 

10 MR. MAl~WARING : -- until the question is 
11 asked --
12 MR. SEAMONS: So since he never owned --
13 MR. MANWARING: -- before you give your 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

answer. 
Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Sin: e he never owned 

the entire one sixty, why didn't he move the fence 
to wl1at you allege is the true and correct boundary 
in tl1is case? 

MR. MANWARING: Objection as to form. 
You can try and answer that. 

THE WITNESS: It wasn't cost effective. 
Couldn't afford it. 

Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) And that would be 
speculation on your part. 

A. Yes. That would be speculation on my 

PAGE 23 8 ==== = = = ==== = ===;, 
1 part as t11e kid that grew up with hand-me-down 
2 clothes and having damn little. 
3 Q. Also growing up with a father who owned 
4 eighty acres. 
5 A. Exactly. 
6 Q. Okay. What we do know is that he didn't 
7 move the fence ever, did he? 
8 A. No, he didn't. 
9 Q. And, again, in a phrase, he acquiesced 

10 in its location for a long period of time, didn't 
11 he? 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 

MR. MANWARING: Objection as to form. 
THE WITNESS: Acquiesced? 
MR. SEAMONS: Consented to right where 

it was. 
MR. MANWARING: Objection as to form. 
THE WITNESS: No, he didn't. 

Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) He never filed any 
kind of document·· 

A. No, he didn't. 
Q. -·declaring or stating it was in the 

wrong location, did he? 
A. No. 
Q. Or that he claimed an interest in any of 

the property north of it, did he? 

PAG<: LJ~ 
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2 record anything that stated tt1at. Is that what 
3 you 're asking? I 
4 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) That he declared any 
5 kind of ownership interest in the land north of the 
6 fence, did he? 
7 MR. MANWARING: Object as to form. 
8 THE WITNESS: It didn't really matter 
9 where the fence was. 

1 O It was his understanding he owned land 
11 the other side of the fence. 
12 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) And that, again, goes 
13 back to the hearsay conversations, we'll go over 
14 those later. 
15 A. Okay. 
16 Q. That's what he allegedly told you, 
17 right? 
18 A. No. That's what he told me. Don't call 
19 me a liar. I'm not alleging anything. 
20 Q. Okay. But your father is not here to 
21 testify·· 
22 A. No, he isn't. 
23 Q. ··and that, by definition, is hearsay, 
24 so we'll cover those later. 
25 A. Okay. 

PAGE 240 =========~======;i 

1 Q. We likewise know that Mary, Delbert, 
2 Delbert, Jr., and that entire side of the family 
3 never moved the fence to what you allege is the true 
4 and correct boundary, did they? 
5 A. No, they didn't. 
6 Q. Why? 
7 MR. MANWARING: Object as to form. 
8 THE WITNESS: I'm pretty sure it had 
9 something to do with money. 

10 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Again, speculation on 
11 your part. 
12 A. Oh, yeah. Yeah. 
13 Q. You entered upon this property in 1981, 
14 correct? 
15 A. Correct. 
16 Q. And you allege that your father told you 
17 that the land actually extended some distance beyond 
18 the fence as early as the age of six, true? 
19 A. True. Six to ten years old, somewhere 
20 in there. 
21 Q. Why didn't you move the fence to what 
22 you claim is the true and correct boundary? 
23 A. I didn't perceive it as a problem where 
24 the fence and the property boundary was. It was 
25 family on the other side of the fence. 
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1 Q. What difference does that make? 1 Q. And you did not otherwise have the money 
2 A. Wel l, I guess your family is different 2 to move the fence to what you allege is the true and 
3 than mine. 3 correct boundary? 
4 Q. What we do know is you never moved it, 4 MR. MANWARING: Objection. 
5 did you? 5 THE WITNESS: You're right. I didn't. 
6 A. No, I didn't. 6 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) After moving onto the 
7 Q. And, in fact, you acquiesced in its 7 property, it sounds like you began to run some 
8 location and left it right wl1ern it is, true? 8 horses on the property? 
9 MR. MANWARING: Objection as to form. 9 A. Correct. 

1 O You can try and answer. iO Q. You now have corrals and pastures 
11 THE Vv1TNESS: I left it where it is. 11 identified on the property? 
12 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) When did you build or 12 A. I do. 
13 move your hand onto that 1.41 acre parcel that your 13 Q. You've constructed other improvements 
14 father gave to you in 1981? 14 and outbuildings on the property? 
15 A. In 1981. 15 A. No. 
16 Q. The same year? 16 Q. There are no other outbuildings, sheds, 
17 A. Yes. 17 barns of any kind? 
18 Q. How close to the fence does your home 18 A. There's a two-sided shed. 
19 sit? 19 Q. Okay. So we do have some outbuildings 
20 A. I don't know for sure. I'd have to go 20 that you've put onto the property, correct? 
21 measure. 21 A. I don't think it qualifies as an 
22 Q. Why didn't you move the fence at that 22 outbuilding. More like a leanto. 
23 time to what you allege is the true and correct 23 Q. And you've planted lawns, gardens, 
24 boundary between the properties? 24 true? 
25 MR. MANWARING: Objection as to form. 25 A. True. 

=PAGE 2 2 4 = PAGE 2~4 

1 THE WITNESS: Money. 1 Q. And you have kept up with the pasture, 
2 Q, (BY MR. SEAMONS:) So your testimony is 2 true? 
3 that·· 3 A. Tried to. 
4 Did your father sell that land to you or 4 Q. Why over all those years didn't you move 
5 give it to you? 5 the fence to what you allege is the true and correct 
6 A He gave it to me . 6 boundary between the properties? 
7 Q. So notwithstanding the free land, you 7 MR. MANWARING: Objection. 
8 didn't have the money -- 8 THE WITNESS: Didn't have the money. 
9 A. No, I didn't. 9 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) With reference to 

10 Q. -· to •• 10 your property now only, and that is tile property 
11 A. I married a woman with four kids. We 11 south of this fence, and if you would like you could 
12 added one more . 12 include the portion north of the fence that you 
13 Q. Sometime after you acquired that 13 claim as your property, I need a list of all of tha 
14 one-acre parcel and moved the home onto it -- did 14 people that you've ever rented your property to. 
15 you pay for that home, by the way? 15 Sounds like Mr. Kvamme at some point in 

16 A. It's in mortgage. 16 time •• 
17 MR. MANWARING: Objection as to form. 17 A. Yes. 
18 Q. (BY MR. SEAMONS:) Has that mortgage 18 Q. -·was a tenant, so Craig Kvamme. Who 
19 been there since 1981? 19 else? 
20 A. Yes. 20 A. Flat Rock Ranches, Mike Smith, Mark 
21 Q. That would be thirty years this year? 21 Berry. 
22 A. Yes. 22 I'm sure there 's one or two more in 
23 Q. And you borrowed the money, I guess, to 23 there, but I can 't remember right off the top of my 
24 buy that 11ome and move it onto the property? 24 head. 
25 A. Yes. 25 Q. Who was your point of contact, so to 
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THIS INDENTi:JRE, Ivlade this 12th day of March in the year ord one 

thousand nine hundred and Thirty-seven , by and between 

Hannah Davis, a Vii.dew 

of the ·,County of Bonneville , State of Idaho 

the part y oI the first part, and Charlotte CaQpbell· 

of the , County of Jefferson , State of Idaho 

the part y of the second part: 

W!TNESSETH, That said part y of Lhe fast part, for and in consideration of the sum of 

One and other valuable c~msiderat10D-s DOLLARS, 

,

1 

lawful money of the United States of America, to 

is hereby acknowledged, ha s Granted, Bargained and Sold, and by these presents do es 

Confirm, unto the said part Y of the second partXand to 

her in hand paid by the part y of the second part, the receipt whereof 

Grant, Bargain, Sell, Convey and 

her heirs and assigns, forever, all nX.the following described I real estate, sitm.ted in. Bonneville County, State of Idaho, to-wit: 

I The North-east q_uarter or Section Seventeeri (17) Townshi.p Tl1ree (3), North or Range Thirty-Eight 

. ( 38), East of Boise Meridian. 

Together with all and su:-idf'y the Water r-lghts and ditch rights thereunto belonging or in any wise 

appertaining. 

TOGETHER With all and singcla.r the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto belonging or in anywise apper­
talning, and the reversion :.g.ijl reversions, rernainde.r and re~ders, rents, issues-and profits.thereof, and all estate, right, title and interest, 
in and to the said property, as well in law as in equity, ovsaid part y ' of the first part. 

'rO HA VE AND TO HOLD, All and singular the above mentioned and described· premises, together with the appurtenances, unto 
the part Y of the second part, and to her heirs and assigns forever. And the said part y . of the first part, and her 
heirs, the said premises in the quiet and peaceable possession of the said part y ·of the second part, and . her heirs and assigns, 
against the said part y of the first part,. and her heirs, and.against all and every person aoq:>ersons whomsoever, lawfu]ly 
claiming or to claim the same, shall and will WAttRANT and by these presents forever DEFEND. and "° 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The said part y of the first part ha s hereunto set her" hand and seal· 
the clay and year first above written. 

Signed, Sealed and DelivITed in the Presence of 

STATE OF IDAHO; 
COUNTY OF 'Jefferson . } SS. 

On this 12th day of 
Percy Groom· 

in and for ~bp:State of Idaho, personally appeared 

·······-····---~":?..~_a..'.1 .. ?..~~~-~~·-··---·-··-··--·····-·-··--···········-······ (SEAL). 

·-········-··-···················:··········--··--··-······-······-·-···-·--·-···-·-···--(SEAL) 

··-···-···············:·····-·-······-········-··········-·····································-·(SEAL) 

...................................................................................................... (SEAL) 

March 
, a 

, in the year 19 37 

notary public 

, before me, 

Hannah Davis, a Widow 

]mown to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the. within instrument, and acknowledged to me .. 
that s h_g.~ the samo. . 

' ,...- IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, tbe day and 
r year in this certificate first above written. 

(SEAL) Percy Groom 

Recorded at the request of Gharlotte Campbell 
YI. L. Brewrink 

June 23, 1941 at 10: 12 A-. M. 

Recorder's Fees,$ r. 2o 
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DEED OF GIFT 

774870 89 OCT-:, PM 4: 02 

Thi s indenture, made this Li)\ day of October, "'..989; between 

LEO H. CA!"'.PBELL and PHYLLIS B. CA.f<':PBELL, husband and wife; 

"DONOR"p of 10519 Nort:h 15 East, City of Idaho Falls, Bonneville 

County*' State o f ldaho, and V. LEO CAMPBELL, "DONEE" of 10909 

Horth 15 1st East, City of Jdaho falls, Bonneville County, Idah o , 

WITNESSETH : 

Thai: U:e Dor.or , for anc in c o r.siderat:ion o f the love and 

c.ffection wl:ich Donor has and bears unto tr.e Do.nee, and for the 

purpose cf 11"1akir;g a gift: t.o Donee and also •'or the bette r main-

t:enanre , support and p rot e ct:i o n and livelihood of Don«::e , does by 

these prese!lce ::i ve, grant., cor.veny and confi rm unto the said 

Do nee t:hE described propert:y , 

Bonnevil l e Co ~ nt:y, State at Idaho , •o-wit : 

Beginning at: a ooint 982 . 5 0 feet North 
of the sou ~ heast: corner 0 f the Northeast 
Juarter of Se~t io~ 1 7 , To~nship 3 North, 
Range 38 Ea st: , Boise Meridian, 
Bonneville County , Idaho and running 
t:hen<..e S89°58'J :· ·~ 2643.85 F e et:; Thence 
N. 0°1 5 •30•£ . 332 . 30 feet ; thence 
N8 9°45 '0 0*E 2642 . 37 feer- ; thenre sout h 
342.72 feet: t:o t:he point 0 f beginning. 
<~onta in s .2 0 .48 a c res, less c o unty roc..J 
::: igh t - c;f -1o1ay on t:he East Si de . Includes 
l.i4 Acres heretof o re deeded t:o Donee in 
the Northeast co rner and on which Donee 
has c orist r ucted s ubst:an t ial improvements 
prior he r er-_0 . 

TOGETP.ER -.ii t: h al l and s ingular t::hP. 
tenemPnf:. s , :-:~ re timent s and appurtuances 
t:hereun~o b e longing to in anywise 
appertaining, and the reversion or 
reversions, re~ainder and remainders, 
r en~s ~ i s sues and profits ~hereof 

situate in 

.· ., . 
. · ;~·· 

·-~ 

w 
~ 



together with 7.5 shares in the Hdrrison 
canal and Irrigation company together 
with the water, water r i<;?hts and ditch 
rights appertuant thereto. 

subject to all existing easements and 
r ights-0f-way as appear of record or on 
the ground or by way of us~. 

SUBJECT, however, and reserving to Donor, and each of them, a 

life est:at.e i r: and to all of such real pr ope rt y and improvements 

for and during the term of their natural lives, with the specific 

r:ght to collect, receive, use and enjoy the income, dividends and 

proceeds therefrom during such term of their natural lives. Upon 

the death of both Donors, such life estate shall terminate. 

IN WITNESS WEEEEOf, the Donor has hereur:to set their hands and 

seals the day and year first above written. 

DONOR 

LEO i1. CAMPBELL 

' • . l 
1 

.,,_.- 1' / ~" ' + t · I a ..t t ~· 
PHYLLft B. CAMPBELL 

STATE OF .i.JAHO 
)SS. 

county of Bonnevil:e 

On t:t":is day of October, 1989, before me, the undersigned, 

a Notary Public in and for said sa±d, personally appeared, LEO H. 

CAMPBELL 2i:1d PHYLL!S B. CAMPBELL, hu~b.and and w.Lfe, known t:o I'<· 

be the persons whose na~es are subscribed to the within and fore-

going DEED OF Gif'T, and acknowledged t:o me l:hat they had read 

RM 



the sa::;:ie , understood the contents thereof and the l~al @ffe<.:t 

the r eof, .:md tho\: they had executed same o f theit" own fre~ \>till 

and choice. 

!N WITNESS WHEREOF, r h ave hereunto set ~y hand &nd affixed ~y 

offical seal the da ::r· a nd year in t his certificate first &bove 

"rit:ten. 

NO'i'ARY PUBLIC FOR IDAHO 
Residing at )daho Falls, Idaho 
My Coml'llission Expires:Q ~ u't/?~ 

~"'TIWMENT NO . .!--:....,;......t..,,..,,..~.,.... 

DAn: 
tNST. CODE 
FVCH€ NO. 
fff 

ST A rt: Cf !DA.HO ) ca 

I 
C '.)ONTY Of ~iUE. ) 

I ~ ooc1tfy tfllat .. ~ 
. btd1--''WSlll!flllQli.W 
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iVA RRAN1T !Ju:J> 

/~ IJ -' "/ i I.'/.' L.J::O. J1 . C.N'll? l~.~LL . a.nci_ .PH.Y LLIS 

79 ~- ~1?.r.c;- ,\.8 , l <;1_?.)JQ __ J:0J....ls : . . l.d?.-S:c 

l3<)nncv~i_lle ... . 

Sectio~ J.7 : Beginni11g a t th0 Nortl1eas~ ;;0rner of t~·i e S~NE~ 
o sa.i ·j Section , t h!:::n cc Sout.h 208 .:· 1::!-f:ti t he.·nce ·~\:\?":~~ 23H ft:-;e!:. 
thence NoJ~th 20R feet ; thcn~e Sast ~JS f eet tc1 ttie ~oi~ r 2f 
beg inninc3 , Bonnevi.J.le: C-:::n.inty , Idaho. 

: . . • 

C--.1 

' f ug. ~#,rht 'r 11'/rh off fr:'n.:1r:(' I!!:.: , f:e, .. :.'a·:·rumer:!:. Jn;} ?i.U.;.11u,·enoH<·1..·.'i 1hern~1 

unro ! 1H ' st: :cf t.i ... t:.•;fr·1·. hi:: .»! :1·; ·1· :.·\ur.' 1:11; / (!.'·.~· i_t: -'!.\'./O."L':'I"'. (; rvnff•r :fcic.~· li t 'r1' fl.1 : J. ' ( ;· · ·-'urt! {(1 i;n,;' \\'! !h !he .' :1{(;· 

1he !.'\. 11c··1 ! '! ..:; ·e :· i'nt_; •;i· ·-:' ,, ... ;,f r:c1·:!-..·, ..... ~:n.J ti;u; / 7' w!'i! 1t 't:r.rt: r:: {).1)(;° ,h: .1;:~1;;/ :h ·· .'(/ .'~ ; ·:· .<" (' !',' 1~·i.' .':.n-1_'! ::i 

t his J.)r."~·o' 1..'!/1} ·. \ · !:, ,r~:· :/i {.1 1,_'UN!l'. d .•: p rr ·,:!· ;i.'!r..'.· . • !he _,·.' t:'.!:ifl.'f .'. li1.",'::;.f:'1S i/::-• :·•:\-r,if <. .'!: :/ ;iJ<.' 

!ht·· Ji'o t/tr ::w 1:nd nno·1...·!·. 

,. • ~ .... -~,..:_...::-:-.-;{~.: : !L~•;_;_.~~.i:~:.~·~ 
LEO H . ;.:AMPl.-:.~LL 

(J/ f l. 1 · l J /1) . I : ;~ '· _: i • .1) 

2 8th 

:! ' .,·; : 

:1: \ ' 

: ... • 

IDAHO TITLE 6- H~UST C1.'\ ·'d '.t\NV 
. [5(1 O'l'i~ • T '1k' I: ,,,,I" " -
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;: ·\ ; · 1n9D9 N · 15th F: . · Idaho Ni is · ;Su/tof_r...,.ct ... ·1uh11..a...__,,...-__ ...;.:....:...:.._~,aG1Wnµ. 
::;~;)i#Jci .iiu ~""'1"33iiosfettwr, ·c.U r(~fe!J"""~dtJc~.m.J r:;a..-.JJ~4 L. IM St.:li of JiWlc, i~Wlt: . 

.-' · 

.,;j{ : :r~wnshit> .3 North, R3.n&e - 38 . ~st: •lf the . Bo;.seMeddinn; 111inneville . Goun_ty_, ~Idaho •• 
_'·. ~- - .. ' . . . -. . : . . . ' . . . . 

··v ··sec'tion 17; Begihniilg a·t theN~rth~ast Corner of the Sl/2 tjEI/4 

~- ... 
.. , · 

thence. Sau.th 2oa· fee.t; t.hence · 'ilest. 238fe~. t\ thence 
thence East 238 feet t. o the point. of : b.egfnning. · · .. 

. w 
...z: 

.. ...,., . ,..,.., .. 
c:D 
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·,, (OP,t~"fint) .. 
~lnttod ' K•Y p, nch,d .o " fiiX-01 od . 0 0 ' l\l!Niillim«l Cl · 1>110( O~rrl 0 Muter 11·110 0 , Ti1do~otl ·O Cotn\l-'\t«l ·o Abi1trac 0 . ~ . 

... ""' j' ""'""" , • .,,. ,._~__. ..... , .~ ,, ... , .. ,.,,,,_.-· ........ ,.;...di ........,.... 6~~ ....... ...-.......... ......................... 

•, QUITcLAIM DEED 
TH18 1Nlll~N'\'Ull1'~. M11no lhl~ twantit'!t-h 

. . 
In I iti ~·dni' of mi1·. l :o1·1\ ono _thb1111nnd ·nl11n hundrod nnd 

l<e:thl.een Anna C~mpba.l.l. 

or 10581· San('loa I Doir:te:1 

·11ny of N~P:mb.ar 

Nine:,(:y 

C:o1111ly of 

.. 

- · "" . bot\\' 

~lnh• uf IdL\hO , tho purt "J or tho fh~t 11n rt, l\lld Vc·1G" Lao carnpbal.l. 

of 1~9(J~)' No' ( J.·Sth ~ ., ~daho Fn.U.s . Cotmf.y of Bonnev :ll. 1.t'1 °' C:> 
:l"; 'I ' . H\l'io 11f! '. Ci:1~ho . ·'· 

- I L 
~vh~o 1 ,1 ' ! ;~~lncltlr~!~t'~ .; l(l~O!> N. 

w1~·~~Rg,l:!:', ti 'l'h 1t tho 111tld pnr~ ¥ 

1;r; " t~ > "'; 
nrtl o tiOC:011cl 1in1·L, 

Cl\ • • "· 

'

-·,· ! 

!!ith · 1~ ., Icluho b'nl.J.H , 11> 83401 . ;.r... . <",!111 
;x t·~~ 

nf tho lh·KL pnr·L, for 111\cl In cn1111ldo1·nU011 uCdhu ' 111ifu of 
• .. :..t: 

' . .z:- ,.. .• 
xxxxxxxxxx x.'xxxxx xxxxxx xxxxxOnl~ and no 100 t hs x iocxx xx xx x xx xxxxxXJ!OOJ1l,~KS, 
tnw 11 l't\Ot\OY of tho Uni ud Blnlt>ll t>f Amorl~o. lo hi. In hrmtl pnlcl h,v Lho ~uh.I lllll'lY;' ••. or 

' lhu lll!C.'tllld pnrt, lhll rtlcolpL ·wh ruor I• horohy lltlknoJ\otll{od, "" a hy lhllllO µrOHlllllJI rumrHo, l'l IOll!l(J 
1111tl 1\11' YO!' qUl'l'Cl.i\1M, Un\o lho 11nlcl plll'ly y or010 llOC<llld f>llrl, 111111 lo hifl hulrH nnd 
111111l1111K·n11 ttiu t rp1•1 nln 101 , plvco 111· pnl'col ur huul, 1!11t1110.-lrlt114 nmt hoh11< 111 

• Coltnl;y or Uon l\Gll) i.1.1.B lllltl or ldnho, hnu11111!1 nntl µnrllc111lm•ly 
1h•xt•1· h~·1 l 11H nlllOWK, IO·IY fi1 

1.14 ORJ'Ha, Bi Nl!.t B<~ou.011, l'/ 
19rl 28xli6 Hoyn . Ollka 

l.tlf.' lion or .1bo1•0 dol«ll'lbccl prll)lbl'ty .. 

• ftll.,-f·~ U.'W'f'l':t~'W•'•~•'".D"':'l ~~:f".,.,..~Vptt~ I ~ r~I\~' 

MAlh 1mi.:o TOr 

. . . . ..... ... ·-· -- --.-·• ... - ·--·~ --
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1l'O tit\ iF. ANO 'l'O ·UOT,t>, All 1tnd ·"!ngullt' lho Mld ·pt'Gml e~1· togotho wlln.tho nppurloho:u•cR, 
111110 tho ~ntt~ • of !.hf !teK'Olld 1nr t. \Id le \\is . ho.Ir/\ "hd li~sl1r1111 forovor. 

tN wfrr-mss WHEREOF, 'rho lllll<l p1i"r~ · 
{Ind "onl...?~J tho dny 1\lld )'Mr Or11~ llOOYO wrhfon, 

ot lhO 0rR IJAl't h E-> hureunto 1101. • haJ· hnnd 

~~ . . 

··~ ':~;.r.£.t.;:..t.!?~t.;~~P1e.~.~~ · ..... ......................... .................. ..... .. ,Lt~ ~ . ..... .. ....... (811111} 

.... .. .............. ............................... . ....... (S nil 

• t u u .. oo o,o •o o•U• O• "ouuoooo oo-f•~ou I o Oo oo u I • O o ••• uooooo o o 

•l 
.. [St•111J 

••••llOUooO•• ••••t 1oo otu• too • oooo o,.ll•• o • 1•••o oo o ooo o•ooo oo n10• .... ............................ ................... . ....... ..... . rsc11ll 

s1'A'r •, 01t mAito . } 

County tit ~v dc-tf'1.... 
1 11~. 

011 thl11 (~~(.',;i ctG dny of )-;/;.(.',J41:1."/~~ I 

I\ Notary PnlJllc 

who110 l)nn10 · ;i.n 
oxooutod tho anmo. 

11111J11a1!horl to thn wlth1J1 lu~tr 111101111 nutl 

01•', I hnvo horounto ~ot my hl\lltl nm\ nmxod my 01llclnl 11onl, Jh6 llny nml · 
ir.bnvo written, . 

,.. 1 L ./".J ,// . 
"' .4~~L.(C.:w.i<"r.dtN.1'4.t'~ 

Notnry Publlo tor tho St9Jo of ldnho; 
Ho'sh~ln lf nl /?/..:{;'/..,&A-...1 1 Idnho. · . • 
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I 
QUITCLAIM DEED 

For Vii.Jue Re-ooived 

liT!IL!>EN A, CAKPlH\LL, SPOUSE OF V. t.zo GAMPBE'-L 

do hmby e¢nwy, release. remls.e l\m:l forever ~ult cit.Im unto 

V, LtO CAM!'llEU,, A Mil'l\IED 14,JJf DU!.l:NG WI'n! HIS SOLE AND 8EF'ARATll! PROPETfl'Y 

10909 N 15TR E IDAHO FALLS, ID 83401 

B'EGI!ffiING AT TiiE NORTHUST CORYfl!;R OF nm SOUTH Tu\LF NORTHEAST QUARTE1t mr 
SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 38, EAST OF THE BOlSE MERIDIAN, BONNEVILL~ 
COUNTY, IDAHO; TRENCK SOUTH 208 FEET; THENCE W~ST 238 FEET; TI!ENCE NORTH 208 
'FEET; 'l'.'i!ENCE EAST 238 FEET TO THE ~OINT OF BEGINNING. LESS A.'n> EXCEPTING 
'r!l.EREFROM: THE EXISTING COUNTY ROAD RIGHT OF WAY ALONG THE EAST S1DE OF 
THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROP~RTY. 

~er 1'rlth thefr s.ppurwnances. 

Da~: AUGUST' 26, 1998 

~ 

(D 
OJ 

= 
~ 

N 

"'\:f 
:3 

"" 
"""" ..r: 

'"15 Tf!UME'Ni 1-.'0. --'.-..!..lo>.:..;;'-'-.-;,,. 

DATE 
t"IST COO! 
F!CHe NO. 
FEE 

ST A TI1 OF IOAliO . ) w 
C::'U"ITY OF llONN~!.E ) 

1 hereby ootrtify tho! tt.. within 

tl!!> 
0 
:z: 
z 

::>:> rr1 
frl< 
0 -
C> • 
::0 • 
olTI 
mo 
;o 0 

c: 
;z; 
-i 
-< 

(.0 

-.J 
en 
w 
...$: 

0 

~~N/tld~??__ lmJp1menf wat lli.Qrtf""'e---+-----

!CA1Hl.f:frn A. CAMPBELL 

!'l'TA!f: OF lfJAHO, r.nuNTY OF BONNE:\l'ILLK 
r;-,. ·~,. ]()TH riay of Allr.!l;;T • lll 98• 

§>.r.fl"Jrl!" f""I,., 11 nnt~ry ptibllr In ml"ld for ••IJ ::ta.it"', prni<~naHy 

AP'?"";urr1 

KATH1.P.f'11 A. CAM71IBJ.L 
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ORDER NO.: 3039900508 

ill6TMUMENT NO. -'--'4.1..----'--=--'r-=· 

DATE 
INST.CODE 
IMAGED PGS 
FEE 

$TATE OF IDfo.HO ) 
COUNTY OF f.C\l:·;['V:~LC:) "° 

I hore'vy c.-,::rt~,:: fl·1;.1t Hiot3 wrthin 
instrufn't?nt Yi3S ~~:.. j : -·~d . 

,o_ «to.·~·· :.·' r, . . ... · - .. . . 

County M:: · --::: · 

;:;y __ Deputy 

ri£>.quast cf 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

Bottt:UILLE CCUIT'I RECffillER 

1014290 JAN 5 '00 Rl11109 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, V. Leo Campbell, a married man as his sole and 
separate property 

Do( es) hereby convey, release, rcmise and forever quit claim unto 

V. Leo Campbell and Kathy Campbell, husband and wife 

whose current address is:: 10909 North 115 East, Idaho Falls, rD. 83401 

the following described premises: 

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTH HALF NORTHEAST 
QUARTER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE38, EAST OF THE BOISE 
MERIO[AN, BONNEVILLE COUNTY, IDAHO; THENCE SOUTH 208 FEET; THENCE WEST 
238 FEET; THENCE NORTH 208 FEET; THENCE EAST 238 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. LESS AND EXCEPTING THEREFROM: THE EXISTING COUNTY ROAD 
RIGHT OF WAY ALONG THE EAST SIDE OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY. 

TO HA VE AND TO HOLD the said premises, unto the said gramees, heirs and assigns 
forever. 

v.'Leocameu 

State of Idaho 
County of Bonneville 
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BO!*\lrLLE coum 
i i89B66 JUN22'05 RM1116 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

V. LEO CAMPBELL, a married man, = GRANTOB. 
for good and valuable considerations, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby release, remise, and forever QUITCLAIM unto 
V. LEO CA°!IJPBELL and KATHY CAMPBELL, husband and wife. as GRANTEE, 
whose address i1r 1 ()909 North 1 JS EIES!, .ldalw Fall~ ID 83401, and Grantee's successors and assigns, all of the following described real property, 
to-wit: 

.Beginning at a polr.t 982;50 feet NQrth of the Southeast comer <>f the Northeast Quarter of Sectlar. 17, 
Townshlp 3 North, Range 38 East opf the Boise Meridian, Bo1meville County, Idaho a;:d running thence 
S89.58'35"W 2643.85 feet; thence N0.30"E 332.30 feet; thence N89"4S 'OO"E 2642.37 feet; thence South 
341. 72 feet to the point of beginning. 

TOGETHER Will-£ any and all improvements, water and dilch rights, easements, tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto belongi"ng 
or in ~e appertafr.ing, aJ!d any reve:-sion, r-emalnder, nmu, issues, and profits therwf.. 

In construing rhis Deed and where the context so requires, the Jingular include,:; lne plural, and the masculine, the feminine and neuter. 

STATE OF IDAHO 

COUNITOFi!>n~,.~ 
) 
) s.r 
) 

On /:,,.,. 21...c; £ l>efo~ me, :hit underslgnrrd. penonaJiy appeared 
V. LEO CAMPBELL 
known o/if6nti/Ud to ,,,.. ta I><# Iha per-$011 whos• n"'"" is subscribed lo :ha within 
i!IStrum~m:. WIG acknowl ed ""' that he: t/l;m:utcd the :u::tme. 

WENDY K. NELSON 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE OF !DAHO 

MY COMMISSJON EXPIRES 5i!11W 

Qu/Jdalm D""'1 (3197) • l'a&• l 

AmerlTIUe 
497 N. Capital Ave 

Idaho Falls. If"' ~- · 
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···W ·ARRANTY DEED 

i11 Iii<' ycnr of nnr Lord, 

lJ< •f 11·1•t•tl ··· ······· ·· ······ ·····" ···· ····· ··· 

.1 .. • ~ .• 1 . • • J.~~- - ~. ; ~: : . t.~; .. e.J.. ,, .... ... . 

.... .. .. , S tnk of .... l.d.;~!.ie: .. . ., I.he .pn rl ···:-'· ······ of the 

-.. -... :. ;,,~..: ...... - -... -~ -·- . -~ -~-~-~ .. ~~- .., .. -· ...... .. ..... ......... .. ' " .... .. .. 

........... .......... ., State of ....... ... .. 1 ... :., .:_~L ... . ., t lie part i.~s .. . of Uie 

~ig~.~';r':<1;.'.!i'.,.i.;, !~,~~ili.'.~Ji;~dL~::~i·l~<-.;,~~ ~-~'" -l ·I~~ !~r~~ l'~u·t: 1 ·~-~ .. :1 1.~ i1: . c~1.'.:'.l.t~.,~~~;;~I::~; 
lllll~!&CIJG. •6'''.Ji:filfuJ s&tes of America. a.nd 1:tlwr con<t!Pmtion.-. to- ... :·,.;q: .... ..... .. .. . in hand 

• ?i·:p.)':':':>:~ - -- - .· . 
. ~~~L~,~e/~~d part, the rceeipi whereof~~ liel"\•liy nc-knowlt•dgt•d, ha.S ........ . 

. 'fu:ld'::hy these presents do--'1:l ... ... .. gnu1t, bur~ai n, s»ll, convey and 
··:s..::.o:r the second part a nd to ... J.;h'-1.i.r .. heir>\ irnd assigns fore\ er, 
ai<esttl.tc, si tuate in the County of . .B.9.i.JL..:.1:.1.:..1.~ ..... .. .. ... . .. ., State of 

: ·~·- '· 
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STAT!·} OF IHAHO, ( 
( Hil. 

C<luuf y of. .. \: .~ .~ .!.iJ..:.'. ~. '1 . . U.l.~. . ) 

nu thi~ . .... !.:T:. .":ff ... tla.y of .. ...... . h.: .. 1:.J .. ~ . 
. .. ~ ;.-;, :-.· ... .'. L~l"J :;_;_ : . ~~ -i. f:_ 7. ~;:~ ~~ .. . .... , a Kotury Put.lie in nncl for the State 

i'J •.r ·~ - - ~ - ~:·.":.~. !. ......... ............... ~··-·-· · ·····.-·-·-· . . 

H .. s :c.linR at .. ii~J:& ... .L>...-.. ........ +':-"."'~~ 

~ly commission expires-M.·,_/~U.0~'j1'~~ 
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BD!ffVH.Lt COOHTY RE~DER 

1122583 JUL29703 PH 4 54 

PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVE'S DEED 

THIS ThTIENTURE is made this '23t~ay of July, 2003, between H. Delbert Killian, 
Personal Representative of the Estates of Delbert Henry Killian and Mary C. Ki11ian, the 
"Grantor", and James Craig Kvamme and Debra Kvamme, husband and wife, whose mailing 
address is \\)21-b N. \S"t.'h £:,. ~'> M>A, "Tu 8'"6\\ \)\ , the "Grantee". 

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars 
($10.00) lawful money of the United States of America, and other good and valuable 
consideration, to the Gran tor in hand paid by the Grantee, the receipt whereof is hereby 
acknowledged, has granted, and by these presents does grant and confirm unto the Grantee, 
and to Grantee's heirs and assigns forever, all of the following described property in the 
County of Bonneville, State of Idaho, to~wit: 

The North Half of the Northeast Quarter; Section 17, Township 
3 North, Range 38 East, of the Boise Meridian. LESS AND 
EXCEPTING THE FOLLOWING TWO TRACTS: 

Beginning at the Northeast comer of Section 17, Township 3 
North, Range 38 East of the Boise Meridian; running thence 
West along the Section line 164.92 feet; thence S. 00°58'40" W. 
260.56 feet; thence S. 88°45'53" E. 167.20 feet to the East line 
of said Section 17; thence N. 00°28'42" E. along said East line 
264. 13 feet to the point of beginning. 

Also less: Beginning at a point that is West along the Section 
line 164. 92 feet from the Northeast comer of Section 17, 
Township 3 North, Range 38 East of the Boise Meridian; 
running thence West along the Section line 195.64 feet; thence 
S. 09°40'58" E. 261.06 feet; thence S. 88°45'53" E. 147.32 feet; 
thence N. 00°58'40" E. 260.56 feet to the point of beginning. 

SUBJECT to all existing easements or claims of easements, patent reservations, rights 
of way, protective covenants, zoning ordinances, and applicable building codes, laws and 
regulations, encroachments, overlaps, boundary line disputes and other matters which would 
be disclosed by an accurate survey or inspection of the premises. 

TOGETHER with the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto 
belonging or in anywise appertaining, and any reversions, any remainders, and rents, issues 
and profits therefrom; and all estate, right, title and interest in and to said property, as well 
in law as in equity, of the Grantor. 

_;t:.J=" !J-<AP s fa. 
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TO HA VE AND TO HOLD, the premises and the appurtenances unto the Grantee, 
and to Grantee's heirs and assigns forever. 

In construing this deed and where the context so requires, the singular includes the 
plural. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has executed the within instrument the day 
and year first above written. 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
)ss. 

County of Bonneville ) 

H. Delbert Killian 
Personal Representative 

On the2qth day of July, 2003, before me, the undersigned, a notary public in and for 
said State, personally appeared H. Delbert Killian known or identified to me to be the person 
whose name is subscribed to the within instrument as Personal Representative of the Estate 
of Delbert Henry Killian and Mary C. Killian and acknowledged to me that he executed the 
same as such Personal Representative. 

1N WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal, 
the day and year in this certificate first above written. 

~ NOtarYPUhli{;fOTI<lahO 
Residing at: Idaho Falls, Idaho 
My Commission Expires: ) v~']-05 

2 - PERSONALREPRESENTATIVE'SDEED 

INSTRUMENT NO. -#..j~=~irc:.... 
DATE 
INST.CODE 
~MAGEDPGS 

F.EE 
STATE OF !OAHO ) 
COUNTY OF BONNiVILLE ) ss 

I ti~ cerdfy !Mt the- wMln 
instrument was record«I. 
Ronald Lon 



Parcel 1 
A Parcel of Land Situ a red in BonneYilk County, State of Idaho, Township J North, Range 38 East of the Boise Meridian, 
Section 17, More Particularly Described as Follows: Beginning at the Northeast Comer of Section 17, Township 3 North, 
Range 38 East, B.M. 
Thence SOO"l0'2T'W along the East line ofSet:tion .17 fo.r a Distan~e of 1325.26 ~eet \othe.N0!1heas1 Comer of the 
South Half (S y,) of the Northeast Quaner (NEY.), said pomt also bemg the True Pomt ol'Begmnmg. 
Thence SOO"I0'27"W (Record"" Sourh; along the East line of Section 17 for a Distance of -138.65 feet; 
Thence N89"5ff35"W for a Distance of 2~4.37 feet to the West line of the South Ha!f(S 'ti) oft.he Northeasr Quarter 
(NEV.)·, 
Thence N00~26'12"E (Record"" NOO~l 5'30"£) for a Distance of 428.00 feet to the Northwest Comer of said South 
Ha!f(S Y>); 
Thence N89°55'34"E (Record= N89n4.5'00"£) alonl? the Nort~ l!ne ofs.aid South ha!f(S \tl) for a Distance of 2642-43 
(Record= 2642.37') feet lo ~e True Point ofBeginrung, Contammg 26.30 Acres More or Less. 
Subjec:t tu: Easements and R1gh1-of-Wllys for highways, roads, ditches, canals, power poles, and transmission lines as they 
exist. 

Parcel 2 
A P~rcd of Land Situated in Bonneville County, State of Idaho, Township 3 North, Range 38 E~s! of the Boise !v1eridian, 
Scct1on 17, More Particularly Described as Follows: Beginning at the Northeast Comer of Section 17, Township 3 North, 
Range 38 East, B.M. 
Thence S00"!0'2rW along !he East line of Section 17 for a Distance of 1763.9 l feet to the True Point of Beginning. 
Thence S00° J 0'2TW (Record = Soulh; along the East line of Sec Lion 17 for a Distance of 423.00 feet; 
Thence N89°5l'l3"W for a Distance of 2646.30 feet lo the West line of the South llalf(S Vi) of the Northeast Quarter 
(NE'/.); 
Thence N00"26'12"E {Record= N00"15'JO"EJ along said West line for a Distance of 423.50 feei; 
Thence S89"50'35"E for a Distance of 2644.37 feet lo the True Point of Beginning, Coniaining 25.70 Acres More or 
Less. 
Subjt>ct tu: Easements and Right-of-Ways for highways, roads, ditches, canals, power poles, and transmission Jines as they 
exist 

~ 

Parcel 3 
A Parcel of Land Situated i1_1 Bonneville County, ~tale of Idaho, Township 3 Nonh. Ran_ge 38 East ofth_e Boise Meridian, S&tion 
l7, More Particularly Descnbed as Follows: Begmning at the Northeast Comer ofSecHon !7, Township 3 North, Range 31! 
East,B,M. 
Thence SOO"l0'27"W along the East line of Section !7 t:or a Dist<Jnce of 2186.9! feet to the True Point of Beginning 
Thenci:: SOO" I 0'27"W (Re ct.ml =South) along the East !me of Section I 7 for 11 Dist11nce of 203.00 feet; 
Thence N89"'-t0'48"W (Record= N89~51'15~W; for a Distance of 455.42 feet; 
Thence soo~26'27"E {Record"" 500~36'54"£; fot a Dislam:e of 236.97 fee~ 
Thence S89"50'58"E {Record"' N89"58'J5"1:.J for a Distance of 452.88 foer to the East line ofStX:tion 17; 
Thence S00"\0'27"W (Record"" South) along the East line of Section 17 fora Distani:e of 25.00 feet to the East Quarter 
Comer of Section 17; 
Thence N89"50'49"W (Record =S89~58'35"1V) for a Distance of 2648.43 (Record= 2648.28') feet to the Southwest Comer of 
the South Half(S Y.) of the Northea:;1 Quartcr (NEY.) of Section 17; 
Thence N00"26' !2"E (Record"' NOOa ! 5'30"£) along the Wesl line of said South Half(S 1/,) for a Distance of 463.31 feet; 
Thence S89~5!'!rE for a Distance of 2646-30 feel to the True Point ofBeEinning, Containing 25.70 Acres More or Less_ 
Subji:ct tu; Easements and Right-o!:.Ways for highways, mads, ditches, canals, power poles, and transmission lines as they er.isl. 

James Craig & Debra Kvamme 
Personal Rep, Deed 

Inst. No. 122583 

Parcel l 
26.30 Acres 

S89~50'35"E 

264-4.37' 

Parcel 2 
25.70 Acres 

S89"5t'13"E 

2646.30' 

Parcel 3 
25.70 Acres 

Jrunes Craig & Ray Camm11ck 
& Micheal L. Smith 

Wammty Deed 
Inst. No. ! !61870 

EXHIBIT 

F d. I /2" Iron Rod 
Inst. No. 769345 

T E THOMPSON ENGINEERING, INC. 
CONSUL TING ENGINEERS 
RIGBY, IDAHO 83442 b 

"-------------------------~1 [) 

Fd. Iron Rod Fd. 112" Iron Rod Fd. 112" Iron Rod 
Inst. No. 633616 ~~\~!1)092 Inst. No. 769345 

"''"'""........... N89"41'Sr£ 

2636.53' 2636.48' 

~ 
i;; 

;il -
~ 

N89Q55'34"E 

~ 
~ 

S89"50'49"E 

264};.24' 2648...13' 

2660.23' 2660.27' 

N89"23'39"W 

Fd. Iron Rod Fd. 5/8" Iron Rod 

lnst~A; .. f3'f6 I 5 lns~ifd f1af949 

SECTION 17 BREAKDOWN 
(NO SCALE) 

Narrative 

(0 
~ M 
- V"""4 

Kevin Thompson meet with Leo Campbell and onsite on 
September 8, 2009. Leo asked that Kevin combine 6 Deeds as 
described in Instrument Numbers 924841, 1202459, 847849, 
774872, and 1189866 into 3 parcels ofland as shown on this 
Record of Survey. The boundaries of the property had previously 
been surveyed, although no Record ofSurvey's were found in the 
Courthouse. 
The Section Breakdown was taken from the City ofidabo Falls 
Control. 
This Survey does not constitute a Title Search by Thompson 
Engineering, Inc., and may not show all Easements of Record. 

Legend 
o Set 112" X 30" Iron Rod with Cap Marked LS. 10563 
'1 Set Mag Nail 
° Fd. Iron Rod with Cap as Noted 

----J~ Fenceline 

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY 
I, Kevin L Thompson, do hereby Certify that I am a Registered 
Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Idaho, and that the 
attached plat was drawn from an actual Survey made on the 
ground under my direct supervision, and that this map is an 
accurate representation of said Survey. 

RECORD OF SURVEY 
LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF SECTION 17, 
TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 38 EAST, 

BONNEVILLE COUNTY, IDAHO 

Project Name: 
Job Number: 
CoGo File: 

Date: 
Surveyor: 
Drawn By: 

Campbell Family 
2009-101 

Campbel!Leo2009· I 0 I 
Scale 

1"~200' 

September 17, 2009 >------" 
K.L.T. 
J.W.T. 

Sheet Of 
I 



CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. !SB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
: SS 

County of Bonneville ) 

Case No. CV-2010-3879 

AFFIDAVIT OF BLAKE 
MUELLER 

Blake Mueller, being first duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as follows: 

1. I am the duly elected and serving assessor for Bonneville County, Idaho and have 

personal knowledge based upon records maintained and kept by the Assessor's Office of the 

facts and inforn1ation contained in this affidavit. 

2. I am responsible for and control all assessments made on real property situated in 

Bonneville County, Idaho. Bonneville County assesses real property based upon legal 

descriptions set forth in deeds of record for the property. Bonneville County does not make 

assessments for real property tax purposes based upon topography of a parcel or the physical 

location of fence lines. The Bonneville County Assessor's Office maintains public records as 

part of its duty imposed by law. All assessment records are kept and maintained in the 

Affidavit of Blake Mueller Page I 
10504-CA 117 



Assessor's Office as part of its regular practice of business activity as the assessor for Bonneville 

County. 

3. I am familiar with and have reviewed the real property assessment history for that 

certain parcel ofland currently designated by tax parcel number RP03N38El 71802. Attached as 

Exhibit A and incorporated here by reference is a true and c01rect copy of Bonneville County's 

assessment map for that parcel. The assessment for that parcel was made in reliance upon the 

legal description of the property contained in deeds of record. 

4. According to Bonneville County assessment records, V. Leo Campbell and 

Kathleen Campbell are the record owners of the above identified tax parcel. Since 1989, the 

Campbells have been assessed real property taxes on their parcel every year to the present year. 

From 1989 to 2005, the Campbells had two tax parcel numbers: one for a small acreage with a 

home and one for a larger agricultural parcel. Upon recording of a quitclaim deed in 2005, both 

parcels were combined by the Assessor's Office into the current tax parcel number given above. 

5. I am familiar with and have reviewed the real property assessment history for that 

certain parcel of land designated as tax parcel number RP03N38El 70008 in Bonneville County, 

Idaho. That parcel is also shown on Exhibit A attached and incorporated here by reference. The 

real property assessment for that parcel was made in reliance upon the legal description of the 

property contained in deeds of record. No part of the assessment for that parcel incorporated any 

portion of tax parcel number RP03N38El 71802. 

6. From July 23, 2003, the record owner of tax parcel RP03N38El 70008 was James 

Craig Kvamme. Since 1989 all property taxes assessed on that parcel were assessed in the names 

of the owners of record. 
-l-'1 

Dated this _7 __ day of April, 2011. 

Affidavit of Blake Mueller - Page 2 
10504-CA 

Notary ~r ;J~ Cou,;J;j_ 
Residing at: Jd.e~c. lzo () 
My commission exPi~: 9- d? 0- I ex 

110 1. I..) 



CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the J?f!:.1 
day of May, 2011, a true and correct copy of the 

foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Affidavit of Blake Mueller - Page 3 
10504-CA 

[)<l Hand Delivered 
[ ] U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other ________ _ 

4.~ 
Paralegal 

119 



lO 
lO 
CD 
v 
CD 

120 

EXHIBIT 

i A 
• 



CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. !SB 1779 
KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
381 Shoup Avenue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

VS. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
: SS 

County of Bonneville ) 

Case No. CV-2010-3879 

AFFIDAVIT OF MARK 
HANSEN 

Mark Hansen, being first duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as follows: 

1. I am the duly elected and serving Treasurer for Bonneville County, Idaho and 

have personal knowledge based upon records maintained and kept by the Treasurer's Office of 

the facts and information contained in this affidavit. 

2. I have responsibility to receive and account for all tax payments made on real 

property assessments in Bonneville County, Idaho. The Bonneville County Treasurer's Office 

maintains public tax payment records as part of its duty imposed by law. Tax payment records 

are public records kept and maintained in the Treasurer's Office as a part of its regular practice 

Affidavit of Mark Hansen - Page 1 
10504-CA 
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of business activity as the tax collector for Bonneville County. Select records for certain years 

are kept by the State Tax Commission. 

3. I am familiar with and have reviewed the tax payment history for that certain 

parcel of land designated by tax parcel number RP03N38E171802. From 1988 to 2005, that tax 

parcel had two tax parcel numbers: one for a small acreage with a home and one for a larger 

agricultural parcel. In 2006 both parcels were combined by the Assessor's Office into the 

current tax parcel number. 

4. According to Bonneville County's records, V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen 

Campbell are the record owners of the above identified tax parcels. Based upon readily available 

records, since 1988, the Campbells or their lender have paid all real property taxes on those 

parcels. Based upon those records no other person has paid any portion of the taxes assessed for 

those parcels. Attached as Exhibit A and incorporated here by reference is a true and correct 

summary of available tax payment records from 1988 through 2010 maintained by Bonneville 

County for tax parcel numbers RP03N38El 71801, 71802 and 71808. 

5. I am familiar with and have reviewed the tax payment history for that certain 

parcel of land designated as parcel number RP03N38El 70008 in Bonneville County, Idaho. 

Prior to 1999 tax parcel number RP03N38El 70008 was identified as RP03N38El 70002. I have 

located tax payment records for both tax parcel numbers, dating from 1988 for that parcel 

number ending in 70002 and from 2001 for that parcel number ending in 70008. Also shown on 

Exhibit B and incorporated here by reference is a true and correct summary of available tax 

payment records from 1988 through 2010. 

6. According to Bonneville County's records, Mary C. Killian was the record owner 

of the tax parcel number RP03N38El 70002 and RP03N38El 70008 from 1988 through July 28, 

2003. From July 29, 2003 to the present the record owner of that tax parcel RP03N38E170008 

has been James Craig Kvamme. Since 1988 all assessed property taxes on those parcels were 

paid by either Killian or Kvamme. None of those payments were applied to any other tax parcel, 

including tax parcel number RP03N38171802 . 

..// 
Dated this --!J:- day of May, 2011. 

Affidavit of Mark Hansen - Page 2 
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SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this I / ~ day of May, 2011. 

~-~. 
Notary Public for~ 
Residing at: ~ . / 
My commission expires: 9,27.,µ::y.:;-

Affidavit of Mark Hansen - Page 3 
10504-CA 123 



CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the )?~day of May, 2011, a true and correct copy of the 
foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Affidavit of Mark Hansen - Page 4 
10504-CA 

[X'J Hand Delivered 
( '] U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other _______ _ 

~# ~hIUP 
Paralegal 
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BONNEVILLE COUNTY TREASURER 

EXHIBIT "A" 

Payment histories 

Parcel prefix: RP03N38E 

Listed owner: V Leo Campbell 

(171801 & 171808 were combined 

to make 171802) 

171802 

Date Payee 

12/20/2006 Lender 

6/14/2007 Lender 

12/21/2007 Lender 

6/18/2008 Lender 

12/21/2008 Lender 

6/18/2009 Lender 

12/16/2009 Lender 

3/9/2010 V L Campbell 

12/17 /2010 Lender 

Listed owner: V Leo Campbell 

171801 

Date Payee Tax year(s) 

12/20/1988 Lender 1988 

12/20/1990 Lender 1990 

12/12/1991 Lender 1991 

12/20/1992 Lender 1992 

12/20/1993 Lender 1993 

12/22/1997 Lender 1997 

6/16/1998 Lender 1997 

2/10/2003 Lender 2001,02 

8/1/2003 Lender 2002 

12/3/2003 Lender 2003 

5/24/2004 Lender 2003 

12/14/2004 Lender 2004 

6/15/2005 Lender 2004 

12/7/2005 Lender 2005 

6/14/2006 Lender 2005 

Listed owner: V Leo Campbell 

171808 

Date Payee 

1/6/1994 V L Campbell 

3/8/1994 V L Campbell 

1/14/1998 Kathleen Campbell 

12/16/2004 V L Campbell 

12/20/2006 V L Campbell 

Tax year(s) 

2001 - 2004 

2005 



BONNEVILLE COUNTY TREASURER 
EXHIBIT "B" 

Payment histories 
Parcel prefix: RP03N38E 

James Kvamme 

170008 

Date Payee 

No available information prior to 2001 

12/5/2001 Delbert Killian 

12/4/2002 Delbert Killian 

12/26/2003 James Kvamme 

6/8/2004 James Kvamme 

12/21/2004 James Kvamme 

5/3/2005 James Kvamme 

12/7 /2005 James Kvamme 

6/22/2006 James Kvamme 

12/28/2006 James Kvamme 

6/25/2007 James Kvamme 

6/28/2007 James Kvamme 

12/20/2007 James Kvamme 

6/20/2008 James Kvamme 

12/22/2008 James Kvamme 

6/22/2009 James Kvamme 

12/21/2009 James Kvamme 

6/2/2010 James Kvamme 

12/20/2010 James Kvamme 

Delbert Killian 

170002 

Date Payee Billed to 

12/6/1988 Mary Killian Mary Killian 

12/13/1989 Name not noted Mary Killian 

12/14/1990 Name not noted Mary Killian 

12/10/1992 Name not noted Mary Killian 

12/8/1993 Name not noted Mary Killian 

12/5/1994 Mary Killian Mary Killian 

12/4/1995 Mary Killian Mary Killian 

12/9/1996 Mary Killian Mary Killian 

Converted to #0008 in 1998 



CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 
KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. -ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

: SS 

County of /;//) tqBo ) 

Case No. CV-20.10 -3879 

AFFIDAVIT OF JO LE 
CAMPBELL 

Jo Le Campbell, being first duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as follows: 

1. I am eighteen years of age or older and have personal knowledge of the facts and 

information contained in this affidavit. 

2. I am the older brother ofV. Leo Campbell, one of the plaintiffs in this action. 

3. I am the son of Leo H. Campbell and Phyllis Campbell. 

4. My grandparents were Hyrum Campbell and Charlotte Campbell. 

Affidavit of Jo Le Campbell - Page 1 
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5. I grew up and worked on our family's farm in Bonneville County. When I was a 

young boy, the family farm was the entire northeast quarter section of Section 17, Township 3 

North, Range 38 East Boise Meridian. 

6. Since my earliest childhood, I recall my grandfather Campbell. He was a hard 

working farmer and used horses to plow, cultivate, and work his land. As I grew older I came to 

understand that my grandfather Campbell purchased that quarter section because of the varied 

types of soil on the land; some of it was prime for farming with horses, other of it was rocky and 

best suited for pasture. 

7. During my childhood, there was in existence an east-west pasture fence running 

across the quarter section. I understood that either my father or my grandfather Campbell erected 

and maintained that fence. The area south of that fence included corrals and pasture. I recall that 

fence was referred to as the pasture fence because it separated the good farmland to the north 

from the rocky pasture ground on the south. That pasture fence controlled our family's horses 

and other farm animals, preventing them from straying from the pasture to the farm ground. 

8. I recall when my aunt and uncle, Mary Killian and Delbert Killian, lost their farm. 

Their situation was of concern to my parents and grandparents. As I recall, my grandparents 

decided to have the Killians move onto the north part of the quarter section, while my parents 

and family remained in the home on the southern edge of the south part of the quarter section. 

9. The Killians had livestock when they moved onto the north half. The pasture 

fence in existence was left in place for the convenience of both families. Despite the location of 

the pasture fence, it was never considered the boundary because everyone was family and we all 

just got along without fretting over boundary lines. 

10. I. understand the K vammes contend the fence should be the new boundary line 

because they claim the fence had been or was now treated as the boundary. I know that is not 

true. In all my years growing upon on our family farm, I knew the fence was not the boundary. I 

knew the fence was several feet south of the legally described boundary line between the north 

and south halves of that quarter section. From my recollection, my parents and siblings and the 

Killian family members had the same understanding. 

11. By gift deed recorded October 4, 1989 as Instrument No. 774872 in the 

Recorder's Office for Bonneville County, Idaho my parents conveyed to me title to 19.88 acres 

of their land. A copy of that deed is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated here by reference. 

Affidavit of Jo Le Campbell - Page 2 
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Dated this ft day of March, 2011. 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this _2;f[__ day of March, 2011. 

Affidavit of Jo Le Campbell - Page 3 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the ,12~ day of May, 2011, a true and correct copy of the 
foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Affidavit of Jo Le Campbell - Page 4 
10504-CA 

V\] Hand Delivered 
[ ] U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other _______ _ 
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DEED OF GIFT 

( 

This indent:ure, made tr:is ~--, day of October, 1989, between 

LEO H. CA1":PRFLL ar.d ?1-!YLLlS B. CAMPBELL, husb and and wife, 

•ooNoR•, ._, f lU":lc,l N0rt.h l') East:, C ity cf ldaho Falls, Bonneville 

Cour, r:y, 3 ; , ri ,.J Cl _ •"AM PBE LL , • noNEE" of 4701 

Pair.banks Fl Pa so Texas, 

i-.': T ~ESSET~ : 

f c r -' . 
cc r..s '.dt>r atjon r. he love and 

,. qi rt. f e r rh e be tter main-

Donee, dOE'S by 

~ .:- . : P ;-, cf ' G i v .- , '? r ant , '- 0 n v e :-1 y and con f i r m unto th<" s a i d 

cescribed real prOf"E'r t. y, 

Pi:-y .i nnir ;g at: a po~·it. 982. 5 0 feet: Nort-.h 
r.:f t_he s:)UthEast. corner of the Nortt-.ea st. 
•:·ua~l:e~ o f Sect.ion 17, Township 3 Nort. h , 
Rar.ge 35 East:, Boise Meridian, 
Bor.neville Count:y, Idaho and running 
•.hence S89°5S'35•E 2643.85 Feet; thence 
S.0°15'3t~ ·-w. 327.50 feet.; thence 
Nb9°5 B'J5•E 2645.32 feet; thence North 
327. '.:>O feet: t-.o t:he point_ of beginning. 
•:o n+:a i n.s. 19. 88 acres, less count_y road 
right-of-way along the East: Side. 

TOGETHER with all and sin<Jular t:he 
t.enement:s, h~ret. iments and appurtuan-ees 
thereunto he longing to in anywise 
appertaining, and the reversion or 

sit: ua 1. e 

reversions, re'l!lainder and remainders, 
r~nts, i~sues and profits thereof 
together with 7.5 shares in the Harrison 
canal and Irrigation Co~pany together 
wi t:h t:he water, water r ight:s and ditch 
rights appertuant thereto. 

in 
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... . ,,.~.:.:..: ... 

Subject t:o al l 
r ight:s-of-way as 
!"_he ground or by 

existing easements and 
appear of recocd or on 

way of use. 

S!J3'1EC7, ::o"'•ever, and reserving t:o Dor..-::>r, and ~ach of i-.hem, a 

ar·,ci t.c al 1 c f such rea :; propert. y and i mprovements 

for Olr.C GLr'.r:c tr, e ~erm ,,f r.heir na tura l .iives, 1io11t:h t:he specific 

righ~ • c c c ~:e c '", :-e c e:''°'' use a:- -:· enjoy r.he incom<::, dividends and 

- ..... 
, .. . ~ i. r '· 

PHYLL1 s B. CAMPBELL , ' 
h d L 

county of Bonnev1l:e 

l'n t:r.is da;: of Oct. ober, 19e9, 1.1efore me, the underk>igned, 

a Not:dry Public :n a:··,d for sa.ic said, pe r·sonally ap~ared, LEO H. 

CAf'U>B-ELL and PHY:..L:S B. CAl':f->BE::...L, tiusband and wife, knmm to me to 

be the persoos whose na~es are subscri~ed to the within and fore-

going DEED OF GIPT, anj acknowledged to me that they had read the 

sa~, understood l'_he conttnt:s ther~of and the legal effect 

thereof, and t:hat: ':hey had executed saMe of t:heir own free will 
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( 

;_.:-:· 

'H:d c ho i c,:- . 

h ave hereunto s~t ay hand and affix~d my 

~ :t ,-a~ s .-a . ·: .e da y and year J". this certificate first abov~ 

P. ~ .:; ; d i n g at 1 d ah o Fa 11 s .t I da tJ._ o 
~Y Cmnir. i ss ion Ex pi res :_"· ___ ._·.Y_,,z...-'-
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1
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l ~IST CODE -- ~·5 <-~.........._ 
FJCtiE NO. -6f!f5J n 
; EE - .. --------""' ::.-__ _ 

C:TATt: OF l')AHO ) 
C:.)!.'ii' ' -~:: ;ic,t-JNE'./!LLE ) I 

i h<' :- ~ ~ y r:tJ~~!' tho~ th• 
i.«! · vr:i""'1 w:;ia ra<:on::lod. 
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CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. - ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. - ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
: SS 

County of Mohave ) 

Case No. CV-2010-3879 

AFFIDAVIT OF MARGY 
SPRADLING 

Margy Spradling, being first duly sworn under oath, deposes and states as follows: 

1. I am eighteen years of age or older and have personal knowledge of the facts and 

information contained in this affidavit. 

2. I am a sister to V. Leo Campbell, one of the plaintiffs in this action. 

3. I am the daughter of Leo H. Campbell and Phyllis Campbell. 

4. My grandparents were Hyrum Campbell and Charlotte Campbell. 

5. I grew up on our family's farm in Bonneville County. I knew my Campbell 

grandparents and was acquainted with the land I believed they owned. I believed those 

Affidavit of Margy Spradling - Page 1 
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grandparents owned an entire quarter section of land. My grandfather Campbell died when I was 

six years old. 

6. My grandfather Campbell farmed and used draft horses for his farm work. He 

maintained corrals and fence lines to control his horses and other farm animals. For as long as I 

can remember, my grandfather maintained a fence on the northern edge of his corrals that 

extended east to west across the entire quarter section of land he owned. That is the fence now in 

dispute in this action. 

7. I always understood the east-west fence crossing the entire quarter section was 

merely a convenience fence for controlling livestock. 

8. The east-west fence across the quarter section was to my knowledge arbitrarily 

placed as a fence of convenience. During my lifetime, that fence was never observed as a legal 

boundary line or boundary fence. 

9. Sometime in the early 1950s, my aunt, Mary Killian, and her husband, Delbert 

Killian, lost their farm in the Ririe area. Family discussions centered on helping the Killians have 

a place to live. I know my grandfather Campbell had the Killians come to live on the north half 

of the quarter section and help work the farm. I know my parents acquired the south half of the 

quarter section. 

10. As a family of Campbells and Killians, I believe everyone knew and understood 

the situation surrounding the division of land and that the east-west fence was not considered the 

boundary between the divided parcels. 

11. The east-west fence line was known to be several feet south of the actual 

described boundary line between the north and south halves of the quarter section. That fence 

was an amusing family anecdote over the years until the Killian property was purchased by the 

Kvarnmes. From my understanding, the Kvammes have ignored the legal boundary. 

12. I understand the Kvammes contend the fence should be the new boundary line 

because they claim the fence was treated as the boundary. I know that is not true. 

13. All the years I lived with my parents on the south half of the quarter section, it 

was common knowledge to everyone in our family that the east-west fence across the quarter 

section was not the boundary. I believe the same understanding was held by the Killians. 

14. At not time to my knowledge has anyone in the Campbell family and the Killian 

family ever agreed that the east-west fence was the boundary. In fact, no one in either family 

Affidavit of Margy Spradling- Page 2 
10504-CA 



seemed to have any concerns about the actual boundary between the properties; we were all 

family and we lived and worked together without worrying about a boundary line. 

15. By gift deed recorded October 4, 1989 as Instrument No. 774871 m the 

Recorder's Office for Bonneville County, Idaho my parents conveyed to me title to 19.89 acres 

of their land. A copy of that deed is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated here by reference. 

16. Based upon knowledge of the history of the east-west fence, I believe my 

grandfather, Hyrum Campbell, erected and maintained that fence as a convenience fence for his 

horses and livestock. Where he was the owner of the entire quarter section at the time the east­

west fence was erected, I believe the fence was not intended to designate any boundary. 

Dated this-~_ day ofMareh, 2011. 
Q~vJLjvli; 

Margy S a ling\ 

I >t L1y-;/ 
SUBSCRIBED AN~~W~~~~ ~~±~.~~~~~ ~~(~~' 20~ . 

( ~.Es OFFICIAL SEAL : t::'"d /JIJ 
1 
~ i v

0
"'"" w;~ VICKI! LOU COOK i fYCl 

! t _ Notary f'ubiic-~~~~~na ! Notary Public for,Arizona ~ 
[SEAL] i "'• 19:i: !h ::.~ r. :~x;;i:e;; June 30, 2012 ! Residing at: !{; 2:/.J(l!)cQ fJ , Z 

··-.. -··-··-.. - .. ~- .. - .. _ .. _,,_..... My commission e res: (;~a ~I/ 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the ) 1f/z_day of May, 2011, a true and correct copy of the 
foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup Avenue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Affidavit of Margy Spradling - Page 4 
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(A] Hand Delivered 
( ] U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other 

~~~~~~-~~~-

~~~ 
Paralegal 
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DEED Of' GIFT 

17 '· Q 11 .. . ~ -..._; J 
C .• ·- ~:02 

.~ 
made t:h is :.J__ day of October, 1989, between 

~EO ~- CA~PEE ~ ~ a~~ PHYLLIS B. CA~PBELL, husband and wife, 

0 DONOF1•, er >~> Nort:h ~S East:, Cit:y of Id.'\hc Falls, Bonneville 

.'. da~o, .'.U-i d 1-!ARGY L. SPRADLING, •ooNEE" of 5135 

::.a11111a:;cr:a ~ay, c : .... :, ..._, :Sal .... Lal<e Cit:y, Salt: Lake County, :Jtah, 

a ::d bears and for the 

.. ~. est- :-:-es,:::-ce ·::ve, ::ira~: t. , .::-onveny anc confirm unto the said 

rea~ prop.ert:y 1 

Be•;:inr:ir:g a,.._ a j:->Oint: 32i.50 feet: North 
of t:t:e Sour.r;easi: corner of •:he Northeast: 
0uarter of Section 17, Township 3 No1th, 
Range 32 East, Boise Mt~i~ian, 

Bonne~ille County, Idaho and running 
589"58'35•...: 2646.60 Feet:; yhence N. 
0G1s•30•E 327.50 feet; thence 
N69°SB'35•E 2645.J2 feet; thence Sou~t 
327.50 feet t.c the point of beginning. 
C0nt:ains 19.89 acres, less county road 
rig~~-of-way along the East Side. 

TOGETHER •:i <:r, all and singular the 
t:ene"'ent:s, !':eret:il!'lents and appurtuances 
thereun~o oelonging to in anywise 
appertaining, and the r~version or 
revers ions, remainder and remainders, 
rents, issues and profits thereof 
t:cget:her with 7.5 shares in the Harrison 
canal and Irrigation Coapany together 
with the water, water rights and ditch 
right:s appertuant: thereto. 

situate in 
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Subject t:o all 0xisting easesents and 
r igh t:s-of-way as appear of r-ecord or on 
the ground or by way of use. 

SUBJECT, however, and reserving to Donor, and each of th~111, a 

life es?:ate in ar.d to all of such real property and iaprove~nts 

for ar:d d:.;.rins t:he t:erm of their natural lives, with the specific 

right t:o collect, receive, use and enjcy the income, dividends and 

proceeds ~herefrom durin~ such term of their n~tu~al lives. upon 

the death of both Donors, such life estate shall ter~inate. 

IN WITNESS w"HEREOF, the Donor have hereunto set their hands 

and seals t:h~ dav ard year first: above written. 

DONOR 

CAMP BELL 

/- '-"'>.. \ l. 
PHYLl-.f~s~-B-.~C~A~M~P--B~E~L-L~~-"""......,~~~~-

STA.TE UP I :JAHO 

Cour:ty of Bonnevi l :e 
J SS. 

) 

On this day of October, 1989, before me, the undersigned, 

a Notary ?u:::<i c i r. ar.d for said said, ~rsonally appeared, LEO H. 

CAl'WBE~L and PHYLL"S B. CAMPBELL, husband and wife, known to llile to 

be the persor.~ whose na~es are subscribed to the within and fore-

going DEED OF GIFT, and ack~owledge1 to me that they had read the 

sa•e, underst:ood t:he content:s t:hereof and the legal effect 

thereof, and that-: t:hey had executed S&l'lle of t:.heir own free will 

and choice. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my 

offical seal t:he d<!y and year in this certificate first above 

' \ l ' 

i i ·' \\.~ ~ .\IV i\\'·"-L~ 
NOTARY' PUBlC FOR IDXHO 
Res i d i n g a t'-' I d ah o F' a 11 s , I d a h o 
My commission Expires: \~/ ·::.:::..: 9··~ 

I 
tNSTllUMENT NoSY{:::·~-
DA TE Ii_.' . ...,.:I.L-

• INST. CODE ; "'f.:-· ,... 
11 FlCHE NO. h<3j.fj;,-:Li..c 

fEE L:..- I 

ST".TE Of fDJ!JID ) i CCl.)',CY OF gQNNEVlllE) "" 

\ l Le:-tol>y rnrtify tt1ot Hw wtthia 

. \ : ".t l·w•rit """'°' roool"lllkw!. 



CHARLES C. JUST, ESQ. ISB 1779 

KIPP L. MANWARING, ESQ. - ISB 3817 

JUST LAW OFFICE 
3 81 Shoup A venue 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83405 
Telephone: (208) 523-9106 
Facsimile: (208) 523-9146 

Attorneys for the Campbells 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
STATE OF IDAHO, COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN 
CAMPBELL, husband and wife; 

Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA 
KVAMME, husband and wife; and JOHN 
DOES I-X; 

Defendants. 

Case No. CV-20?l10-3879 

NOTICE OF HEARING -
Plaintiff's Motion for Summary 
Judgment 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a hearing on Plaintiff's Motion for Summary 

Judgment has been scheduled for the 5th day of July, 2011, at the hour of 11:00 a.m., or as 

soon therafter as counsel can be heard, before the Honorable Jon J. Shindurling, in the 

Bonneville County Courthouse, Idaho Falls, Idaho. 

DATED this fi_ day of May, 2011. 

Notice of Hearing [Summary Judgment] - Page 1 
10504-CA 

~~-Kipp L. Manwaring, Esq. 
Attorney for the Plain: 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the /Cf~ day of May, 2011, a true and correct copy of the 
foregoing document was served upon the person or persons named below, in the manner 
indicated. 

Justin R. Seamons 
Attorney at Law 
414 Shoup A venue 
Idaho Falls, Idaho 83402 

Notice of Hearing [Summary Judgment] - Page 2 
10504-CA 

~ J Hand Delivered 
V\J U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid 
[ ] Facsimile 
[ ] Other 

~~~~~~~~~~ 

4~ Leslie NorthfUP 
Paralegal 
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Justin R. Seamons 
414 Shoup Avenue 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
Telephone Number: (208) 542-0600 
Facsimile Number: (208) 529-4166 
Idaho State Bar Number: 3903 

Attorney for Defendants 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN ) 
CAMPBELL, ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, ) 

) Case No. CV 10-3879 
vs. ) 

) MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT 
JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA ) 
KVAMME, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

~~~~~~~~~) 

INTRODUCTION 

James C. Kvamme and Debra Kvamme respectfully file the following MOTION 

FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT in accordance with 1.R.C.P. 56. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

1. AFFIDAVIT OF JAMES C. KVAMME 

2. EXHIBITS IN SUPPORT OF AFFIDAVIT OF JAMES C. KVAMME 

3. AFFIDAVIT OF KIM H. LEAVITT 

4. EXHIBITS IN SUPPORT OF AFFIDAVIT OF KIM H. LEAVITT 

5. AFFIDAVIT OF BLAKE MUELLER 

MOTION -1 

143 



6. AFFIDAVIT OF MARK HANSEN 

7. NOTICE OF SUBMISSION OF DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL 

APPLICABLE LAW 

l.R.C.P. 56 governs the disposition of this motion: 

... The judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, 
depositions, and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, if any, 
show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the 
moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law. 

See l.R.C.P. 56(c) (emphasis added); see also G & M Farms v. Funk Irrigation Co., 119 

Idaho 514, 808 P.2d 851 (1991 ). 

The following excerpts summarize the law that pertains to motions for summary 

judgment: 

The purpose of summary judgment proceedings is to eliminate the 
necessity of trial where facts are not in dispute and where existent and 
undisputed facts lead to a conclusion of law which is certain. 

Berg v. Fairman, 107 Idaho 441, 690 P.2d 896 (1984). 

The purpose of the rule is to allow the court to pierce the pleadings in 
order to eliminate groundless denials and paper issues in cases which 
would end in directed verdicts or other rules of law. 

Hall v. Bacon, 93 Idaho 1, 3, 453 P.2d 816, 818 (1969). 

Finally, a party opposing summary judgment must "set forth specific facts 

showing that there is a genuine issue for trial and may not rest upon the mere 

allegations of the pleadings to oppose the motion." Brown v. Matthews Mortuary, Inc., 

118 Idaho 830, 839, 801 P.2d 37, 46 (1990). 
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FACTS 

V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen Campbell own a parcel of real property, located in 

the NE1/4 of Section 17, Township 3 North, Range 38 East of the Boise Meridian, 

Bonneville County, Idaho. 

In addition, James C. Kvamme and Debra Kvamme own a parcel of real 

property, located in the NE1/4 of Section 17, Township 3 North, Range 38 East of the 

Boise Meridian, Bonneville County, Idaho. 

The foregoing parcels of real property are contiguous-to wit, the north boundary 

of the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property is contiguous with the south boundary of the 

Defendants' parcel of real property. 

The complaint in this case states, in pertinent part, the following: 

On its northern boundary, the Subject Property abuts the 
Kvammes' real property ... and the purpose of this action is to quiet title 
to the Subject Property in the name of the Campbells against any and all 
persons with adverse claims, interests, encumbrances, easements, liens, 
or rights. 

See COMPLAINT, p. 2, Paragraph 5. 

The Defendants acknowledge that the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property "abuts" 

their parcel of real property; however, they deny that the Plaintiffs have the right to 

"quiet title to the Subject Property" that lies north of the fence between their respective 

parcels of real property. See ANSWER, COUNTERCLAIM, AND DEMAND FOR JURY 

TRIAL, pp. 2-3, Paragraph 5. 

In this regard, please note that a fence runs across the NE1/4 of Section 17. The 

fence is approximately one-half mile long and runs across the entire NE1/4 of 

Section 17. 
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The Plaintiffs allege that the fence does not sit on the boundary between the 

parties' respective parcels of real property; instead, the Plaintiffs allege that the fence 

sits on their parcel of real property and is off by 15 feet. The Defendants deny that the 

fence sits on the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property. 

In the alternative, ft the Plaintiffs can carry their burden of proof and establish 

that the fence sits on their parcel of real property and is off by 15 feet, the Defendants 

claim that they now own the "Subject Property" that lies north of the fence between their 

respective parcels of real property, based on the following: 

a. The doctrine of adverse possession; 

b. The doctrine of boundary by agreement or acquiescence; and/or 

c. The doctrine of quasi-estoppel. 

See ANSWER, COUNTERCLAIM, AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL, pp. 8-9, 

Paragraph 9(f), (g), and (h). 

This MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT only addresses the following three 

issues: The location of the fence, the doctrine of adverse possession, and the doctrine 

of boundary by agreement or acquiescence. 

This MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT does not address the doctrine of 

quasi-estoppel. 

Thus, if this MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT is not dispositive-that is, if 

this MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT does not dispose of the Plaintiffs' 

complaint, the Defendants will file a separate motion for summary judgment to address 

the doctrine of quasi-estoppel. 

MOTION-4 
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For purposes of this MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, the Defendants will 

address the foregoing issues in the following order: 

a. The doctrine of adverse possession. 

b. The doctrine of boundary by agreement or acquiescence. 

c. The location of the fence. 

I. 

ADVERSE POSSESSION 

Idaho Code Section 5-210 states the following: 

For the purpose of constituting an adverse possession, by a person 
claiming title not founded upon a written instrument, judgment, or decree, 
land is deemed to have been possessed and occupied in the following 
cases only: 

(1) Where it has been protected by a substantial 
enclosure. 

(2) Where it has been usually cultivated or 
improved. 

Provided, however, that in no case shall adverse possession be 
considered established under the provisions of any sections of this code 
unless it shall be shown that the land has been occupied and claimed for 
the period of 20 years continuously, and the party or persons, their 
predecessors and grantors, have paid all the taxes, state, county, or 
municipal, which have been levied and assessed upon such land 
according to law. Provided, further, that adverse possession shall not be 
considered established under the provisions of any sections of this code if 
a written instrument has been recorded in the real estate records kept by 
the county recorder of the county in which the property is located and such 
written instrument declares that it was not the intent of a party to such 
instrument, by permitting possession or occupation of real property, to 
thereby define property boundaries or ownership. 
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NE1/4 OF SECTION 17 

Hannah Davis transferred the NE1/4 of Section 17 to Charlotte Campbell in 

1937: 

Hannah Davis has long since passed away. Charlotte Campbell was thereafter 

"in actual possession of, farmed, and paid the taxes on the above-described real 

property"-that is, the NE1/4 of Section 17. Charlotte Campbell has also long since 

passed away. 
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In 1950, Charlotte Campbell transferred the N1/2 of the NE1/4 to her daughter, 

Mary Killian, and the S1/2 of the NE1/4 to her son, Leo H. Campbell: 

Leo H. Campbell was the father of V. Leo Campbell, the Plaintiff in this case. 

Mary Killian thereafter "possessed and occupied" the N1/2 of the NE1/4 and Leo H. 

Campbell thereafter "possessed and occupied" the S1/2 of the NE1/4. Mary Killian and 

Leo H. Campbell have also long since passed away. 
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51/2 OF THE NE1/4 OF SECTION 17 

With respect to the S1/2 of the NE1/4, before he passed away, Leo H. Campbell 

transferred approximately 1.4 acres thereof to his son, V. Leo Campbell, in 1981. 

V. Leo Campbell moved a home onto this acre in the same year-that is, in 1981-and he 

lives in that home to this day, 30 years later. 

In addition, Leo H. Campbell split the S1/2 of the NE1/4 into four parcels of real 

property. He then transferred one parcel of real property to each of his four 

children-namely, V. Leo Campbell, Jo Campbell, Margy Spradling, and Halene 

Campbell: 
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Leo H. Campbell transferred the foregoing parcels of real property to his children 

by DEED OF GIFT, not by warranty deed. 

N1/2 OF THE NE1/4 OF SECTION 17 

With respect to the N1/2 of the NE1/4, the estate of Mary Killian transferred it to 

James C. Kvamme and Debra Kvamme on July 29, 2003. Since then-that is, since 

July 29, 2003, the Defendants have continuously "possessed and occupied" it: 

FENCE 

With respect to the fence that runs across the NE1/4-that is, the fence that runs 

between the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property and the Defendants' parcel of real 

property, again, the Plaintiffs allege that the fence does not sit on the boundary 

MOTION - 9 
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between the parties' respective parcels of real property; instead, the Plaintiffs allege 

that the fence sits on their parcel of real property and is off by 15 feet. Of course, the 

Defendants deny that the fence sits on the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property. 

The fence has been in its current location since time immemorial. During his 

deposition, V. Leo Campbell testified that he "believes the fence was there before the 

Davises bought the property." Hannah Davis and her husband, Parley Davis, 

purchased the NE1/4 on March 3, 1919. 

For purposes of this motion, as well as convenience and common sense, the 

Plaintiffs and the Defendants both acknowledge and agree that the fence has been in its 

current location since their predecessors in interest purchased their respective parcels 

of real property in 1950. 

ELEMENT NO 1: "PROTECTED BY A SUBSTANTIAL ENCLOSURE" 

The estate of Mary Killian transferred the N1/2 of the NE1/4 to the Defendants on 

July 29, 2003. The N1/2 of the NE1/4 used to have a fence around it, which fully 

enclosed it. The fence around the N1/2 of the NE1/4 was a "substantial enclosure." 

In this regard, please note that this area is not open range. 

Before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, the Defendants' predecessor in 

interest grazed cattle and pastured horses on the N1/2 of the NE1/4. 

Today, the Defendants farm the N1/2 of the NE1/4, and they have done so since 

2003. For purposes of farming, the fence is not necessary and the Defendants do not 

need it; again, they farm the N1/2 of the NE1/4; they do not graze cattle or pasture 

horses on it. 
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Thus, the Defendants have not maintained the fence on the east boundary, 

which runs along 15th East Street, or the north boundary, which runs along 113 North 

Street, and the fence is currently not there. Nonetheless, with respect to the south 

boundary, the fence is still there. Of course, that is the fence that runs between the 

Plaintiffs' parcel of real property and the Defendants' parcel of real property. Again, that 

fence has been in its current location since at least 1950. 

More importantly, that fence was and still is a "substantial enclosure." In this 

regard, please note the following: 

Before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, the Defendants' predecessor in 

interest grazed cattle and pastured horses on the north side of the fence. The fence 

enclosed and protected the real property on the north side of the fence; for example, it 

contained the cattle and horses and stopped them from drifting or straying or roaming at 

large, including onto the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property. 

In addition, the Plaintiffs pasture horses on the south side of the fence; so, too, 

did their predecessor in interest-that is, Leo H. Campbell. Again, the fence encloses 

and protects the real property on the south side of the fence; for example, it contains the 

Plaintiffs' horses and stops them from drifting or straying or roaming at large, including 

onto the Defendants' parcel of real property. 

Thus, from at least 1950 to the present, the fence has protected the real property 

on the both sides of the fence; and, with specific reference to the north side of the 

fence, which is the Defendants' side of the fence, the fence has protected the real 

property by stopping outside cattle and horses from drifting or straying or roaming at 
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large onto the real property, as well as stopping trespassers and other third parties from 

coming onto the real property, including the Plaintiffs and their horses. 

The fence is sturdy and strong. It includes metal posts, solid steel T-bars, 

wooden posts, and five strands of barbed wire. It is approximately 4.5 feet high and the 

bottom wire is less than 20 inches above the ground. The posts are less than 24 feet 

apart, evenly spaced, and solidly set in the ground. The barbed wire is reasonably tight, 

well-stretched, and securely fastened to the posts. 

Since 2003, the Defendants have personally maintained the fence; so, too, have 

the Plaintiffs. In addition, before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, the Defendants' 

predecessor in interest maintained the fence; so, too, did the Plaintiffs and their 

predecessor interest. 

ELEMENT NO 2: "USUALLY CULTIVATED OR IMPROVED" 

The N1/2 of the NE1/4 is not in native condition; it is not high plateau desert or 

growing indigenous plants, such as sagebrush and bitter brush. The N1/2 of the NE1/4 

has been "usually cultivated or improved" since time immemorial; for example, it has 

been farmed, used for pasture, in production, and under irrigation since at least 1927. 

For their part, the Defendants have cultivated or improved the N1/2 of the NE1/4 

since 2003; for example, they have farmed it and installed a pivot on it, which further 

improved it. 

Of course, before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, the Defendants' 

predecessor in interest cultivated or improved it; again, it has been farmed, used for 

pasture, in production, and under irrigation since at least 1927. 
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ELEMENT NO. 3: ADVERSE POSSESSION FOR "20 YEARS" 

The following quote summaries the elements of adverse possession: 

In the case of boundary disputes between contiguous landowners, 
where one landowner can establish continuous open, notorious and 
hostile possession of an adjoining strip of his neighbor's land, and taxes 
are assessed by lot number or by government survey designation, rather 
than by metes and bounds description, payment of taxes on the lot within 
which the disputed tract is enclosed satisfies the tax payment requirement 
of the statute. 

Standall v. Teater, 96 Idaho 152, 156, 525 P.2d 347, 351 (1974); see also Scott v. 

Gubler, 95 Idaho 441, 511 P.2d 258 (1973). 

This case is a "boundary dispute between contiguous landowners"; again, the 

north boundary of the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property is contiguous with the south 

boundary of the Defendants' parcel of real property. 

Since 2003, the Defendants have "possessed an adjoining strip of [their] 

neighbor's land"-to wit, the real property that lies north of the fence between their 

respective parcels of real property-and they have done so "continuously, openly, 

and notoriously and hostilely"-that is, they have done so against the right, title, and 

interest of the Plaintiffs and without the Plaintiffs' permission, consent, or approval. 

Of course, before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, the Defendants' 

predecessor in interest "possessed" the rea I property that lies north of the fence 

between the parties' respective parcels of real property-and she did so "continuously, 

openly, and notoriously and hostilely"-that is, she did so against the right, title, and 

interest of the Plaintiffs and without the Plaintiffs' permission, consent, or approval. 
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During his deposition, V. Leo Campbell duly admitted to a// of the elements of 

adverse possession. See AFFIDAVIT OF JAMES C. KVAMME. 

ELEMENT NO. 4: "PAID ALL THE TAXES" 

Since 2003, the Defendants have "paid all the taxes" that have been "levied and 

assessed" against their parcel of real property-that is, Parcel No. RP03N38E170008, 

whether state, county, or municipal. The Plaintiffs agree. 

Of course, before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, the Defendants' 

predecessor in interest "paid all the taxes" that were "levied and assessed" against their 

parcel of real property, whether state, county, or municipal. Again, the Plaintiffs agree. 

The taxes on Parcel No. RP03N38E170008 are current. No taxes are 

outstanding, past due, or otherwise in default or arrears. 

The legal description of the Defendants' parcel of real property is the N1/2 of the 

NE1/4. The legal description of their parcel of real property is not a legal description, 

based on metes and bounds-that is, a legal description, based on specific calls of 

directions and distances from a stated point of beginning; instead, it is a legal 

description, based on a standard section of land under the U.S. Public Land Survey 

System, which nominally contains 640 acres. 

Thus, the "payment of taxes on the lot within which the disputed tract is enclosed 

satisfies the tax payment requirement of the statute." See Standall v. Teater, 96 Idaho 

152, 156, 525 P.2d 347, 351 (1974). Of course, the "disputed tract" in this case is 

located "within" the real property that lies north of the fence, which is the Defendants' 

parcel of real property. 
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ELEMENT NO. 5: NO "WRITTEN INSTRUMENT HAS BEEN RECORDED" 

Finally, the Plaintiffs, including their predecessor in interest did not record a 

"written instrument" in the records of Bonneville County, Idaho, "declaring that it was not 

the intent of the party to such instrument, by permitting possession or occupancy of real 

property, to thereby define property boundaries or ownership." 

II. 

BOUNDARY BY AGREEMENT OR ACQUIESCENCE 

The following quote summarizes the elements of boundary by agreement or 

acquiescence: 

Boundary by agreement or acquiescence has two elements: 
(1) There must be an uncertain or disputed boundary, and (2) a 
subsequent agreement fixing the boundary .... A subsequent agreement 
may be inferred from the conduct of parties or their predecessors, 
including acquiescence to the location and maintenance of a fence for a 
long period of time. 

Weitz v. Green, 148 Idaho 851, 860, 230 P.3d 743, 752 (2010). 

ELEMENT NO. 1: "UNCERTAIN OR DISPUTED BOUNDARY" 

The Defendants purchased the N1/2 of the NE1/4 on July 29, 2003. They paid 

good and valuable consideration for it: $150,000.00. They did so upon the belief that 

their predecessor in interest had good and marketable title to the N1/2 of the NE1/4 and 

that her title thereto was valid, including the real property that lies north of the fence; 

and, with specific reference to the real property that lies north of the fence, they did so 

upon the belief that it was part of the N1/2 of the NE1/4. 

The Defendants did not have any notice, whether actual or constructive, that the 

Plaintiffs claimed any right, title, or interest in the real property that lies north of the 
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fence; and, with specific reference to the real property that lies north of the fence, they 

did not have any notice, whether actual or constructive, of any outstanding and/or 

adverse rights of another, including, without limitation, the Plaintiffs. 

The Defendants farm the N1/2 of the NE1/4. They are not professional land 

surveyors and they are not licensed to practice professional land surveying under 

Chapter 12, Title 54, of the Idaho Code. 

From that standpoint, they do not know the boundary between the Plaintiffs' 

parcel of real property and their parcel of real property; thus, the boundary is 

"uncertain or disputed." 

Likewise, the Plaintiffs do not know the boundary between the parties' respective 

parcels of real property; again, the boundary is "uncertain or disputed": 

Q. Of your own personal knowledge, do you know the 
boundary, the actual boundary, the true and correct 
boundary, between the north half of the northeast quarter 
and the south half of the northeast quarter of Section 17? 

A. Not the exact, no. 

Q. And when you say not the exact boundary, no, by that you 
would also agree that you're uncertain as to the true and 
correct boundary between the north half and the south half 
of the northeast quarter of Section 17? 

A. I agree. I would be uncertain, as would everybody else. 

Q. Now, notwithstanding the fact that you are uncertain about 
that boundary, your contention in this case is that the 
boundary is in dispute, correct? 

A. Correct. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 214, II. 6-23. 
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ELEMENT NO. 2: "SUBSEQUENT AGREEMENT FIXING THE 
BOUNDARY, WHICH MAY BE INFERRED FROM THE CONDUCT 

OF THE PARTIES OR THEIR PREDECESSORS, INCLUDING 
ACQUIESCENCE TO THE LOCATION AND MAINTENANCE 

OF A FENCE FOR A LONG PERIOD OF TIME" 

With respect to the location of the fence, again, it has been in its current location 

since time immemorial. Again, during his deposition, V. Leo Campbell testified that he 

"believes the fence was there before the Davises bought the property." They purchased 

the NE1 /4 on March 3, 1919. 

Notwithstanding his "belief," please note that the Plaintiffs do not know the 

following: 

a. The Plaintiffs do not know who constructed the fence. 

b. The Plaintiffs do not know when it was constructed. 

c. The Plaintiffs do not know why it was constructed. 

The deposition of V. Leo Campbell is rife with hearsay, speculation, and 

allegations that lack proper foundation. The Defendants have quoted the deposition at 

length in order to evidence and confirm that the Plaintiffs do not know who constructed 

the fence, when it was constructed, or why it was constructed Nonetheless, the 

Defendants hereby object to the statements and allegations that constitute hearsay, 

speculation, and/or that lack proper foundation because the foregoing statements and 

allegations are not relevant or admissible. See I.RE. 103, 401, 402, 801, and 802. 

In any event, the parties have "acquiesced to the location of the fence for a long 

period of time." In addition, the parties have "maintained of the fence for a long period 

of time." 
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Finally, the "conduct of the parties and their predecessors" evidences and 

confirms the following: On the one hand, the Plaintiffs and their predecessor in interest 

have never enclosed the real property that lies north of the fence; they have never 

cultivated it, improved it, used it, irrigated it, or put it in production; they have never 

received rental income from it; they have never received a share crop from it; they have 

never posted it for sale; and they have never notified any third party, whether by way of 

actual notice or constructive notice, that the fence allegedly does not sit on the 

boundary between the parties' respective parcels of real property. On the other hand, 

the Defendants and their predecessor in interest have always enclosed the real 

property that lies north of the fence; they have always cultivated it, improved it, used it, 

irrigated it, and put it in production; and they have now installed a pivot, mainline, and 

motor on the N1/2 of the NE1/4, which further improved it. 

Ill. 

TRUE AND CORRECT LOCATION OF THE FENCE 

The fence is exactly 3,960 feet from the SE corner of Section 17; in other words, 

the fence sits on the boundary between the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property and the 

Defendants' parcel of real property; it does not sit on the Plaintiffs' parcel of real 

property, notwithstanding their allegation to the contrary, and it is not off by 15 feet. 

See AFFIDAVIT OF KIM H. LEAVITT. 
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CONCLUSION 

The Defendants respectfully move the court to grant their MOTION FOR 

SUMMARY JUDGMENT. In this regard, "there is no genuine issue as to any material 

fact" and they are "entitled to a judgment as a matter of law." See l.R.C.P. 56(c). 

Dated June 7, 2011. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I served a copy of the foregoing MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT on the 

following person on June 7, 2011: 

Kipp L. Manwaring 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, ID 83405-0271 
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Justin R. Seamons 
414 Shoup Avenue 
Idaho Falls, ID 83402 
Telephone Number: (208) 542-0600 
Facsimile Number: (208) 529-4166 
Idaho State Bar Number: 3903 

Attorney for Defendants 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 

STATE OF IDAHO, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF BONNEVILLE 

V. LEO CAMPBELL and KATHLEEN ) 
CAMPBELL, ) 

) 
Plaintiffs, ) 

) Case No. CV 10-3879 
vs. ) 

) AFFIDAVIT OF JAMES C. KVAMME 
JAMES C. KVAMME and DEBRA ) 
KVAMME, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

State of Idaho ) 
) SS. 

County of Bonneville ) 

I, James C. Kvamme, state and declare the following under oath: 

INTRODUCTION 

1. I am over the age of 18. 

2. I have personal knowledge of the facts in this case. 

3. I am competent to testify to the matters stated herein. 

4. V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen Campbell are the Plaintiffs in this case. 

5. My wife and I are the Defendants in this case. 
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6. V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen Campbell filed the complaint in this case 

on June 30, 2010. 

7. V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen Campbell own a parcel of real property, 

located in the NE1/4 of Section 17, Township 3 North, Range 38 East of the Boise 

Meridian, Bonneville County, Idaho. 

8. In addition, my wife and I own a parcel of real property, located in the 

NE1/4 of Section 17, Township 3 North, Range 38 East of the Boise Meridian, 

Bonneville County, Idaho. 

9. The foregoing parcels of real property are contiguous-to wit, the north 

boundary of the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property is contiguous with the south boundary 

of our parcel of real property. 

10. Thus, the complaint in this case states, in pertinent part, the following: 

On its northern boundary, the Subject Property abuts the 
Kvammes' real property ... and the purpose of this action is to quiet title 
to the Subject Property in the name of the Campbells against any and all 
persons with adverse claims, interests, encumbrances, easements, liens, 
or rights. 

See COMPLAINT, p. 2, Paragraph 5. 

11. My wife and I acknowledge that the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property 

"abuts" our parcel of real property; however, we deny that the Plaintiffs have the right to 

"quiet title to the Subject Property" that lies north of the fence between our respective 

parcels of real property. See ANSWER, COUNTERCLAIM, AND DEMAND FOR JURY 

TRIAL, pp. 2-3, Paragraph 5. 

12. In this regard, please note that a fence runs across the NE1/4 of 

Section 17. 
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13. The fence is approximately one-half mile long and runs across the entire 

NE1/4 of Section 17. 

14. V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen Campbell allege that the fence does not sit 

on the boundary between our respective parcels of real property; instead, V. Leo 

Campbell and Kathleen Campbell allege that the fence sits on their parcel of real 

property and is off by 15 feet. 

15. My wife and I deny that the fence sits on the Plaintiffs' parcel of real 

property. 

16. In the alternative, ft, and I repeat ft, the Plaintiffs can carry their burden of 

proof and establish that the fence sits on their parcel of real property and is off by 15 

feet, my wife and I claim that we now own the "Subject Property" that lies north of the 

fence between our respective parcels of real property, based on the following: 

a. The doctrine of adverse possession; 

b. The doctrine of boundary by agreement or acquiescence; 

and/or 

c. The doctrine of quasi-estoppel. 

See ANSWER, COUNTERCLAIM, AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL, pp. 8-9, 

Paragraph 9(f), (g), and (h). 

17. This MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT onlv addresses the following 

three issues-namely, the location of the fence, the doctrine of adverse possession, and 

the doctrine of boundary by agreement or acquiescence. 

18. This MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT does not address the 

doctrine of quasi-estoppel. 
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19. Thus, if this MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT is not 

dispositive-that is, if this MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT does not dispose of 

the Plaintiffs' complaint, my wife and I will file a separate motion for summary judgment 

to address the doctrine of quasi-estoppel. 

20. For purposes of this MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, I will 

address the foregoing issues in the following order: 

a. The doctrine of adverse possession. 

b. The doctrine of boundary by agreement or acquiescence. 

c. The location of the fence. 

I. 

ADVERSE POSSESSION 

21. I have reviewed the provisions of Idaho Code Section 5-210: 

For the purpose of constituting an adverse possession, by a person 
claiming title not founded upon a written instrument, judgment, or decree, 
land is deemed to have been possessed and occupied in the following 
cases only: 

(1) Where it has been protected by a substantial 
enclosure. 

(2) Where it has been usually cultivated or 
improved. 

Provided, however, that in no case shall adverse possession be 
considered established under the provisions of any sections of this code 
unless it shall be shown that the land has been occupied and claimed for 
the period of 20 years continuously, and the party or persons, their 
predecessors and grantors, have paid all the taxes, state, county, or 
municipal, which have been levied and assessed upon such land 
according to law. Provided, further, that adverse possession shall not be 
considered established under the provisions of any sections of this code if 
a written instrument has been recorded in the real estate records kept by 
the county recorder of the county in which the property is located and such 
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written instrument declares that it was not the intent of a party to such 
instrument, by permitting possession or occupation of real property, to 
thereby define property boundaries or ownership. 

NE1/4 OF SECTION 17 

22. Hannah Davis transferred the NE1/4 of Section 17 to Charlotte Campbell 

in 1937: 

See EXHIBIT A. 

23. Hannah Davis has long since passed away. 

24. Charlotte Campbell was thereafter "in actual possession of, farmed, and 

paid the taxes on the above-described real property"-that is, the NE1/4 of Section 17. 

See EXHIBIT B. 
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25. Charlotte Campbell has also long since passed away. 

26. In 1950, Charlotte Campbell transferred the N1/2 of the NE1/4 to her 

daughter, Mary Killian, and the S1/2 of the NE1/4 to her son, Leo H. Campbell: 

See EXHIBIT C and EXHIBIT D. 

27. Leo H. Campbell was the father of V. Leo Campbell, the Plaintiff in this 

case. 

28. Mary Killian thereafter "possessed and occupied" the N1/2 of the NE1/4 

and Leo H. Campbell thereafter "possessed and occupied" the S1/2 of the NE1/4. 

29. Mary Killian and Leo H. Campbell have also long since passed away. 
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S1/2 OF THE NE1/4 OF SECTION 17 

30. With respect to the S1/2 of the NE1/4, before he passed away, 

Leo H. Campbell transferred approximately 1.4 acres thereof to his son, V. Leo 

Campbell, in 1981. 

31. V. Leo Campbell moved a home onto this acre in the same year-that is, 

in 1981-and he lives in that home to this day, 30 years later. 

32. In addition, Leo H. Campbell split the S1/2 of the NE1/4 into four parcels 

of real property. 

33. He then transferred one parcel of real property to each of his four 

children-to wit, V. Leo Campbell, Jo Campbell, Margy Spradling, and Halene Campbell: 
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34. Leo H. Campbell transferred the foregoing parcels of real property to his 

children by DEED OF GIFT, not by warranty deed. See EXHIBITS E, F, G, and H. 

N1/2 OF THE NE1/4 OF SECTION 17 

35. With respect to the N1/2 of the NE1/4, the estate of Mary Killian 

transferred it to me and my wife on July 29, 2003. See EXHIBIT I. 

36. Since then-that is, since July 29, 2003, my wife and I have continuously 

"possessed and occupied" it: 
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FENCE 

37. With respect to the fence that runs across the NE1/4-that is, the fence 

that runs between the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property and our parcel of real property, 

again, the Plaintiffs allege that the fence does not sit on the boundary between our 

respective parcels of real property; instead, the Plaintiffs allege that the fence sits on 

their parcel of real property and is off by 15 feet. 

38. Again, my wife and I deny that the fence sits on the Plaintiffs' parcel of real 

property. 

39. In any event, the fence has been 1n its current location since time 

immemorial. 

40. Of my own personal knowledge, the fence has been in its current location 

for at least 29 years. 

41. In this regard, I have personally driven by the fence, farmed, and lived in 

the area since 1982. 

42. During discovery, V. Leo Campbell stated that he "believes Hyrum 

Campbell erected the fence." See ANSWER TO INTERROGATORY NO. 14, dated 

September 30, 2010. 

43. Hyrum Campbell was the husband of Charlotte Campbell; again, Charlotte 

Campbell purchased the NE1/4 from Hannah Davis in 1937. See EXHIBIT A. 

44. Hyrum Campbell passed away 12 years later on January 17, 1949. See 

EXHIBIT B. 
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45. However, at his deposition, V. Leo Campbell stated that he "believes the 

fence was there before the Davises bought the property." See DEPOSITION OF V. 

LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 219, II. 5-6. 

46. Hannah Davis and her husband, Parley Davis, purchased the NE1/4 on 

March 3, 1919. See EXHIBIT J. 

47. To my knowledge, no one-at least no one alive-knows whether the fence 

was there "before the Davises bought the property" in 1919. 

48. For purposes of this motion, as well as convenience and common sense, 

V. Leo Campbell and I both acknowledge and agree that the fence has been in its 

current location since our predecessors in interest purchased their respective parcels of 

real property in 1950. 

49. In this regard, please recall the following: 

a. Charlotte Campbell transferred the N1/2 of the NE1/4 to her 

daughter, Mary Killian, in 1950; of course, Mary Killian was my 

predecessor in interest. See EXHIBIT C. 

b. In addition, Charlotte Campbell transferred the S1 /2 of the 

NE1/4 to her son, Leo H. Campbell, in 1950; of course, Leo H. Campbell 

was the Plaintiffs' predecessor in interest. See EXHIBIT D. 

ELEMENT NO 1: "PROTECTED BY A SUBSTANTIAL ENCLOSURE" 

50. The estate of Mary Killian transferred the N1/2 of the NE1/4 to me and my 

wife on July 29, 2003. See EXHIBIT I. 
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51. The N1/2 of the NE1/4 used to have a fence around it, which fully 

enclosed it. 1 

52. The fence around the N1/2 of the NE1/4 was a "substantial enclosure."2 

In this regard, please note that this area is not open range. 

53. Before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, my predecessor in 

interest-that is, Mary Killian and her husband, Delbert Killian-grazed cattle and 

pastured horses on the N1/2 of the NE1/4. See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, 

vol. II, p. 134, II. 6-11, and p. 161, II. 1-2. 

54. Today, my wife and I farm the N1/2 of the NE1/4, and we have done so 

since 2003. 

55. For purposes of farming, the fence is not necessary and my wife and I do 

not need it; again, we farm the N1/2 of the NE1/4; we do not graze cattle or pasture 

horses on it. 

56. Thus, my wife and I have not maintained the fence on the east boundary, 

which runs along 151
h East Street, or the north boundary, which runs along 113 North 

Street, and the fence is currently not there. 

57. Nonetheless, with respect to the south boundary, the fence is still there. 

58. Of course, that is the fence that runs between the Plaintiffs' parcel of real 

property and our parcel of real property. 

1ln fact, the entire NE1/4 used to have a fence around it. That fence-that is, the 
fence around the entire NE1/4-was a "substantial enclosure." See DEPOSITION OF 
V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. II, p. 136, I. 12 top. 137, I. 18. 

2See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 192, I. 18 top. 195, I. 22. 
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59. Again, that fence has been in its current location since at least 1950. 

60. More importantly, that fence was and still is a "substantial enclosure." In 

this regard, please note the following: 

a. Before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, my 

predecessor in interest-that is, Mary Killian-grazed cattle and pastured 

horses on the north side of the fence. The fence enclosed and protected 

the real property on the north side of the fence; for example, it contained 

the cattle and horses and stopped them from drifting or straying or 

roaming at large, including onto the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property. 

b. In addition, V. Leo Campbell and Kathleen Campbell pasture 

horses on the south side of the fence; so, too, did their predecessor in 

interest-that is, Leo H. Campbell. Again, the fence encloses and protects 

the real property on the south side of the fence; for example, it contains 

the Plaintiffs' horses and stops them from drifting or straying or roaming at 

large, including onto our parcel of real property. 

c. Thus, from at least 1950 to the present, the fence has 

protected the real property on the both sides of the fence; and, with 

specific reference to the north side of the fence, which is my side of the 

fence, the fence has protected the real property by stopping outside cattle 

and horses from drifting or straying or roaming at large onto the real 

property, as well as stopping trespassers and other third parties from 

coming onto the real property, including the Plaintiffs and their horses. 
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d. Again, the fence was and still is a substantial enclosure. In 

this regard, I took the following pictures of the fence on May 31, 2011: 

1. EXHIBIT K is a picture of the fence, which 

took from the southwest corner of my parcel of real 

property, facing east. It shows my pivot, which is on the 

north side of the fence. In addition, it shows the Plaintiffs' 

pasture, which is on the south side of the fence. 

2. EXHIBIT L is a picture of the fence, which I 

took from the center of my real property, facing west. It 

shows the mainline riser and concrete pad of my pivot. 

3. EXHIBIT M is a picture of the fence, which 

took from the center of my real property, facing west. Again, 

it shows the mainline riser and concrete pad of my pivot. 

4. EXHIBIT N is a picture of the fence, which 

took from the center of my real property, facing east. It 

shows the Plaintiffs' pasture and horses on the south side of 

the fence. 

e. The fence is sturdy and strong. It includes metal posts, solid 

steel T-bars, wooden posts, and five strands of barbed wire. It is 

approximately 4.5 feet high and the bottom wire is less than 20 inches 

above the ground. The posts are less than 24 feet apart, evenly spaced, 

and solidly set in the ground. The barbed wire is reasonably tight, 

well-stretched, and securely fastened to the posts. 
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f. Since 2003, I have personally maintained the fence; so, too, 

have the Plaintiffs. In addition, before 2003, and going back to at least 

1950, my predecessor in interest-that is, Mary Killian-maintained the 

fence; so, too, did the Plaintiffs and their predecessor interest-that is, 

Leo H. Campbell. See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. 111, 

p. 195, I. 23 top. 198, I. 7. 

ELEMENT NO 2: "USUALLY CULTIVATED OR IMPROVED" 

61. The N1/2 of the NE1/4 is not in native condition; it is not high plateau 

desert or growing indigenous plants, such as sagebrush and bitter brush. 

62. The N1/2 of the NE1/4 has been "usually cultivated or improved" since 

time immemorial; for example, it has been farmed, used for pasture, in production, and 

under irrigation since at least 1927. See EXHIBIT O; see also DEPOSITION OF 

V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. II, p. 145, I. 11 to p. 146, I. 15, and vol. Ill, p. 198, I. 15 to 

p. 199, I. 7. 

63. For my part, my wife and I have cultivated or improved the N1/2 of the 

NE1/4 since 2003; for example, we have farmed it and installed a pivot on it, which 

further improved it. 

64. Of course, before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, my predecessor 

in interest-that is, Mary Killian-cultivated or improved it; again, it has been farmed, used 

for pasture, in production, and under irrigation since at least 1927. See supra. 
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ELEMENT NO. 3: ADVERSE POSSESSION FOR "20 YEARS" 

65. I have reviewed and understand the elements of adverse possession: 

In the case of boundary disputes between contiguous landowners, 
where one landowner can establish continuous open, notorious and 
hostile possession of an adjoining strip of his neighbor's land, and taxes 
are assessed by lot number or by government survey designation, rather 
than by metes and bounds description, payment of taxes on the lot within 
which the disputed tract is enclosed satisfies the tax payment requirement 
of the statute. 

Standall v. Teater, 96 Idaho 152, 156, 525 P.2d 347, 351 (1974); see also Scott v. 

Gubler, 95 Idaho 441, 511 P.2d 258 (1973). 

66. This is a "boundary dispute between contiguous landowners"; again, the 

north boundary of the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property is contiguous with the south 

boundary of our parcel of real property. 

67. Since 2003, my wife and I have allegedly "possessed an adjoining strip of 

[our] neighbor's land"-to wit, the real property that lies north of the fence between our 

respective parcels of real property-and we have done so "continuously, openly, 

and notoriously and hostilely"-that is, we have done so against the right, title, and 

interest of the Plaintiffs and without the Plaintiffs' permission, consent, or approval. 

68. Of course, before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, our predecessor 

in interest-that is, Mary Killian-"possessed" the real property that lies north of the fence 

between our respective parcels of real property-and she did so "continuously, openly, 

and notoriously and hostilely"-that is, she did so against the right, title, and interest of 

the Plaintiffs and without the Plaintiffs' permission, consent, or approval. 

69. I personally attended the deposition of V. Leo Campbell on January 26 

and 28, 2011. 
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70. V. Leo Campbell duly admitted to a// of the elements of adverse 

possession: 

Q. On Wednesday, we reviewed the chain of title on this 
property and learned that [Delbert H. Killian and Mary C. 
Killian] received the deed in 1950 to the north half of the 
northeast quarter, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And, again, you don't dispute that they acquired the north 
half of the property, do you? 

A. No. 

Q. In terms of a chain of title, we also reviewed a deed to their 
mother - well, to Mary's mother, Charlotte, in 1937, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And, again, you don't dispute that Charlotte acquired the 
property, all of the northeast quarter, in 1937, do you? 

A. No. 

Q. Since 2003, you acknowledge and admit that Craig has 
continuously occupied the north half of the northeast quarter, 
don't you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And even with reference to the property north of the fence, 
you acknowledge and agree that he has continuously 
occupied even that land -

A. Yes. 

Q. - since 2003, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You don't allege that Craig has ever abandoned the 
property, true? 
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A. True. 

Q. You don't allege that he's ever vacated the property, true? 

A. True. 

Q. You don't allege that his occupancy has otherwise been 
interrupted, there's been no seizure or forfeiture or eviction? 

A. Not to my knowledge, huh-uh. 

Q. With reference to his grantor and predecessor in title, and 
that is Delbert Henry Killian and Mary C. Killian, you 
acknowledge and agree that they continuously occupied the 
north half of the northeast quarter before Mr. Kvamme, don't 
you? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And that would also include the ground north of the fence 
that is in dispute in this case, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And, again, you don't allege that they abandoned any of the 
property? 

A. No. 

Q. You agree that they didn't vacate and their occupancy wasn't 
interrupted, true? 

A. True. 

Q. And there's no allegation here that they were evicted or that 
the property was seized and taken away from them at any 
time, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. With reference to Mr. Kvamme's use and occupancy since 
2003, you likewise admit that it has been open and plainly 
visible, correct? 

A. Correct. 
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Q. And that, again, would include all of the ground north of the 
fence? 

A. Correct. 

Q. In fact, he has installed a pivot, pump, and motor on that 
ground north of the fence, hasn't he? 

A. Yes, he has. 

Q. And, again, that was plainly and openly visible? 

A. Yup. 

Q. And you had knowledge of it and you've known about his 
open use since 2003? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And, again, with reference to his predecessors in title, that is 
Delbert Henry Killian and Mary C. Killian, again, their 
occupancy and use of the property was open and plainly 
visible? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And that would include the land north of the fence that's in 
dispute in this case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you knew about their use and occupancy of all of the 
land, didn't you? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. And prior to your coming onto the property in 1981, your 
father knew about their use and occupancy of the land north 
of the fence, didn't he? 

A. Yes, he did. 

Q. With reference to Craig's use, which, again, began in 2003, 
you acknowledge and agree that his occupancy of the 
property has been hostile and adverse to you, correct? 
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Mr. Manwaring: Objection, you can answer. 

A. I don't know that it's been hostile and adverse. 

Q. Well, with reference to the north half of the northeast quarter, 
you do agree that his occupancy of the north half of the 
northeast quarter has been against any interest you might 
have in the property and adverse to you, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And that would include all of the land north of the fence 
that's in dispute in this case, correct? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object to the form. You can answer. 

A. I didn't follow you on that one. 

Q. Well, with reference to all of the ground north of the fence -

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. - Craig has continuously used it. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Continuously occupied it. 

A. Yes. 

Q. You've known about that. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And that has been against what you claim is your interest in 
the property, true? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object to the form. You can answer. 

A. I'm not real sure what you're asking me for here. 

Q. Well, let me see if I can break it down a bit into simple parts. 
You've acknowledged and agreed that Craig has occupied 
the property, including all of the property north of the fence, 
correct? 
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A. Correct. 

Q. You've agreed and acknowledged that you knew about his 
occupancy of the property, including all of the property north 
of the fence? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And yet you claim the property north of the fence, to some 
distance, is your property? 

A. Correct. 

Q. All right. So you would agree, then, that his occupancy and 
use of the property has been hostile to your claimed interest 
in that property? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object to the form. You can answer. 

A. Again, I don't see the hostile. 

Q. Well, it's been adverse to your interest or your claimed 
interest in that property. Would you at least agree with that? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection, same. Go ahead. 

A. I really don't know what you want. This is a rather long, 
convoluted situation that has developed to this point over the 
last few years. 

Q. Do you allege or claim that you ever told Mr. Kvamme that 
you claimed an interest in the land north of the fence? 

A. I attempted to. 

Q. Do you allege or claim that you ever told Mr. Kvamme that 
you claim an interest in the land north of the fence, yes or 
no. 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. 
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A. He never gave me the opportunity to. 

Q. All right. But you at least admit you didn't tell him that you 
claimed an interest in the land north of the fence? 

A. I attempted to. 

Q. That's fine, but you just told me that he didn't let you finish, 
and so you didn't. 

A. Exactly. 

Q. Now, let's go back to this common building block. If you 
never told him that you claimed an interest in the land north 
of the fence, isn't it equally true that you never gave him 
permission to use the land north of the fence? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object to the form. Go ahead and answer. 

A. No. I didn't give him permission to use the land. 

Q. Okay. And isn't it also true that you never gave him consent 
to use the land north of the fence? 

A. True. 

Q. And you never gave him any other form of authorization to 
use the land north of the fence, correct? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection. Go ahead and answer. 

A. No. 

Q. And, furthermore, you never recorded a written instrument in 
the records of Bonneville County claiming that you had an 
interest in the land north of the fence, did you? 

A. No. 

Q. Or a written instrument that alleged he was occupying that 
land with your permission, did you? 

A. No. 
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Q. Or a written instrument stating or declaring that you had an 
ownership interest in any of the land north of the fence, did 
you? 

A. No. 

Q. Again, with reference to his predecessor and grantor in title, 
and that is Delbert H. Killian and Mary C. Killian, you likewise 
never granted permission to them to use and occupy the 
land north of the fence, did you? 

A. No. 

Q. And you never gave them consent to use and occupy the 
land north of the fence? 

A. No. 

Q. You never gave them any other form of authorization to use 
and occupy the land north of the fence? 

A. No. 

Q. And, with reference their use and occupancy, again, you 
never recorded a written instrument in the records of 
Bonneville County stating that they were using it with your 
permission or that you had an interest in it or claim 
ownership in it, did you? 

A. No. 

Q. And, in light of the fact that your interest only began in 1981, 
your father likewise never recorded such an instrument, did 
he? 

A. Not to my knowledge. 

Q. You do not dispute or contend in this case that Mr. Kvamme 
has failed to pay all of the taxes that have been levied and 
assessed against the north half of the northeast quarter, do 
you? 

A. No. 
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Q. And, in fact, you do not contend or allege in this case that his 
predecessor and grantor in title, Delbert H. Killian and 
Mary C. Killian, did not pay all of the taxes that were levied 
and assessed against the north half of the northeast quarter, 
do you? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. And, in fact, you would concede and admit that both 
Mr. Kvamme and his predecessor in title have paid all of the 
taxes on the north half of the northeast quarter, whether 
state, county, municipal, or otherwise, correct? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection. Go ahead and answer. 

A. Well, I'd have no personal knowledge of that. 

Q. And you have no evidence to the contrary, do you? 

A. No. 

Q. We talked earlier about Mr. Kvamme, and I'll go through the 
list one by one, but, again, you never notified him that you 
claimed an ownership interest in any of the land north of the 
fence, did you? 

A. No. 

Q. Have you ever notified Flat Rock Ranches that you claim an 
ownership interest in any of the land north of the fence? 

A. No. 

Q. Have you ever notified Flat Rock Ranches that you allege 
the fence is not the true and correct boundary between the 
properties? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever notify Mike Smith? 

A. No. 
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Q. Did you ever notify Mark Berry? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever notify Don Mickelson? 

A. I did tell him that I thought the property line was on the far 
side of the fence. 3 

Q. And that conversation is what precipitated his letter to my 
client right before this litigation began, correct? 

A. I don't know what that letter was.4 

Q. Oh, all right. 

A. So I can't tell you. 

Q. I guess a different point of reference, then, would be that 
conversation with Mr. Mickelson occurred after you got the 
survey from Kevin Thompson, correct? 

A. Yes. 5 

Q. All right. Did you ever tell Rowdy Construction or notify them 
that you claimed an ownership interest in the property north 
of the fence? 

A. No. 

3Don Mickelson is a "real estate agent." See DEPOSITION OFV. LEO CAMPBELL, 
vol. I, p. 13, 11.7-9. The Plaintiffs, Jo Campbell, and Margy Spradling retained the services 
of Mr. Mickelson in 2008 in an attempt to sell the S1/2 of the NE1/4 to Rowdy Construction. 
See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. I, p. 11, I. 5 top. 16, I. 5. 

4Mr. Mickelson contacted me in April of 2010, stating that the Plaintiffs had recently 
received a survey. According to him, the fence was not on the boundary between our 
respective parcels of real property. He stated that I had to move the fence, as well as my 
pivot, mainline, and motor, or face legal action. My attorney, Justin R. Seamons, 
responded to Mr. Mickelson on April 16, 2010. 

5Kevin L. Thompson prepared a RECORD OF SURVEY, dated October 5, 2009. 
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Q. Or that, in your allegation in this case, that the fence does 
not mark the true and correct boundary between the 
properties? 

A. No. Never went that far. 

Q. Have you ever enrolled your property in any governmental 
programs such as CRP, Conservation Reserve Program, 
any program under the USDA? 

A. My pasture is. 

Q. What program? 

A I don't remember. 

Q. Any other governmental programs of any kind or nature? 

A No. 

Q. Do you claim that you have water rights that are appurtenant 
to your property? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q. Are those through an irrigation company? 

A Yes, they are. 

Q. Which one? 

A I'm trying to think of what the canal company is. Drawing a 
blank. 

Q. That's okay. Did the canal company file a claim in the Snake 
River Basin Adjudication regarding those water rights, or did 
you file your own claim? 

A No. 

Q. Did you ever remember filing a claim regarding water rights 
in the SRBA? 

A No, I don't. 
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Q. Okay. That's fine. With reference to the governmental 
program in which you've got your pasture enrolled, did you 
ever notify that program that you claimed an interest in any 
of the land north of the fence? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever notify that program that you alleged that the 
fence does not mark the true and correct boundary between 
the properties? 

A. No. 

Q. How about the canal company? Did you ever notify them? 

A. No. 

Q. You acknowledge and admit that you have never enclosed 
the ground north of the fence that you allege is your property 
in this case, don't you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you likewise agree that you have never cultivated or 
otherwise improved that land north of the fence that you 
claim as your property, true? 

A. True. 

Q. And you likewise agree that you have never pastured or 
grazed livestock on that ground located north of the fence 
that you allege is yours, true? 

A. True. 

Q. Conversely, you admit that Mr. Kvamme and his 
predecessors in title have always enclosed the ground 
located north of the fence that you allege is your property in 
this case, correct? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form on that question. Go ahead and 
answer. 

A. Well, I don't know about the enclosed part. 
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Q. Again, that goes to the fact that Mr. Kvamme has removed 
the fence on the far north boundary and a portion of the 
fence on the eastern boundary, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. All right. But you do acknowledge and admit that 
Mr. Kvamme and his predecessors in title have always 
cultivated and otherwise improved the land that you claim is 
your property north of the boundary, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. You likewise acknowledge and admit that you've never 
irrigated any of the land located north of the fence that you 
claim as your property? 

A. Well, that's debatable, but, okay, I'll agree. 

Q. You've never put that ground located north of the fence in 
production for your purposes, have you? 

A. No. 

Q. You also acknowledge and agree that you've never leased 
any of that ground located north of the fence to anybody? 

A. I leased it to Mr. Kvamme, I guess. 

Q. But you've already acknowledged that you never notified 
him-

A. No. 

Q. - that you claim that ground was yours -

A. No. 

Q. - correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. All right. And you've never received any rental income from 
any of the ground located north of the fence that you claim 
as your property in this case, have you. 
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A. Nope. 

Q. And you've never received any kind of a share crop for any 
of the ground located north of the fence that you claim is 
your property, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. I do understand that you listed your property for sale with 
Mr. Mickelson. Did you place a For Sale sign on your 
property? 

A. I did. 

Q. Did you place a For Sale sign next to the 15 feet of the 
property that you claim is your property in this case? 

A. No. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 200, I. 15 top. 206, I. 22, p. 208, 

I. 5 top. 211, I. 2, p. 211, I. 2 top. 212, I. 23, and p. 246, I. 17 top. 252, I. 22. 

ELEMENT NO. 4: "PAID ALL THE TAXES" 

71. Since 2003, my wife and I have "paid all the taxes" that have been 

"levied and assessed" against our parcel of real property-that is, Parcel No. 

RP03N38E170008, whether state, county, or municipal. 

72. The Plaintiffs agree. See supra. 

73. Of course, before 2003, and going back to at least 1950, our predecessor 

in interest-that is, Mary Killian-"paid all the taxes" that were "levied and assessed" 

against our parcel of real property, whether state, county, or municipal. 

74. Again, the Plaintiffs agree. See supra. 

75. In other words, the taxes on Parcel No. RP03N38E170008 are current. 

76. No taxes are outstanding, past due, or otherwise in default or arrears. 
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77. The legal description of our parcel of real property is the N1/2 of the 

NE1/4. 

78. The legal description of our parcel of real property is not a legal 

description, based on metes and bounds-that is, a legal description, based on specific 

calls of directions and distances from a stated point of beginning; instead, it is a legal 

description, based on a standard section of land under the U.S. Public Land Survey 

System, which nominally contains 640 acres. 

79. Thus, the "payment of taxes on the lot within which the disputed tract is 

enclosed satisfies the tax payment requirement of the statute." See Standall v. Teater, 

96 Idaho 152, 156, 525 P.2d 347, 351 (1974). 

80. Of course, the "disputed tract" in this case is located "within" the real 

property that lies north of the fence, which is our parcel of real property. 

ELEMENT NO. 5: NO "WRITTEN INSTRUMENT HAS BEEN RECORDED" 

81. Finally, the Plaintiffs, including their predecessor in interest-that is, Leo H. 

Campbell, did not record a "written instrument" in the records of Bonneville County, 

Idaho, "declaring that it was not the intent of the party to such instrument, by permitting 

possession or occupancy of real property, to thereby define property boundaries or 

ownership." See supra. 
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II. 

BOUNDARY BY AGREEMENT OR ACQUIESCENCE 

82. I have reviewed and understand the elements of boundary by agreement 

or acquiescence: 

Boundary by agreement or acquiescence has two elements: 
(1) There must be an uncertain or disputed boundary, and (2) a 
subsequent agreement fixing the boundary .... A subsequent agreement 
may be inferred from the conduct of parties or their predecessors, 
including acquiescence to the location and maintenance of a fence for a 
long period of time. 

Weitz v. Green, 148 Idaho 851, 860, 230 P.3d 743, 752 (2010). 

ELEMENT NO. 1: "UNCERTAIN OR DISPUTED BOUNDARY" 

83. My wife and I purchased the N1/2 of the NE1/4 on July 29, 2003. See 

EXHIBIT I. 

84. We paid good and valuable consideration for it-specifically, $150,000.00. 

See EXHIBIT P. 

85. We did so upon the belief that our predecessor in interest-that is, 

Mary Killian-had good and marketable title to the N1/2 of the NE1/4 and that her title 

thereto was valid, including the real property that lies north of the fence; and, with 

specific reference to the real property that lies north of the fence, we did so upon the 

belief that it was part of the N1/2 of the NE1/4. 

86. We did not have any notice, whether actual or constructive, that the 

Plaintiffs claimed any right, title, or interest in the real property that lies north of the 

fence; and, with specific reference to the real property that lies north of the fence, we 

AFFIDAVIT - 30 

191 



did not have any notice, whether actual or constructive, of any outstanding and/or 

adverse rights of another, including, without limitation, the Plaintiffs. 

87. My wife and I farm the N1/2 of the NE1/4. 

88. We are not professional land surveyors and we are not licensed to 

practice professional land surveying under Chapter 12, Title 54, of the Idaho Code. 6 

89. From that standpoint, we do not know the boundary between the Plaintiffs' 

parcel of real property and our parcel of real property; thus, the boundary is 

"uncertain or disputed." 

90. Likewise, the Plaintiffs do not know the boundary between our respective 

parcels of real property; again, the boundary is "uncertain or disputed": 

Q. Of your own personal knowledge, do you know the 
boundary, the actual boundary, the true and correct 
boundary, between the north half of the northeast quarter 
and the south half of the northeast quarter of Section 17? 

A. Not the exact, no. 

Q. And when you say not the exact boundary, no, by that you 
would also agree that you're uncertain as to the true and 
correct boundary between the north half and the south half 
of the northeast quarter of Section 17? 

A. I agree. I would be uncertain, as would everybody else. 

Q. Now, notwithstanding the fact that you are uncertain about 
that boundary, your contention in this case is that the 
boundary is in dispute, correct? 

A. Correct. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 214, II. 6-23. 

61n addition, the Plaintiffs are not professional land surveyors and they are not 
licensed to practice professional land surveying. 
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91. Finally, a// of our respective predecessors in interest, going back to at 

least 1919, did not know the legal boundary between our respective parcels of real 

property; they, too, were not professional land surveyors; they, too, simply farmed the 

land. See supra. 

ELEMENT NO. 2: "SUBSEQUENT AGREEMENT FIXING THE 
BOUNDARY, WHICH MAY BE INFERRED FROM THE CONDUCT 

OF THE PARTIES OR THEIR PREDECESSORS, INCLUDING 
ACQUIESCENCE TO THE LOCATION AND MAINTENANCE 

OF A FENCE FOR A LONG PERIOD OF TIME" 

92. With respect to the location of the fence, again, it has been in its current 

location since time immemorial. 

93. During discovery, V. Leo Campbell stated that he "believes Hyrum 

Campbell erected the fence." 

94. Again, Hyrum Campbell was the husband of Charlotte Campbell; she 

purchased the NE1/4 from .Hannah Davis in 1937. 

95. However, at his deposition, V. Leo Campbell stated that he "believes the 

fence was there before the Davises bought the property." 

96. Again, Hannah Davis and her husband, Parley Davis, purchased the 

NE1/4 on March 3, 1919. 

97. The Plaintiffs do not know the following; again, I personally attended the 

deposition of V. Leo Campbell: 

a. The Plaintiffs do not know who constructed the fence. 

b. The Plaintiffs do not know when it was constructed. 

c. The Plaintiffs do not know why it was constructed. 

AFFIDAVIT - 32 

193 



98. With respect to "who" constructed the fence, please note the following: 

Q. During the discovery process in this case, Mr. Campbell, we 
served an interrogatory on you, Interrogatory No. 14 to be 
specific, that asked who built the fence. And you answer to 
that was you believed Hyrum Campbell built the fence. And 
so now I want to go into the next section here, and that is 
who built it, when they built it, and why they built it. We'll 
start with who. In light of the fact that your grandfather 
passed away, Hyrum passed away before you were born in 
1946, why do you believe that he was the one who built this 
fence? 

A. I don't think he was the one that built it. The fence, to my 
knowledge, was there when the property was first 
purchased. 

Q. Any by first purchased, you mean in 1937? 

A. 1937. 

Q. By Charlotte? 

A. No. That would have been Hannah. 

Q. Hannah granted the property to Charlotte in 1937? 

A. Well, I believe the fence was there before the Davises 
bought the property. 

Q. Okay. Do you know in what year Hannah and her husband 
bought the property? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. Why do you believe the fence was there even as early as 
that date? 

A. It was the property itself that my grandfather and great 
grandfather and the Davises were all interested in because 
of the diversity of soils on that 160. Most of the farming in 
the area was done by horse drawn implement, and that's 
what made that property so attractive to them because of the 
diversity of soils across the property. 
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Q. Okay. So with reference, then, to your answer to 
Interrogatory No. 14 that you believe that Hyrum Cambell 
constructed the fence, your testimony today would be that 
you have no personal knowledge that's accurate, and it may 
have been, in fact, long before him? 

A. Exactly. 

Q. In simple terms, you don't know who constructed that fence, 
do you? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. And a word we've used now several times would be 
speculative and that is, whether it was Hyrum or some 
person before him, long before him, would be raw 
speculation at this point? 

A. Yes. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 218, I. 7 top. 220, I. 9. 

99. With respect to "when" the fence was constructed, please note the 

following: 

Q. In Interrogatory No. 15, we asked when the fence was 
constructed, no matter who did it, when it was constructed. 
Your answer there was you didn't know. 

A. No. 

Q. And I take it you mean that at face value, that you simply 
don't know when that fence was constructed? 

A. I don't. 

Q. And you have no personal knowledge of it, and everything in 
that regard would be, again, just raw speculation? 

A. Yup. 

Q. That, in turn, would mean that of your knowledge, whoever 
constructed the fence and whenever they constructed it, may 
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or may not have known the boundaries of the northeast 
quarter, true? 

A. I don't think that was a concern. They owned the entire 160 
acres. What difference would it make where they put a 
fence if they owned it. 

Q. Well, but if you don't know who constructed it and when they 
constructed it, you obviously don't know if they knew where 
the boundaries were for the northeast quarter, do you? 

A. No. 

Q. That, again, would be speculation. 

A. Exactly. 

Q. And we could even take that down one level and say that 
you don't know if they knew where the north half was located 
or where the south half was located of the northeast quarter, 
do you? 

A. No. 

Q. Again, that would be conjecture and speculation. 

A. Uh-huh. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 220, I. 10 top. 221, I. 21. 

100. With respect to "why" the fence was constructed, please note the 

following: 

Q. And conversely, then, since you don't know if they knew and 
were certain about the boundary, for all you know, based on 
your own personal knowledge, that fence may have fixed the 
boundary, true? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection. 
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A. No, I don't agree to that at all. My dad told me when I was 
10, 12 years old that the fence wasn't the boundary.7 

Q. Well, I understand that's your allegation -

A. Okay. 

Q. - and we'll come back and talk about those conversations 
later. 

A. Okay. 

Q. But of your own personal knowledge, as far as you know, 
that fence, at the time the person built it, whenever it was 
and whoever it was, may have fixed the boundary of the 
south half and north half of the northeast quarter, right? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object as to form. You can try to answer that. 

A. I don't really think so. 

Q. I know you may not think so, but based on your own 
personal knowledge, that a possibility, isn't it? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object as to form. I think it's asked and answered. 

Q. True? 

A. You're asking me to agree to something that I can't agree to. 
I would have to assume that they were putting a fence for 
north and south boundary. Again, I'm assuming. 

Q. It would be speculative? 

7During his deposition, V. Leo Campbell also testified that his father told him so 
when he was "six, eight years old." See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. I, p. 
81, I. 20 to p. 82, I. 24. The Defendants object to the foregoing statements if and to the 
extent that the Plaintiffs want to offer or otherwise use them to "prove the truth of the matter 
asserted"-that is, that the fence is not the boundary. In this regard, the foregoing 
statements constitute hearsay and hearsay is not admissible. See l.R.E. 801 and 802. In 
the words of Mr. Campbell, it's "kind of hard to talk to a dead guy about the facts of a case." 
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A. Very much so. So I really don't. I didn't know those people. 
I don't know why the fence was put in there. I can't answer 
that. 

Q. And I think that's the key. You admit you don't know why 
that person, whenever it was, put that fence where it is, do 
you? 

A. All I can tell you is what my dad told me. 

Q. And we'll go to those conversations later. 

A. Okay. 

Q. But, again, Mr. Campbell, of your own personal knowledge, 
of your own personal knowledge, whenever that fence was 
erected and whoever it was that constructed it, you don't 
know why they put that fence in the location where it stands 
to this day, do you? 

A. No, I don't. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 224, I. 23 top. 227, I. 4. 

101. With respect to "acquiescence to the location of the fence for a long period 

of time," please note the following: 

Q. You would agree with me that the fence has been there for a 
long period of time. 

A. Correct. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 227, II. 7-10. 

102. With respect to "maintenance of the fence for a long period of time," 

please note the following: 

Q. All right. Now, with reference to maintenance and repair, 
name for me every person, to your knowledge, that has ever 
maintained or otherwise repaired that fence. And by 
"that fence," I'm specifically talking about the fence that runs 
east and west across the property. I understand you allege 
the underlying dirt is yours -
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A. Uh-huh. 

Q. - but everybody to your knowledge that's maintained or 
repaired that fence. 

A. Well, there would have been my dad, my brother, Jo, and I, 
and Kurt Young and Keith Campbell, my other son. 
Probably all the Killian boys and Delbert Killian and Mary 
Killian. 

Q. Meaning Delbert, Jr. 

A. And Senior. 

Q. Right. That's who I assume you meant when you said 
Delbert. But Delbert, and also his son after Delbert, passed 
away. 

A. Yes. Well -

Q. With reference to - I'm sorry, go ahead. 

A. I wouldn't bet Delbert, Jr., was down there working on the 
fence. He gained quite a bit of weight and was not into 
doing much fencing. 

Q. Okay. 

A. That's why my kids wound up over there because they were 
helping Aunt Mary. 

Q. With reference to your father, when did he maintain and 
repair this fence? 

A. When he lived there. 

Q. That would be between 1950 and when he passed away? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you yet remembered the year that he passed away? 

A. No. 
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Q. Okay. For purposes of maintaining the fence over that long 
period of time, what did he do to maintain it? 

A. Replaced posts as needed, and installed wire as needed. 
He did have electrical wire at one time on it. 

Q. You previously referenced that sometime in the 1960's? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Anything else? 

A. Not right off the top of my head. 

Q. Did your father ever modify the fence? 

A. Not to my knowledge. 

Q. With reference to the period of time where you have been on 
this property- and that would be since 1981, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. What repairs and maintenance have you performed on this 
fence? 

A. I've replaced sections of wire. I've replaced posts. Repaired 
it as needed. Mr. Kvamme also put some time in on the 
fence. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 195, I. 23 top. 198, I. 7. 

103. Finally, with respect to the "conduct of the parties and their predecessors," 

please note the following: 

Q. Why, then, do you think that the person, whoever it was, did 
not construct the fence on the true boundary as you allege in 
this case between the north half and south half? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form. You can try to answer that. 

A. It's a convenience fence. 

Q. I understand that's your allegation. 
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A. Okay. It's also my allegation that the farming was done with 
livestock, with horses, horse drawn equipment. And in order 
to have horse drawn equipment, you have to have facilities 
for horses, which my dad's place, up until the fifties, late 
fifties, early 1960's was set up as a horse handling 
operation. All the fences on the farm were all substantial 
fences for controlling livestock. 

Q. And even this fence would be a substantial fence -

A. Yes. 

Q. - minus your concerns about the state of repair. 

A. Yes, at that time it was. 

Q. Now, I understand your answer there, but based on the 
survey that you have submitted in this case, what you claim 
to be the boundary between the north half and the south half 
is 15 feet north of the fence, true? 

A. True. 

Q. Which means we have literally hundreds of thousands of 
square feet north of that fence, true? 

A. True. 

Q. And hundreds of thousands of square feet south of the 
fence, true? 

A. True. 

Q. We also know that whoever it was and whenever it was 
incurred a substantial expense to buy the wire and the posts, 
true? 

A. True. 

Q. Incurred a substantial amount of time to construct the fence, 
true? 

A. True. 
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Q. Okay. Why would a person incur that kind of expense, 
spend that kind of time, and diligently build that straight of a 
fence for the time, and build it 15 feet off the mark? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form. Go ahead and try to answer. 

A. My assumption it would be to try and control livestock. If 
you've never worked for some of those old farmers, and a lot 
of people didn't get the opportunity to, a lot of them would 
run a sight line and then they'd run a string line always with 
someone making sure the sight line and the string line 
agreed. 

Q. Well, that was kind of a chance to, I guess, air ideas on why 
that person did what he did and when he did it, but, again, 
going back to the common building block, you simply don't 
know why they built it where they did, do you? 

A. No. 

Mr. Manwaring: I'm going to object. 

Mr. Seamons: He said no. 

Mr. Manwaring: I understand that, but-

Mr. Seamons: What's your objection. 

Mr. Manwaring: If you're going to ask him to speculate as to why, then we 
can't keep coming back to say, "Well, you really don't know." If you're 
going ask him to speculate as to those things, let him speculate. 

Q. He did speculate, and I'm just again referring, the end of the 
day, you don't know why that person built it where he did, do 
you? 

A. If I had to make an educated guess, it would be for pasture, 
just to control livestock. 

Q. But, again, with a simple yes or no, you don't know why they 
built it where they did, do you? 

A. No. 
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Q. All right. Now, what we do know is there was time, that's 
been there for a very long period of time -

A. Yes. 

Q. - there was time after that day of construction to move the 
fence. 

A. Correct. 

Q. And several people along the trail could have moved that 
fence to what you allege is the true and correct boundary 
between the north half and the south half, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. So, even though you don't know why that person built it 
where he did, what we do know is he or she never moved it, 
did he? 

A. Nope. 

Q. And in a simple phrase, that person thereafter acquiesced in 
this location for however long that person remained on earth, 
true? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form. 

A. Acquiesced? 

Q. Let it stay right where it was. 

Mr. Manwaring: Object as to form. 

A. Well, it has been there a long time. 

Q. And whoever that person was, he never recorded a 
document stating or declaring that it didn't mark the 
boundary, that he claimed the property north of the fence, or 
that there was an ownership interest in dispute in connection 
with it, did he? 

A. No. Not to my knowledge. Again, I'm speculating. 
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Q. With reference to your father, he was one of those people 
that could have moved the fence, true? 

A. True. 

Q. Why didn't your father move the fence to what you claim is 
the true boundary between the north half and the south half 
of the northeast quarter? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form. 

A. Okay. This is the part where I might get a little bit heated, 
but you have to understand, we're talking family. Now, you 
have a one couple with four kids and another couple with six 
or seven kids. This is in the thirties and the forties and the 
fifties and the sixties, and -

Q. All the way up to 1989 when he deeded it to you. 

A. Exactly. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Okay. No one was really in a position to financially 
undertake moving the fence. 

Q. Now, that would be speculation on your part, true? 

A. Yes. It would be true. 

Q. Okay. But now -

A. But you yourself said there was a lot of time and money put 
into materials to build it. 

Q. And you agreed with it. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Odd that a person would do that in the wrong location, isn't 
it? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to the form of that question. 
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A. If the person owned the entire 160 acres, why does it matter 
where he put the fence? 

Q. Did your father ever own the entire 160 acres? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. 

A. He did -

Q. So back to my question. 

Q. Since he never owned the entire 160, why didn't he move 
the fence to what you allege is the true and correct boundary 
in this case? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form. You can try and answer that. 

A. It wasn't cost effective. Couldn't afford it. 

Q. And that would be speculation on your part? 

A. Yes. That would be speculation on my part as the kid that 
grew up with hand-me-down clothes and having damn little. 

Q. Also growing up with a father who owned 80 acres. 

A. Exactly. 

Q. Okay. What we do know is that he didn't move the fence 
ever, did he? 

A. No, he didn't. 

Q. We likewise know that Mary, Delbert, Delbert, Jr., and that 
entire side of the family never moved the fence to what you 
allege is the true and correct boundary, did they? 

A. No, they didn't. 
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Q. Why? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object as to form. 

A I'm pretty sure it had something to do with money. 

Q. Again, speculation on your part. 

A Oh yeah. Yeah. 

Q. You entered upon this property in 1981, correct? 

A Correct. 

Q. And you allege that your father told you that the land actually 
extended some distance beyond the fence as early as the 
age of six, true? 

A True. Six to 10 years old, somewhere in there. 

Q. Why didn't you move the fence to what you claim is the true 
and correct boundary? 

A I didn't perceive it as a problem where the fence and the 
property boundary was. It was family on the other side of 
the fence. 

Q. What difference does that make? 

A Well, I guess your family is different than mine. 

Q. What we do know is you never moved it, did you? 

A No, I didn't. 

Q. And, in fact, you acquiesced in its location and left it right 
where it is, true? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form. You can try and answer. 

A I left it where it is. 

Q. When did you build or move your home onto that 1.41 acre 
parcel that your father gave to you in 1981? 
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A. In 1981. 

Q. The same year? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How close to the fence does your home sit? 

A. I don't know for sure. I'd have to go measure. 

Q. Why didn't you move the fence at that time to what you 
allege is the true and correct boundary between the 
properties? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object as to form. 

A. Money. 

Q. So your testimony is that - Did your father sell that land to 
you or give it to you? 

A. He gave it to me.8 

Q. So, notwithstanding the free land, you didn't have money -

A. No, I didn't. 

Q. -to-

A. I married a woman with four kids. We added one more. 

Q. Sometime after you acquired that one acre parcel and 
moved the home onto it, did you pay for that home, by the 
way? 

A. It's in mortgage. 

Q. Has that mortgage been there since 1981? 

A. Yes. 

8ln addition, his father split the S1/2 of the NE1/4 into four parcels in 1989 and 
gave 20 acres to him by DEED OF GIFT. 
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Q. And you borrowed the money, I guess, to buy that home and 
move it onto the property? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you did not otherwise have the money to move the 
fence to what you allege is the true and correct boundary? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection. 

A. You're right. I didn't. 

Q. After moving onto the property, it sounds like you began to 
run some horses on the property? 

A. Correct. 

Q. You now have corrals and pastures identified on the 
property? 

A. I do. 

Q. You've constructed other improvements and outbuildings on 
the property? 

A. No. 

Q. There are no other outbuildings, sheds, or barns of any 
kind? 

A. There's a two-sided shed. 

Q. Okay. So we do have some outbuildings that you've put 
onto the property, correct? 

A. I don't think it qualifies as an outbuilding. More like a leanto. 

Q. And you've planted lawns, gardens true? 

A. True. 

Q. And you have kept up with the pasture, true? 

A. Tried to. 
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Q. Why over all those years didn't you move the fence to what 
you allege is the true and correct boundary between the 
properties? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection. 

A. Didn't have the money. 

Q With reference to your personal financial situation since 
1981, did you ever price the cost of poles and wire and labor 
to move the fence? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever request or receive any bids from any third 
parties to move the fence for you? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form. 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever make any calculations or mathematical 
computations on what you thought would be the cost for 
labor and materials to move the fence? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form. 

A. No. 

Q. With reference to your property now, and that is the property 
south of this fence, and if you would like, you could include 
the portion north of the fence that you claim as your 
property, I need a list of all of the people that you've ever 
rented your property to. Sounds like Mr. Kvamme at some 
point in time -

A. Yes. 

Q. - was tenant, so Craig Kvamme. Who else? 

A. Flat Rock Ranches, Mike Smith, Mark Berry. 
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Q. Have there been any other people that you've allowed to use 
or occupy your property? 

A. No. 

Q. On the first day of your deposition, you testified that you 
listed the property with Don Mickelson. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have ever listed your property with any other person? 

A. No. 

Q. And by "person," I would also include agencies. 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. You also mentioned that Rowdy Construction was a 
prospective buyer for your property. Have you ever had any 
other prospective buyers of your property? 

A. No. 

Q. We talked earlier about Mr. Kvamme, and I'll go through the 
list one by one, but, again, you never notified him that you 
claimed an ownership interest in any of the land north of the 
fence, did you? 

A. No. 

Q. Have you ever notified Flat Rock Ranches that you claim an 
ownership interest in any of the land north of the fence? 

A. No. 

Q. Have you ever notified Flat Rock Ranches that you allege 
the fence is not the true and correct boundary between the 
properties? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever notify Mike Smith? 
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A. No. 

Q. Did you ever notify Mark Berry? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever notify Don Mickelson? 

A. I did tell him that I thought the property line was on the far 
side of the fence. 

Q. And that conversation is what precipitated his letter to my 
client right before this litigation began, correct? 

A. I don't know what that letter was. 9 

Q. Oh, all right. 

A. So I can't tell you. 

0. I guess a different point of reference, then, would be that 
conversation with Mr. Mickelson occurred after you got the 
survey from Kevin Thompson, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. All right. Did you ever tell Rowdy Construction or notify them 
that you claimed an ownership interest in the property north 
of the fence? 

A. No. 

Q. Or that, in your allegation in this case, that the fence does 
not mark the true and correct boundary between the 
properties? 

A. No. Never went that far. 

9Again, Mr. Mickelson contacted me in April of 2010, stating that the Plaintiffs had 
recently received a survey. According to him, the fence was not on the boundary between 
our respective parcels of real property. He stated that I had to move the fence, as well as 
my pivot, mainline, and motor, or face legal action. My attorney, Justin R. Seamons, 
responded to Mr. Mickelson on April 16, 2010. 
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Q. Have you ever enrolled your property in any governmental 
programs such as CRP, Conservation Reserve Program, 
any program under the USDA? 

A. My pasture is. 

Q. What program? 

A. I don't remember. 

Q. Any other governmental programs of any kind or nature? 

A. No. 

Q. Do you claim that you have water rights that are appurtenant 
to your property? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Are those through an irrigation company? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. Which one? 

A. I'm trying to think of what the canal company is. Drawing a 
blank. 

Q. That's okay. Did the canal company file a claim in the Snake 
River Basin Adjudication regarding those water rights, or did 
you file your own claim? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever remember filing a claim regarding water rights 
in the SRBA? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. Okay. That's fine. With reference to the governmental 
program in which you've got your pasture enrolled, did you 
ever notify that program that you claimed an interest in any 
of the land north of the fence? 

A. No. 
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Q. Did you ever notify that program that you alleged that the 
fence does not mark the true and correct boundary between 
the properties? 

A No. 

Q. How about the canal company? Did you ever notify them? 

A No. 

Q. You acknowledge and admit that you have never enclosed 
the ground north of the fence that you allege is your property 
in this case, don't you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you likewise agree that you have never cultivated or 
otherwise improved that land north of the fence that you 
claim as your property, true? 

A. True. 

Q. And you likewise agree that you have never pastured or 
grazed livestock on that ground located north of the fence 
that you allege is yours, true? 

A. True. 

Q. Conversely, you admit that Mr. Kvamme and his 
predecessors in title have always enclosed the ground 
located north of the fence that you allege is your property in 
this case, correct? 

Mr. Manwaring: Objection as to form on that question. Go ahead and 
answer. 

A. Well, I don't know about the enclosed part. 

Q. Again, that goes to the fact that Mr. Kvamme has removed 
the fence on the far north boundary and a portion of the 
fence on the eastern boundary, correct? 

A. Correct. 
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Q. All right. But you do acknowledge and admit that 
Mr. Kvamme and his predecessors in title have always 
cultivated and otherwise improved the land that you claim is 
your property north of the boundary, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. You likewise acknowledge and admit that you've never 
irrigated any of the land located north of the fence that you 
claim as your property? 

A. Well, that's debatable, but, okay, I'll agree. 

Q. You've never put that ground located north of the fence in 
production for your purposes, have you? 

A. No. 

Q. You also acknowledge and agree that you've never leased 
any of that ground located north of the fence to anybody? 

A. I leased it to Mr. Kvamme, I guess. 

Q. But you've already acknowledged that you never notified 
him-

A. No. 

Q. - that you claim that ground was yours -

A. No. 

Q. - correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. All right. And you've never received any rental income from 
any of the ground located north of the fence that you claim 
as your property in this case, have you. 

A. Nope. 

Q. And you've never received any kind of a share crop for any 
of the ground located north of the fence that you claim is 
your property, correct? 
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A. Correct. 

Q. I do understand that you listed your property for sale with 
Mr. Mickelson. Did you place a For Sale sign on your 
property? 

A. I did. 

Q. Did you place a For Sale sign next to the 15 feet of the 
property that you claim is your property in this case? 

A. No. 

Q. In connection with Rowdy Construction and their one-time 
prospective purchase of the property, did you ever notify 
planning and zoning that you claimed any of the ground 
located north of the fence as your property? 

A. No. 

Q. Did you ever notify planning and zoning that you allege the 
fence does not mark the true and correct boundary? 

A. No. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 229, I. 1 top. 230, I. 19, p. 231, I. 

16 top. 234, I. 19, p. 235, I. 12 top. 236, I. 25, p. 237, I. 15 top. 238, I. 8, p 240, I. 1 to 

p. 244, I. 8, p. 252, I. 23 top. 253, I. 15, p. 244, II. 9-21, p. 245, I. 23 top. 252, I. 22, p. 

253, I. 16 top. 254, I. 1. 

104. The bottom line in this case is simple and straightforward: 

a. No one-at least no one alive-knows who constructed the 

fence, when it was constructed, or why it was constructed. 
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b. The Plaintiffs, including their predecessors in interest, and 

my wife and I, including our predecessors in interest, have acquiesced to 

the location of the fence "for a long period of time." 

c. In addition, the Plaintiffs, including their predecessors in 

interest, and my wife and I, including our predecessors in interest, have 

maintained the fence "for a long period of time." 

d. Finally, the "conduct of the parties and their predecessors" 

evidences and confirms the following: On the one hand, the Plaintiffs and 

their predecessor in interest have never enclosed the real property that 

lies north of the fence; they have never cultivated it, improved it, used it, 

irrigated it, or put it in production; they have never received rental income 

from it; they have never received a share crop from it; they have never 

posted it for sale; and they have never notified any third party, whether by 

way of actual notice or constructive notice, that the fence allegedly does 

not sit on the boundary between our respective parcels of real property. 

On the other hand, my wife and I and our predecessor in interest have 

always enclosed the real property that lies north of the fence; we have 

always cultivated it, improved it, used it, irrigated it, and put it in 

production; and we have now installed a pivot, mainline, and motor on the 

N1/2 of the NE1/4, which further improved it. 
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111. 

THE TRUE LOCATION OF THE FENCE 

105. Notwithstanding a// of the foregoing, the Plaintiffs allege that the fence 

does not sit on the boundary between our respective parcels of real property; again, my 

wife and I deny that the fence sits on the Plaintiffs' parcel of real property. 

106. The sole basis of the Plaintiffs' allegation is the RECORD OF SURVEY of 

Kevin L. Thompson, dated October 5, 2009: 

Q. And your claim is that the fence that we have been 
discussing, the northernmost interior fence that runs east 
and west across the property, does not mark the boundary, 
correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. That's your allegation. That it does not fix the boundary? 

A. No [it does not]. 

Q. And your contention is that the true and correct boundary is 
somewhere north of that fence? 

A. Correct. 

Q. The basis or evidence that you would tender to me to 
support your allegation would be the survey from Mr. Kevin 
Thompson, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And, with the exception of that survey, you have no other 
evidence of the boundary between the north half and the 
south half of the northeast quarter of Section 17, do you? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object to the form. You can go ahead and answer. 

A. There's the survey done when I first occupied the land. 
There was the survey done before that when my dad 
occupied the land. 
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Q. Yesterday, we talked about those surveys as having been a 
possibility, but my understanding of your testimony was, of 
your own personal knowledge, whether your father did or did 
not ever get such a survey was speculative, correct? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And, with reference to the one that you may have gotten in 
1981, that, too, is speculative. You can't even remember, 
correct? 

A. It has been a few days, yes, but I don't think my mortgage 
holder would have loaned on it had it have been speculative. 

Q. But, whether they would or would not have loaned on it, that, 
too, is speculative. You're not the mortgage guy, are you? 

A. No, I'm not the mortgage guy. 

Q. All right. So, really, Mr. Campbell, when you boil this thing 
down, and we'll get to the who, why, and when in just a 
moment, but when you boil this case down to some simple 
propositions, with exception to the survey by Mr. Kevin 
Thompson, you have no other evidence that the fence does 
not mark the boundary, do you? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object as to form. Go ahead and answer. 

A. Well, in that light, I suppose not. 

Q. And you have no other evidence that the fence does not fix 
the boundary, do you? 

Mr. Manwaring: Object to form. You can answer. 

A. I think we need to go off the record. 

Mr. Manwaring: Okay. 

Q. I'd like to have that question answered before we go off the 
record. That was a fair question. 

A. And it was. If you wouldn't mind repeating. 
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Q. Yeah. And my question was, with the exception of the 
survey, you have no other evidence that the fence does not 
fix the boundary, correct? 

A. Correct. 

See DEPOSITION OF V. LEO CAMPBELL, vol. Ill, p. 214, I. 24 top. 217, I. 19. 

107. The AFFIDAVIT OF KIM H. LEAVITT evidences and confirms that the 

fence sits on the boundary between our respective parcels of real property-specifically, 

the AFFIDAVIT OF KIM H. LEAVITT shows that the fence is on the exact boundary 

between our respective parcels of real property. 

CONCLUSION 

108. The Plaintiffs, by and through their attorney, Kipp L. Manwaring, sent a 

letter to my attorney on August 16, 2010. 

109. Again, the Plaintiffs filed the complaint in this case on June 30, 2010. 

110. In their letter, the Plaintiffs threatened us, "demanding" that my wife and I 

"remove [our] wheel line and all other moveable personal property from the Campbells' 

land." 

111. My attorney responded on August 18, 2010, specifically and expressly 

notifying them of the following in writing: 

... Please notify Mr. and Mrs. Campbell not to "take action into their own 
hands," but to follow the law and proceed through the court; otherwise, 
I will file an application against Mr. and Mrs. Campbell to maintain the 
50-year-plus status quo pending the outcome of this case. 

112. Notwithstanding the foregoing written notice, the Plaintiffs thereafter tore 

out and removed a small section of the fence that runs between our respective parcels 

of real property. 
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113. Thankfully, they did not damage our pivot, mainline, and motor. 

114. In any event, my wife and I are aware of the law in this case: 

This court strongly disfavors the resort to forceful self-help in 
resolving property disputes. See Burke v. Prudential Ins. Co. Of Am., No. 
02C5910, 2004 WL 784073, at 4 (N.D. Ill. Jan. 29, 2004) ("Self-help in 
litigation is not condoned by the court."); Do/es v. Doles, No. 17462, 2000 
WL 511693, at 2, (Va. Cir. Ct. Mar. 10, 2000) ("Public policy favors the 
settlement of disputes by litigation, rather than by self help force.") When 
parties have entered into a conflict over real property, the rights are 
usually fixed far in advance of the exchange of attorney's letters, or 
subsequent filing of a lawsuit, motions, depositions, and hearings. Making 
a bold physical attempt to gain, or regain, possession or control of a real 
property interest, by demolishing or erecting gates or fences, bulldozing 
land, etc., results in no strategic advantage. Instead, passions become 
inflamed, positions become entrenched, damages are exacerbated rather 
than mitigated, and the parties end up spending far more money in 
litigation than their supposed interest was worth to begin with. Attorneys 
who counsel their clients to engage in self-help, without being certain that 
the respective rights and responsibilities have been settled, do their clients 
a disservice. Clients who ignore the advice of counsel and take matters 
into their own hands do themselves a disservice. In short, parties who 
attempt to solve a property dispute through their own forceful action do so 
at their own peril. 

See Weitz v. Green, 148 Idaho at 864, 230 P.3d at 756. 

115. My wife and I respectfully ask the court to order the Plaintiffs to repair 

and/or restore the fence and not to take any further action into their own hands without 

the court's approval in advance. 

(END) 
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Dated June 7, 2011. 

~~~· fueSC. Kvamme 

Notary Public 
Commission 
Residing at;,.,: IL"'-!:=.l<:=-"'~....::Z-.......,,.:J.~:_:_:._~--­

\ 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I served a copy of the foregoing AFFIDAVIT OF JAMES C. KVAMME on the 

following person on June 7, 2011: 

Kipp L. Manwaring 
P.O. Box 50271 
Idaho Falls, ID 83405-0271 
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